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"More than just living"

VISION

We aspire to craft 'living solutions' that are disruptively unique,
yet authentic to the surroundings, so that we can simultaneously
surpass the norm of ‘living’ and enrich the society at large while
commemorating the beauty of nature and local heritage.

"Challenge the boundary of living"

MISSION

Reimagine the boundary of living Our projects must be more
than just a house or a home; but ‘living solutions’ that would
better people’s lives and the society. With a strong determination
to challenge the extent of people’s imagination and the boundary
of ‘living’, all of Proud Real Estate’s projects aim to establish new
standards of how people can live through flawless delivery, limit
pushing concept and harmony with the surroundings.
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2022 2020

* November * September *  November

The company received an The company won “Dot Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited

award at the 17th “Property Property Thailand Award received the awards at the “Property Guru

Guru Thailand Property Award” 2020", including the Best Thailand Property Award” event for the

of the project “VEHHA” in Luxury Condominium Hua project "InterContinental Residences Hua Hin"

the category of Development Hin Award and the Best as follows: o

Awards, Best Condo Branded Residence Hua Hin 1. In the DEVELOPMENT AWARDS category,

Development (Hua Hin) Award for “InterContinental Best Luxury Condo Development (Hua Hin) "
Residences Hua Hin”. and Best Branded Residence. -

2. In the DESIGN AWARDS category, Best
Condo Landscape Architectural Design, fiii
and in the BEST OF THAILAND AWARDS Hm

category, Best Condo Development

(Thailand).
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/ PROUD HISTORY

30 March
Established under the name of Pasuput Co.,Ltd.

4 November
The company was converted into
a public limited.

21 November

Change the Company’s name to Focus
Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited

5 October
Listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Focus

19 November

Change the Company’s name to Focus
Development and Construction Public
Company Limited



2019 2020

4 November January
Change the Company's name to Proud Real Launch the first luxury project in Thailand
Estate PLC Under the brand InterContinental -

InterContinental Residences Hua Hin

PROUD

REAL ESTATE

T

T

1-July 21-February
Launch of the highest condominium project in Launch of ROMM Convent, a luxurious
Hua Hin - Vehha condominium project, designed under

the concept of CBD Retreat Residences.

2022 2023
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/ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2022 2021 2020
Financial Position (Unit:Million Baht)
Total Assets 3,270.06 3,988.16 2,001.41
Total Liabilities 2,445.63 3,392.24 1,308.05
Total Shareholders’ Equity 824.43 595.92 693.36
Paid-up Share Capital 641.47 641.47 641.47
Performance (Unit:Million Baht)
Total Revenues 2,110.29 3.62 198.20
Revenues from sale of real estate 2,108.37 - 181.65
Revenues from contract work - - -
Net Profit (Loss) for the year 228.52 (97.23) (44.82)
Share Value (Baht per Share)
Net Profit (Loss) per Share 0.356 (0.152) (0.070)
Book Value per Share 1.29 0.93 1.08
Financial Ratio
Current Ratio (Times) 2.28 1.86 3.61
Return on Equity (ROE) (%) 32.18 (15.08) (6.26)
Return on Assets (ROA) (%) 13.21 (2.44) (2.24)
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 2.97 5.69 1.89
Total Assets Turnover (times) 1.22 0.00 0.10
Gross Profit Margin (%) 36.42 N/A 19.47
Net Profit (Loss) Margin (%) 10.83 (2,685.91) (22.61)

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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/ MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders

In 2022, the country’s economy remained volatile due
to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the emergence
of new variants. The Russian-Ukrainian War also added to
the uncertainty. Inflation and rising interest rates globally
caused fluctuations in the real estate market and required
a quick response. The cautious spending behavior of
consumers resulted in sluggish purchasing power. The
construction sector faced challenges such as rising costs
for steel, oil, and transportation, which resulted in higher
financial costs for real estate developers. Effective cost
control and a continuous strategy are crucial for success
in 2023.

The country’s reopening at the end of the year improved

relaxed atmosphere and spending sentiment.

Do

(Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut)
Chairman of the Board of Directors

11

However, 2022 marked a turning point for Proud Real
Estate Public Company Limited (the “Company”), with
a profit of 226 million baht due to the start of project
transfers. The Intercontinental Residence Hua Hin project
generated revenue of 2,107 million baht out of a total
project value of 3,813 million baht and will continue to
transfer in 2023. The project recorded a 94% sales rate,
an increase from 78% the previous year end.

This strong performance has allowed the company to
move forward and expand projects in both Hua Hin and
Bangkok, with a focus on both vertical and horizontal
growth to ensure long-term returns for shareholders. The
company operates under the philosophy of “More Than

Just Living.”

it

(Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen)
Chief Executive Officer
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/ REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES OF
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR 2022

The Audit Committee of the Company consists
entirely of 3 independent directors who are independent,
knowledgeable, capable, and experienced in auditing
financial reports, internal control system, and inspection
as well as having knowledge and understanding of
corporate business and qualified according to the
announcement of the Capital Market Supervisory Board
and the announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
Regarding the qualifications and scope of work of the Audit
Committee, B.E. 2558. In 2022, the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut Chairman of the

Audit Committee
2. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul  Audit Committee
3. Mr. Dan Zonmani Audit Committee

In 2022 the Audit Committee held 4 meetings with
details of attendance. as follows
1. Mr. Anuwat Methivibulwut Attended 4 meetings
2. Ms. Anchalee Boonsongsikul Attended 4 meetings

3. Mr. Dan Zonmani Attended 3 meetings

Summary of the performance of the audit

committee is as follows:
1. Review financial reports

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s
quarterly financial reports and annual financial reports
and consolidated financial statements by meeting with

the auditors, internal auditors, and listening to statements

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

from management. The Audit Committee agrees with the
auditor that the Company’s financial reports are accurate.
It is dependable as it should be in accordance with the
accepted accounting standards of Thailand and sufficient
and timely disclosure of information and made remarks on
issues that would be beneficial to the Company regarding

disclosure of information as necessary and appropriate.

2. Review the effectiveness of the internal control
system.

The Audit Committee attaches immense importance to
good corporate governance, risk management, and internal
control by promoting the creation of an organizational
culture concerning good internal control and has reviewed
the audit results of the efficiency and effectiveness of the
internal control system as audited by the audit department
according to international standards for various work
processes within the group of companies every quarter.
The Audit Committee provided additional suggestions
that were useful for improving the Company’s operations
to be more efficient and effective. The management has
been followed up to make improvements according to the
suggestions continuously and has continuously improved
its operations to be consistent and suitable for the current

business environment.

3. Review Compliance with the Law, and Related
Regulations

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s



compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, set
requirements or laws related to the Company’s business

operations and work system defined.

4. Oversee internal audit work

The Audit Committee has considered the annual
internal audit plan. This includes the extent of the audit
based on risk considerations and the existing controls of
the company’s internal processes, past audit results, and
information from the Company’s risk assessment results,
executives’ interviews about their needs or concerns
by giving advice and following up on corrective action
on significant issues to achieve good governance and

adequate internal control.

5. Consider connected transactions or transactions that
may have a conflict of interest.

The Audit Committee has considered connected
transactions or transactions that may have conflicts
of interest of the Group to comply with the laws and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand considering
reasonableness, it is in the best interests of the company,
and approved by the authorized person who is not a
stakeholder. The Company has a policy on conflicts of

interest and a policy on management of subsidiaries.

6. Review the auditor’s performance and selection and
nomination of auditors.

The Audit Committee has considered the terms of
employment of auditors for the selection and appointment
of the auditors, including the auditor’s remuneration for the
year 2022 and reviewing the qualifications of the auditors
found to be completely correct. Therefore resolved to
approve to propose to the Board of Directors for approval
and to later propose for approval at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2022

The Audit Committee has considered the nature of other

services apart from the auditing work that departments in

the company or subsidiaries employ the audit firm and is of
the view that such services do not affect the independence
of the auditors in the practice of auditing the financial

reports of the company.

7. Self-assessment and review of the Audit Committee’s
charter manual.

The Audit Committee has evaluated the annual
performance by using the self-assessment form according
to the principles of good corporate governance, which has
been reported to the Board of Directors for consideration.
In this regard, the results of the self-assessment are in
particularly good criteria. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed and revised the Charter of the Audit Committee.
to be in line with the changing situation to ensure that the
performance of the previous year was complete as assigned
and in line with the best practices of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and proposed to the Board of Directors for
approval.

In summary, the Audit Committee has fulfilled its
duties in its entirety as specified in the Audit Committee
Charter approved by the Board of Directors. This is in line
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and
the opinion is consistent with the auditor’s opinion that
the Company’s financial reports are correct in all material
respects in accordance with the accepted accounting
standards of Thailand. In addition, the company has set up
an internal control system and effective internal auditing
and has complied with the law and relevant regulations
throughout the year 2022, no significantissues or defects
were found and has continuously improved its operations
to be consistent and suitable for the current business

environment.

|

(Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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/ REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES
OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR 2022

In 2022 the Company’s Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consists of directors 3 persons are listed as
follows:

1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut

Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee
3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

In 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has 1 meeting, of which 3 directors attended 1 meeting
and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
performed the duties as specified in the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee Charter. There will be a meeting
to review before proposing to the Board of Directors for
approval. The essence of the duties is summarized as follows:
1. Recruit qualified persons according to the criteria and

processes set by the regulatory agency with reference
to the specification Board Skill Matrix to propose for
appointment as a director of the company who retired
by rotation or replace the vacant position as well as
selecting company directors to serve as sub-committees
and presented to the Board of Directors.

2. Consider the remuneration of the Company’s directors
to propose to the shareholders’ meeting for approval
by comparing it with the survey report on directors’
remuneration of the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD) and similar businesses, to motivate
and retain quality company directors.

3. Determine the criteria for evaluating the company’s

performance (Corporate KPIs), including tracking, and

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

evaluating performance(Corporate KPIs,), providing
suggestions for improvement, and develop operational
efficiency so that the performance is in accordance
with the objectives set goal in line with the vision and
mission of the company, and presented to the Board
of Directors for approval.

4. Determine criteria for performance appraisal of the Chief
Executive Officer and propose to the Board of Directors
for approval, monitor and report the performance
according to the above criteria to the Board of Directors
for approval, and use it as information for wages,
compensation, and bonuses.

5. Consider and scrutinize criteria for paying wages,
compensation, and bonuses for employees of the group
of companies to be appropriate, consistent with the
performance, and can compete, to encourage a focus
on performance to achieve goals by considering the
comparison with the group of companies that have
similar businesses.

6. Review the Charter of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to be up-to-date and consistent with the
current situation.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
performed its duties, taking into account the benefits of
the company and its stakeholders, and the performance
of the Company in order for the Company to have quality
personnel, appropriate and fair compensation to motivate
duty performances to achieve the business goals set by
the Board of Directors in order for the Company to be an

organization that grows sustainably.

v

(Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut)
Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee



/ REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DUTIES
OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR

THE YEAR 2022

In 2022, the Company’s Executive Committee consists
of directors 4 persons are listed as follows:
1. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm Chairman of the
Executive Committee
2. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Vice Chairman of the
Executive Committee
3. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Director
4. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Director

In 2022 the Executive Committee held 12 meetings
as follows:
1. Mr. Veerapong Chaiperm  Not attending the
meeting due to sick leave
2. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Attended 11 meetings
3. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Attended 12 meetings
4. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen  Attended 12 meetings

In 2022, has reviewed investments and monitored the
progress of important projects to achieve success. It is
aware of the global economy and the country’s economy
that has been affected by the COVID-19 that has caused the
real estate business to slow down. In 2022, the Executive
Committee has the following important results:
1. Setpolicies, goals, strategies, operational plans budget

for the year 2022 and various management powers

of the company to present to the Board of Directors

for approval. In 2022, the Executive Board presented

the procurement of land for future real estate project

development of the Company to the Board of Directors

for consideration and approval.

2. Control and supervise the Group’s business operations
in accordance with the policies, goals, strategies,
operational plans, and annual budget approved by the
Board of Directors effectively and in accordance with
the changing business conditions from time to time,
as well as providing advice and management advice to
senior management.

3. The Board of Directors has assigned the executive
committee to help monitor the progress of major
construction projects and scrutinize investment criteria
to be clear and consider the overall investment budget
of the Company as well as follow up on the progress
of major investment projects to be in line with the
assignments by the Board of Directors to ensure that
investments are in accordance with set goals.

The Executive Committee has performed its duties as
assigned by the Board of Directors and in accordance with
the Charter, whereby the meeting focuses on independent
inquiries, opinions, and recommendations, and performs
its duties with prudence, caution, and the interests of the
Company and its shareholders under good governance

principles for stable and sustainable business operations.

[0.98)

(Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop)

Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR.ANUWAT MAYTHEEWIBULWUT

Age 71

Positions:

Independent Director
Chairman

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

Date appointed as Director on

13 May 2019

Education

Master of Public Administration Program in Public
Administration, Chulalongkorn University

2" Hons in Bachelor of Laws, Chulalongkorn University

Training

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 104/2013, Thai

Institute of Directors (IOD)

Training course for senior judicial process administrators,

class 15/2011 - 2012

e Training Course, National Defense College of Thailand,
Class 45/ 2002 - 2003
e Training Course for Senior Administrators, Class 36

e Training Course for Senior Land Administrators, Class 7

Shareholding proportion

e None

Family relationship with other directors, executive

e None

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company

e 2012 - Present Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Rojana Industrial Park Public
Company Limited

e 2014 -2018 Chairman, JSP.Property Public
Company Limited

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

e 2022 - Present Expert Director in Administration
and Management , Ministry of
Interior

e 2019 - Present Expert Committee on Land,
Ministry of Finance

e 2015 - Present Council of State,
Office of the Council of State

e 2012 - Present Executive Vice President,
Charoen Pokphand Group

e 2018 -2022 Expert Committee of Law,
Office of the Permanent Secretary,
Ministry of Interior

e 2014 -2019 Member of the National Legislative
Assembly



F

MR.VERAPONG CHAIPERM
Age 57

Positions:
e Vice Chairman of the Board of Director Committee

e Chairman of the Executive Committee

Date appointed as Director on

e 13 May 2019

Education

e PhD. Eng. In Environmental Engineering (Water and
Wastewater Engineering), Asian Institute of Technology
(AIT)

e M.S. in Civil Engineering (Environmental Engineering),
University of Missouri- Rolla, U.S.A.

e B.Eng. (Civil Engineering), Chulalongkorn University

Training

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 163/2019, Thai
Institute of Directors (IOD)

e Top Executive in Industrial Development and Investment,
class 1, Institute of Business and Industrial Development
(IBID)

e C(Certificate, Executive Program on Energy Literacy for
a Sustainable Future (TEA), Class 3, Thailand Energy
Academy

e Executive Program, Poompalungpadin Program (Batch 1)

e Director Certification Program (DAP) 161/2012, Thai
Institute of Directors (IOD)

e Advanced Certificate course in Politics and Governance
in Democratic Systems for Executives Class 15, The
College of Politics and Governance, King Prajadhipok’s

e Advanced Senior Executive Program, Northwestern
University (USA)

e Management Development Program, Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn
University

Shareholding proportion

e None

Family relationship with other directors, executive

e None

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company

e 2021 -2022 Independent Director and

Member of the Audit Committee,

Star Petroleum Refining Public

Company Limited

e 2019-2022 Independent Director and

Member of the Audit Committee,

Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China (Thai) Public Company Limited

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

e 2018 - Present Special Investment Consultant for

Targeted Industries, Eastern Economic

Corridor Office of Thailand

e 2017 -2018 Director and Assistant Secretary

Eastern Economic Corridor

Development Executive Board

e 2012 -2018 Governor, Industrial Estate

Authority of Thailand
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MR. PASU LIPTAPANLOP

Age 36
Positions:
e Director

e Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee

e Member of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

Date appointed as Director on

e 13 May 2019

Education

e MSc in Real Estate Investment, Class Business School,
United Kingdom
e BA Business Management (Finance), Second Class

Honors , University of Westminster, United Kingdom

Training

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 138/2017, Thai
Institute of Directors (IOD)

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Shareholding proportion

35.23

Family relationship with other directors, executive

Ms.Proudputh Liptapanlop’s brother

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company

2015 - 2018

Vice President FICC Sales,
The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
(Singapore & Hong Kong)

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

2021 - Present

2021 - Present

2019 - Present

2019 - Present

2016 — Present

2016 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present

Director,

Convent Beta Company Limited
Director,

Proud Horseshoe Company Limited
Director,

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited
Director,

Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited
Director, Robowealth Mutual Fund
Brokerage Securities Company
Limited

Director, Whitewater west SEA Ltd.
Executive Director,

Elite Securities Company Limted
Director, Vana Nava

Company Limited

Director, Proud Group

Holding Company Limited

Director,

Proud Hospitality Company Limited
Director, Proud Resort Hua Hin

Company Limited



MS.PROUDPUTH LIPTAPANLOP
Age 35

Positions:

Director

Member of the Executive Committee

Date appointed as Director on

13 May 2019

Education

London Business School, United Kingdom - MSc

(Distinction) in Management

University of Oxford, United Kingdom - BA (Hons) in

Economics and Management

Training

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 138/2017, Thai

Institute of Directors (IOD)

Shareholding proportion

35.23

19

Family relationship with other directors, executive

Mr.Pasu Liptapanlop’s sister

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company

None

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

2021 - Present

2021 - Present

2019 - Present

2019 - Present

2016 - Present

2013 - Present

2012 - Present

2012 - Present

2012 - Present

2012 - Present

Director,

Convent Beta Company Limited
Director,

Proud Horseshoe Company Limited
Director, Hua Hin Alpha 71
Company Limited

Director, Hua Hin Sky Living
Company Limited

Director,

Whitewater west SEA Ltd.

Director,

Vana Nava Company Limited
Director, Proud Group

Holding Company Limited

Director,

Proud Hospitality Company Limited
Director, Proud Resort Hua Hin
Company Limited

Director,

Hua Hin Asset Company Limited

56-1 ONE REPORT 2022



I |

MR. ANUCHA SIHANATKATHAKUL

Age 63
Positions:
e Director

e Member of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee

Date appointed as Director on
e 2015
Education

e M.B.A (Finance), University of Houston, Texas, U.S.A.
e B.A. (Accounting & Management), Houston Baptist University,

Texas, U.S.A.
Training

e (Fellow Member), Thai Institute of Directors (I0D) 2/2001
e Director Certification Program (DCP) 4/2000, Thai Institute

of Directors (IOD)
e Director Compensation 2003
e Non-Executive Director 2004
e Board Failure and How to Fix it 2004
e CEO Performance Evaluation 2004

e Raising the Awareness of Corporate Fraud in Thailand 2005

Shareholding proportion
e None

Family relationship with other directors, executive

e None
Work Experience
Position in Other Listed Company

e 2007 - Present  Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee, Amata Corporation
Public Company Limited

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2003 - 2019

Chairman and Chairman of the Executive
Committee, Focus Development and
Construction Public Company Limited

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

Present

Present

Present

2017 - Present

2016 - Present

2016 - Present

2015 - Present

2015 - Present

2013 - Present
2010 - Present

2010 - Present

2010 - Present

2010 - Present

2010 - Present

2010 - Present

2010 - Present

Director, Moon Dance Bistro
Company Limited

Director, New Leaf Solutions
Company Limited

Director, Planet Blue Corporation
Company Limited

Director, Thai Chinese Rayong Industrial
Estate Development Company Limited
Chairman, Focus Wheig Corporation
Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power
(Rayong) 5 Company Limited
Director, Amata B. Grimm Power
(Rayong) 4 Company Limited
Director, Amata B. Grimm Power
(Rayong) 3 Company Limited
Director, Rai Arthit Company Limited
Chairman, Data In Motion

Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power
Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power 1
Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power 2
Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power 4
Company Limited

Director, Amata B. Grimm Power 5
Company Limited

Director, Amata Power (Rayong)

Company Limited

2010 - Present Director, Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong)

1 Company Limited

2010 - Present Director, Amata B. Grimm Power (Rayong)

2008 - Present
2008 - Present

2008 - Present
2002 - Present

1998 - Present
1989 - Present

2 Company Limited

Director, Amata Asia Company Limited
Director, Amata Summit Ready Built
Company Limited

Director, 888 Property Company Limited
Director, Focus Environmental Company
Limited

Director, Capital Focus Company Limited
Director, Moon dance Development
Company Limited
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MR.PUMIPAT SINACHAROEN
Age 53

Positions:

Director
Member of the Executive Committee
Chief Executive Officer

Date appointed as Director on

13 May 2019

Education

MBA, Thunderbird School of Global Management, USA

BA in Economics, Thammasat University, Thailand

Training

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 36/2005, Thai
Institute of Directors

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) 2007, Thai
Institute of Directors

Company Secretary Program (CSP) 27/2008, Thai
Institute of Directors

Leading in Disruptive World (Innovation), Stanford
University, USA

Design Thinking, Stanford University, USA

Strategic Board Master Class (SBM) 9/2020, Thai

Institute of Directors

21

Shareholding proportion
e 0.50
Family relationship with other directors, executive
e None
Work Experience
Position in Other Listed Company
e 2021 - Present Director, Kang Yong Electric
Public Company Limited
e 2005 - Present Director and Audit Committee
Fortune Parts Industry Public
Company Limited
e 2017 -2020 Executive Vice President,
PTG Energy Public Company
Limited
2002 - 2018 Chief People Officer and Director of
AP Academy/ Chief Finance Officer
(CFO) and Investor Relations, AP

(Thailand) Public Company Limited
Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization
e 2018 - Present Director, The Forest Industry

Organization, Ministry of Natural

Resources and Environment
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MS. ANCHALEE BUNSONGSIKUL
Age 53

Positions:

e Independent Director

e Member of the Audit Committee

Date appointed as Director on

e May 13, 2019

Education

e Master of Science in Finance, Saint Louis University

e Bachelor of Business Administration, Major in Finance,
Chulalongkorn University

Training

e The National Defence Course Class 63, National Defence
College

e Senior Justice Administration Program Class 24,
Institute of Civil Service Development for Judiciary
Affairs, Office of the Courts of Justice

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 163, Thai

Institute of Directors

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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e The Executive Program in Energy Literacy for a

Sustainable Future Class 12, Thailand Energy Academy

e (apital Market Leader Program Class 25, Capital Market

Academy

e Academy of Business Creativity Class 6/2517,

Sri Pratum University

Shareholding proportion

e None

Family relationship with other directors, executive

e None

Work Experience

Position in Other Listed Company

e 2022 - Present

e 2017 - Present

2015 - 2017

e 2012 -2015

Member of the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Risk .
Management Committee, |-Tail
Corporation Public Company Limited
Executive Vice President and Head
of Corporate and Institutional
Clients Division, Standard
Chartered Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited

MD & Head, Financial Markets,
Thailand, Standard Chartered Bank
(Thai) Public Company Limited

MD & Head, Corporates, Thailand,
Standard Chartered Bank (Thai)
Public Company Limited

Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

e None



p! Worlk Experience

l ’ : Position in Other Listed Company

| * None

| Position in Other Non-Listed Company / Other Organization

e 2022 - Present Director, Euro Creation Company
Limited

e 2021 -Present Managing Director, ADA Digital
(Thailand) Company Limited

e 2018 - Present Qualified Director, Creative

Economy Agency (Public

Organization)

I

MR. DAN ZONMANI
Age 59

Positions:
e Independent Director
e Member of the Audit Committee

Date appointed as Director on

e Feb 23,2021

Education

e Bachelor of Management science - International

marketing, Canberra University

Shareholding proportion

e None

Family relationship with other directors, executive

e None
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MS. NATARIN PARAMAWES / MS. ANOTAI WORASUNTHARAROM
Age 49 Age 41

Positions: Positions:

e Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing e Senior Vice President of Business Development and
Division Strategy Division

Education Education

e Master of Commerce and Accountancy, e Master of Science, Faculty of Commerce and
Chulalongkorn University Accountancy, Thammasat University

e Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University e Bachelor of Engineering, Faculty of Engineering,

Work Experience Kasetsart University

e 2021 - Present Executive Vice President of Sales Work Experience
and Marketing Division Proud Real e 2019 - Present Senior Vice President of Business
Estate Public Company Limited Development and Strategy Division

e 2018 -2021 Senior Vice President - Customer Proud Real Estate Public Company
Experience Major Development Limited
Public Company Limited e 2016 -2019 Vice President of Business

e 2012 -2018 Strategic CRM Director Ananda Development Group, Fragrant
Development Public Company Property Public Company Limited
Limited e 2012 -2016 Senior Manager (Business

Development and Product
Development - Condo BU), Pruksa
Real Estate Public Company
Limited
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MS. NARUEDEE KOSLATHIP MR. CHISARAT SURAKARN
Age 43 Age 46

Positions: Positions:

e Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting e Vice President of Project Development
Division Education

Education e Bachelor of Architecture, Kasetsart University

e MBA, Finance Major, Coventry University Work Experience

e Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting, e 2021 -Present Vice President of Project

Assumption University Development Proud Real Estate

Work Experience Public Company Limited
e 2022 - Present Senior Vice President of Finance e 2020 -2022 Assistant Vice President of Project
and Accounting Division Proud Real Development Division KWI
Estate Public Company Limited (Thailand) Public Company Limited
e 2021 -2022 Senior Controller in Accounting e 2014 -2020 Senior Project Manager Proud
and Finance UD Trucks Group Holding Company Limited

Corporation (Thailand) Company
Limited

e 2013 -2020 Vice President of Accounting
Division Minor Lifestyle Company
Limited
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MR. KITIWAT CHINRANGKHAKUN

Age 44 Age 35
Positions: Positions:
e Vice President of Project Development o
Education Department
e Bachelor of Engineering Program in Civil Engineering, Education

Chiang Mai University o

Work Experience

e 2021 - Present Vice President of Project Work Experience

Development Proud Real Estate e 2021 - Present
Public Company Limited
e 2020-2021 Assistant Vice President of

Project Development Division

Central Pattana Public Company e 2018 -2022
Limited
e 2017 -2019 Vice President of Project
Development AP (Thailand) Public
Company Limited e 2015-2018

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 26

MR. EAKCHAI TEJTHIWAT

Vice President of Corporate Marketing and PR

Bachelor of Business Administration (Marketing),

Srinakharinwirot University

Vice President of Corporate
Marketing and PR Department
Proud Real Estate Public Company
Limited

Vice President of Business
Innovation Department

PTG Energy Public Company
Limited

Assistant Vice President of Internal
Communications Department

AP (Thailand) Public Company
Limited
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/ 1. BUSINESS STRUCTURE AND OPERATIONS

1.1 Policies and Overview of
Business

Vision

More than just living

We strive to create a “living” that is more than just
“living” that meets the needs of every dimension of every
day with perfection, unity with environment, nature, and
community to transcend traditional “living” and enhance

value to society in a sustainable way.

Mission

Challenge the boundary of living

Our projects must be more than “home” or “residence.”
It must be a “lifestyle” that makes the lives of people and the
surrounding society better with a commitment to challenge
imagination and move beyond the limit of “living” in the
present form. Every project of Proud Real Estate Public
Company Limited “Company” aims to set a new standard
in living more than ever with the innovation for perfect
living that is still united with the nature and in harmony

with the environment.

Operation Strategy

In 2022, the Company focused on operating the
business under the concept of “More than just living”
through the key strategies as follows:
1. Business expansion into low-rise projects

2. Focus on projects in Bangkok

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

History
The Company was established on March 30, 1989,

under the name “Pasuputh Company Limited” to operate

general construction business for public and private
sectors. There are major changes as follows:

e On November 4, 2002, the registered Company
transformed into a public company limited.

e On November 21, 2003, the Company changed its
name to Focus Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited

e On October 5, 2004, the Company was listed in the
Market for Alternative Investment — MAI under the
Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

e On November 19, 2008, the Company changed its
name to Focus Development and Construction Public
Company Limited.

e On May 13, 2019, the Company changed its name to
Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited.

Changes in Shareholding Structure

The Board of Directors of Focus Development and
Construction Public Company Limited, in the meeting No.
1/2019 held on February 20, 2019, resolved that Focus
Development and Construction Public Company Limited
issue and offer 451,388,889 capital increase ordinary
shares at a price of 1.44 baht per share and considered
and to approve the investment in real estate development
business for residential development by purchasing 2 lots
of land from Proud Resort Hua Hin Company Limited in the

amount of 7 rai 2 ngan 48.8 square wah and from Vana



Nava Company Limited in the amount of 5 rai 1 ngan 9.5
square wah, which is 12 rai 3 ngan 57.85 square wah in
total, located in Hua Hin District, Prachuap Khiri Khan
Province with the purchase price of 1,325 million baht,
with the terms of payment for the land as follows:

1. Paid as capital increase ordinary shares worth 650
million baht to Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop and Ms. Proudputh
Liptapanlop.

2. Loans from financial institutions amounting to 650
million baht

3. Working capital within the Company and/or promissory
notes of 25 million baht
According to the conditions under Clause 1 (paid as

capital increase ordinary shares), Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop

and Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop are major shareholders

of Focus Development and Construction Public Company

Limited with a proportion of more than 70 percent and
changed the Company’s name to Proud Real Estate Public

Company Limited with the securities initial “PROUD".

Significant Changes and Development

Formerly, Focus Development and Construction Public
Company Limited was mainly engaged in the construction
business by accepting construction works from government
agencies, state enterprises and private sector as a direct
contractor (Main contractor) or Sub-contractor. At present,
after the name changed to Proud Real Estate Public Company
Limited, it has changed to focus on real estate development

under the core concept of “More than just living.”
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Significant Events of the Group
Year 2022
e April

Prompt Solution Management Company Limited was
established. The Company holds 99.99% shares with
registered capital of 500,000 baht. It aims to manage
condominium juristic persons and other services relating
to real estate.
e July

Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited, a subsidiary of
which the Company holds 99.99% of shares, resolved to
increase the registered capital by 50 million baht (ordinary
shares of 500,000 shares at a par value of 100 baht per
share from the original registered capital of 1 million baht
(ordinary shares of 10,000 shares at a par value of 100 baht
per share) to a new registered capital of 50 million baht
(500,000 ordinary shares at par value of 100 Baht per share)
¢ November

The Company received an award at the 17th “Property
Guru Thailand Property Award” of the project “VEHHA”
in the category of Development Awards, Best Condo

Development (Hua Hin)

Year 2021
e April

Proud Horseshoe Company Limited was established with
the Company holding 99.99% of shares with registered
capital of 20,000,000 baht and the aim to develop real estate.
e August

Convent Beta Company Limited was established with
the Company holding 99.97% of shares with a registered
capital of 1,000,000 baht and the aim to develop real estate.
e September

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited, a subsidiary
company in which the Company holds 99.99% of shares,
registered an additional capital of 750 million baht (1.5
million ordinary shares at a par value of 100 baht per
share and 6 million net preferred shares at a par value of
100 baht per share) from the original registered capital of

50 million baht (common 0.5 million ordinary shares at a

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

par value of 100 baht each) to a new registered capital of
800 million baht (2 million ordinary shares at a par value
of 100 baht each and 6 million net preferred shares at a

par value of 100 baht each).

Year 2020
e February

The Company launched InterContinental Residences
Hua Hin to the public for the first time.
e July

The Company issued and allocated 31,679,999 units
of warrants to purchase ordinary shares of the Company
for the second time (“Proud-W2 Warrants”) to the existing
shareholders with a period of 3 years based on the
shareholding proportion on July 1, 2017, which the first
exercise date is scheduled to fall on September 29, 2017
and the last exercise date falls on July 6, 2020. On June
25, 2020, there is 1 shareholder declaring the rights,
amounting 88 shares at an exercise price of 1.533 baht
per share equal to an amount of 134.90 baht.
e September

*  The Company won “Dot Property Thailand Award
20207, including the Best Luxury Condominium Hua
Hin Award and the Best Branded Residence Hua Hin
Award for “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”.

* Transfer of the last unit of condominium assets under
the project name “Focus Ploenchit.” The project was
coming from the acquisition of Focus Development
and Construction Public Company Limited

e November

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited received the
awards at the “Property Guru Thailand Property Award”
event for the project “InterContinental Residences Hua
Hin” as follows:

1. In the DEVELOPMENT AWARDS category, Best
Luxury Condo Development (Hua Hin) and Best
Branded Residence.

2. In the DESIGN AWARDS category, Best Condo
Landscape Architectural Design, and in the BEST
OF THAILAND AWARDS category, Best Condo

Development (Thailand).



1.2 Nature of Business Operation

1.2.1 Revenue Structure

Revenue Classified by Business Type

2022 2021 2020
ltems Million o Million . Million o
THB THB THB
Real Estate Sales Revenues 2,108.37 99.91 - - 181.65 91.65
Financial Revenues 0.33 0.01 0.47 12.98 0.37 0.19
Other Revenues 1.59 0.08 3.15 87.02 16.18 8.16
Total Revenue 2,110.29 100.00 3.62 100.00 198.20 100.00

In 2022 Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited had a total revenue of 2,110 million baht, an increase of 58,195%
from the amount of 4 million baht in 2021 as a result of sales revenue recognition from the sale of InterContinental

projects Residences Hua Hin in the amount of 2,100 baht, representing 99.51% of total revenue.

1.2.2 Product Information

(1) Characteristics of products and services
The Company mainly focuses on real estate development business, which currently focuses on developing projects

in prime locations including Bangkok and coastal tourism cities. The details are as follows

Real Estate for Sale Business

Project

Location

Project Type
Land Ownership
Project Area
Number of Units
Project Value
(Million Baht)
Construction
Duration

Sales Progress
(Percentage of
Project Value)

Land in Development Projects

InterContinental | Prachuap Kiri | Condominium| Hua Hin Alpha |7-2-48.8| 238 3,813 Quarter |93 percent
Residences Khan 71 Company 3/2020 -
Hua Hin Limited Quarter
2/2023

Vehha Hua Hin |Prachuap Kiri | Condominium Hua Hin 5-1-9.05| 364 2,290 Quarter |13 percent
Khan Sky Living 1/2023 -
Company Quarter
Limited 3/2025

VI Ari Bangkok Detached Proud 1-0-2.2 6 495 Quarter N/A

Metropolis house Horseshoe 3/2022 -
Company Quarter
Limited 1/2024
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Land Awaiting Development Projects
Convent Bang Rak Condominium| Convent Beta |1-2-38.5 180 3,970 Quarter In the
Company 2/2023 - | process of
Limited Quarter | obtaining
3/2026 EIA
approval
InterContinental Residences Hua Hin InterContinental Residences Hua Hin has the following
Project key features:

The first luxury housing project managed by the 1. ltisthefirstand only InterContinental luxury residential
global hotel chain “IHG” on a plot of land of 7 rai 2 ngan development in Thailand, located in the best location of
48.8 square wah by the beach in the heart of Hua Hin on Hua Hin District, which is priced at the new prominent
Petchakasem Road, between Soi Hua Hin 71 (opposite level as the last beachfront land in the middle of Hua
Market Village shopping center), which is constructed as a Hin.

low-rise condominium building with one 7-storey building
and eight 4-storey buildings, totaling 238 units.

The Company uses the InterContinental brand under
the project name of “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”
with the objective of meeting the needs of the high-end
customer group to deliver a superior residential experience
with a full range of hotel-like services and facilities under
the international standards of InterContinental.

As the first residential project in Thailand under the
international brand InterContinental Hotels and Resorts,
one of the exclusive brands in the world, it is also the
prototype of residential development under the concept
“More Than Just Living”, this has made InterContinental

Residences Hua Hin bring together the best elements to

create an experience, living and services that are unique.
Also, the interior design of the project is a combination of
contemporary style and unique colonial architecture, with 2. InterContinental Hotel Group (IHG) has entered into
the building’s location that overlooks the sea. Some units a contract with Company, providing the project with
include a private pool and other facilities. features ready to different services such as concierge

counter in the lobby area, luggage storage with porters,

golf carts, and other services such as the Beach Pavilion
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which can be used as banquet facilities with catering
services from the hotel.

. Support the life of family members living together with
spacious rooms and public areas that support joint
activities such as chess courts, mazes, etc.

. Green area and public area of the project, amounting
around 4 rai, with approximately 70% of the project area
which is equal to approximately 7,000 square meters
for a large garden with secluded beach and communal
facilities such as 7 swimming pools for children, families,
elderly, and people who need exercise, including beach
pool, hidden gym, and other facilities.

. Exclusive access to 5,900 InterContinental Hotel Group
hotels around the world and exclusive “Proud Privileges”
membership from its subsidiaries and partners, as well
as access to 111 Social Club, a colonial beachfront café

located next to InterContinental Residences Hua Hin.

6. Units have front with a width of 6 meters and full-height

glass doors, and approximately 80% of the project area
are sea view. For penthouse room type, they have sea
front that is approximately 9 meters long with 270

degrees sea view.

7. International service with InterContinental standard
which is available 7 days a week and 24 hours a day.
Residents of the condominium will receive international
hotel standard services such as butler service, concierge
service, special meal delivery service directly to the
room, chef preparation for banquet, house cleaner
service, laundry for bed linen, housing repair, free
internet access in public areas, and shuttle service to
major locations near the project.

8. All 9 buildings are allocated into 7 groups to suit
various needs. They consist of one 7-storey building
and eight 4-storey buildings, and all the units of which
are fully furnished in accordance with the standards of
InterContinental.

9. The balcony is almost 10 sg.m. wide with a day bed to

view the sea as much as possible.

Vehha Hua Hin Project

The Vehha project is in prime
location, only less than 10 minutes to
travel to popular destinations in Hua
Hin. It is considered a landmark in
the heart of Hua Hin, surrounded by
tourist attractions, lifestyle sources, and
complete facilities. It is close to Cicada
Market and Tamarind Market - Hua Hin’s
famous night markets — and Bluport
shopping mall. In addition, in terms
of travel, it is considered convenient
and easy, and there are many future
transportation projects that will be
developed to make traveling to Hua
Hin even faster to meet the needs of all
groups of people with different lifestyles.

The concept of the project is Happiness Happens;
complete with Family Zone, Relax Zone and Retreat Zone,
including a common area of almost 2 rai (2,647 sq.m.) that
is situated in between of more than 10 floors to meet every
lifestyle in a variety of ways according to the concept of

“More Than Just Living”. This is a combination of relaxation
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and resort-level service with superior services including
services from world-class hotel chains with the Holiday Inn
Vana Nava Hua Hin, an IHG hotel, and the first in Thailand to
provide a free access to Vana Nava Water Park for 5 years.

The definition of Vehha is the tallest condominium in
Hua Hin city with sea view in every room, ready to fulfill the
complete lifestyle. The design of the buildings has a single
corridor that allows every room to open up to a panoramic
sea view from morning to evening, and residents to live
simply with fully furnished and decorated room. Moreover,
the interior of the room is designed for good lighting in
the room, emphasizing on bright airiness that opens up
the view to see from every corner of the room.

The highlight of the design of the project allows you
to see the sea view from every square inch in your very
own room. There are only 364 residential units and there
are 7 room types to choose from to meet various needs,
including 1 Bedroom, 1 Bedroom Plus, 1 Bedroom Plus
Corner, 2 Bedroom, 2 Bedroom Jacuzzi, Penthouse,
Penthouse Duplex, with living space ranging from 28 -
349 sqg.m., whose functions in the room are designed to
meet the needs of various lifestyles in every generation. In
addition, the project uses high-quality materials that meet
standards, and are designed to be suitable as a perfect

vacation destination.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

VI Ari Project

The project is a modern style detached house in the
1970s-1980s located in Soi Ari 3. The project has unique
features such as roof design with long overhangs, small
slope, thin roof structure, with horizontal and vertical
sunshades that are beautifully and harmoniously
proportioned as parts of the building, proportional window
openings suitable for the house, and a large green space
designed to interlace with the usable area on each floor

to create a good atmosphere for living.

Future Projects
Empty land that needs to be developed

The Company sees the opportunity for land development
which align with the Company’s cash flow by looking at
both Bangkok and tourist cities both high-rise project and
low-rise project.
Privileges for project customers

Most of the projects that the Company is developing
today and in the future have privileges created
for the customers in terms of all living aspects through the
benefits of “Proud Privileges”, which include InterContinental
Hua Hin Resort, InterContinental Phuket Resort, Holiday
Inn Resort Vana Nava Hua Hin, True Arena Hua Hin,

Vana Nava Water Park, Vana Sky, Blueport Hua Hin, 111



Social Club (colonial style house, which is located next to
InterContinental Residences Hua Hin and renovated into

a beachfront clubhouse.)

(2) Marketing and Competition

The year 2022 is considered the year of market and
economic recovery, especially in the real estate sector
in which the overall picture of the market has adjusted
better since the Covid-19 situation, it was found that in
every sector there are ways to cope with new strategies
to support business operations amidst the risks. The
Company has a new business plan for expanding its
product portfolio, adding more projects to be more diverse,
such as the affordable luxury condominium project, the
tallest condominium among the landmarks of Hua Hin.
We also planned to launch 2 new projects in Bangkok,
namely Romm Covent, and add a horizontal project in the
form of detached houses, Vi Ari, adhering to the primary
business philosophy, under the commitment to deliver
something beyond housing, but “More Than Just Living”.
The company’s marketing plays a particularly significant
role in conveying this philosophy and concepts to target

customers in a concrete manner.

Characteristics of Customer and Target Group
The Company has researched the behavior and needs
of target customers in various forms together with experts
through Future Lab to create products and services that
best meet the needs of customers. These insights are also
applied to strategic planning and marketing activities.
The company’s target audience remains at B+ class
and above with relatively little financial or revenue impact
from COVID-19. In addition, the customer group is divided
into distinct types to penetrate and understand their needs
as much as possible before offering products and sales.
For example, dividing customers according to the purpose
of purchase; for investment, for living in a vacation home,

as a second home, etc.

Distribution and Distribution Channels
The Company has planned distribution channels
in accordance with the strategic plan with continuous
adjustments to situations and type of products as follows:
1. Sales by the Company’s sales team: Employees will
conduct sales activities both inside the project’s
sales office and outside the project, such as road
show booths at various locations, department stores,
residential fairs, hotels affiliated with Proud Group
Co., Ltd. The sales team are trained and improved
according to the company’s service standards.
2. Creating Agent & International Sales Team
2022 is an extraordinarily successful year with
sales through agent and the company will increase
distribution channels and build distribution channel

partnerships through other real estate agencies.

Organizing Marketing and Promotional Activities

From the company’s expanded business plan, the
Company has worked with various brands and products
and services that are suitable for the target audience or
have participated in more residential contests in various
aspects such as Bang & Olufsen, BNH Hospital, Bedee by
BDMS application, etc. Which not only build awareness on
a project, but also focuses making the Company’s name
well known and trustworthy which are a continuous activity

with media groups.

(3) Procurement of products and services

Real Estate Industry Outlook

The real estate overview in 2022 is likely to be slightly
better than 2021. According to the forecast of the Real
Estate Information Center, Government Housing Bank
(REIC), only for low-rise projects have expanded by 3
percent in accordance with the GDP forecast for the year
2022 which will move to 3-4 percent. It is expected that
the number of transfers will be 98,000 units in 2021, while
in 2022 an increase of at least 100,000 units. Of these, in
2021, new launches of low-rise projects are 25,000 units.
In 2022, it may expand to 1 time higher, increasing to
50,000 units.
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However, construction costs in 2022 will go up due to
the increase in the price of materials used in construction.
For example, the price of steel increased by 30 percent,
while cement, roofing, and sanitary ware increased by
10 percent, causing the cost of horizontal projects to
increase. Transportation costs has also increased due to
high oil prices. Trend of economic recovery in 2022 is not
certain as there might be shortages of foreign workers in
construction sites. If there is a shortage of labor, the cost
will increase further, resulting in home prices rising by
at least 10-15 percent. This is a challenge for developers
because the purchasing power of customers has not
returned to normal due to the impact of COVID-19. Banks
are stricter in lending because the cost is more expensive,
but the burden cannot all be passed on to the consumers
as their purchasing power is limited.

The positive factor is the reopening of the country after
a particularly improved COVID situation, especially the
purchases demand that was held back in 2021 and hoped

to return in 2022 when the economy is better.

Forecast of direction of housing supply and demand in
2022

REIC predicts supply and demand direction for
housing in 2022 that there will be 77,221 units of land
development permits, an increase of 12.7 percent, and
there will be new housing in Bangkok-metropolitan areas
of approximately 96,803 units worth 508,264 million baht,
an increase from the previous year by 87.9% and 132.1%
respectively. This figure includes horizontal residential
projects of 49,492 units, amounting to 336,008 million
baht, and condominium project of 47,311 units, amounting
to 172,256 million baht. 310,976 construction permits will
be issued, divided into 264,031 low-rise residential units,
46,945 residential condominium units, while housing
demand in 2022 is expected to have about 373,253

housing ownership transfer units worth 997,471 million

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

baht, an increase from the previous year by 8.59% and
5.61% of it comprises of ownership transfer of low-rise
residential units of 279,447 and transfer of ownership of

condominium units of 93,806

Housing market in Cha-am, Hua Hin and Pranburi
According to a survey by Knight Frank Chartered
Company Limited, in the first half of 2022, there was an
improvement compared to the same period in the previous
year because there is low supply of condominiums in
the market and the developers always organize sales
promotions to reduce the number of unsold units. However,
it was found that there was only one new project launched
in the first half of the year, Hay Hua Hin, with starting
price of about 1.39 million baht, which is not a beachfront
project. However, there are still no new beachfront projects
opened in the first half of the year even if the supply in
the market is low. From the survey and data collection,
it was found that new high-rise projects will be launched
in the third quarter of 2022, which should increase the
competitiveness and diversity of the condominium market

in the Hua Hin area.

Supply

The cumulative supply of condominiums in the Cha
Am - Hua Hin - Khao Tao area before 2008 to the first half
of 2022 is 28,307 units. In the first half of 2022, there is
supply of 1 new condominium project, approximately 252
units, which is Hay Hua Hin project located on Phet Kasem
Road near Hua Na Thap Tai Road. Most of the condominium
supply is located in Cha-Am area with a percentage of 57%,
followed by Khao Takiab and the non-beachfront with 13%
and 12% respectively. The supply of condominiums in the
Hua Hin area accounted for 10%. Condominiums located
in the Khao Tao area accounted for 8% of the total supply,
with the majority being condominiums with no sea views
accounting for 55% and sea view condominiums accounting

for 45% of the total supply.



Condominuim Supply at Cha-Am,
Huahin, and Kao Tao in 2012 to first half of 2022
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Demand

In the first half of 2022, condominiums in Cha-am-Hua
Hin-Khao Tao areas have a total of 22,344 units sold from
a total supply of 28,307 units, representing a sales rate of
79 percent, with the sales rate improvement compared to
the year 2021. There was a total of 1,773 units sold in the
first half of 2022 alone. From survey and data collection,
it was found that overall, the number of units left for sale
as of the first half of 2022 is approximately 5,963 units.

The Thai people living in Bangkok are still 90 percent
of the main buyers. The remaining 5 percent are Thais in
other provinces and 5% foreigners. The demand is quite
responsive with the average selling price below 100,000
baht per square meter, which has a relatively good selling

rate and are largely non-sea view projects.
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The condominiums in Khao Takiab have the highest
selling rate at 96%, followed by non-seaside condominiums
in Khao Tao area with selling rate of 93% and 91%
respectively. Regarding the selling rate, the Hua Hin
and Cha-am areas have a selling rate of 88 percent and
69 percent respectively with the Cha-am area having
the highest number of units remaining at 5,078, which
is approximately 85% of the total remaining supply.
Nowadays, seaside land in Hua Hin for project development
are almost used up. The remaining land for project
development is located in Cha-am area. However, the
locations in the Cha-am area are still less popular than Hua
Hin because it is quite far from the amenities compared to
a condominium in Hua Hin. However, there is still enough
land left for development in Khao Takiab zone, compared
to recent beachfront projects, the average selling price
per square meter is about 150,000 baht. There is a lot of
space left in the mountainside inland to develop projects
and should be of interest to investors because it is in the

downtown area of Hua Hin and is favored by foreigners.

Supply, Demand, and Sales Rate of condominuim
dividing by location in the first half of 2022
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Selling Price

The average selling price of condominiums with sea
views in this area is about 143,000 baht per square meter.
Selling prices increased by 1% from 2021. New sea view
projects have an average selling price per room as high
as 250,000 baht per square meter, while the average

selling price of hon-sea view condominiums in this area is
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about 69,800 baht per square meter. The selling price is
relatively stable and has decreased by 1.3 percent from
2021 because there are projects with more than 50 percent
of available rooms left for sale in the Cha-am area. The
entrepreneurs therefore continue to organize promotions
and discounts to close the project sales. The new non-sea
zone projects have selling prices of about 52,000 baht per
square meter, causing the average price of the non-sea

zone to decrease slightly.

Average Selling Price of the Condonimiun in the area divided
by the scenario in 2012 - 2022
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Source: Research Knight Frank Chartered (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Trends

The market direction of Hua Hin condominium in 2022
has improved and increased purchasing power, resulting in
fewer units sold in the market, especially with the seaside
projects where there are not many units left for sale and
land in the seaside development in Hua Hin or Khao Takiab
town is scarce and difficult to develop. However, if a project
is developed next to the sea, the selling price will have a
direction to adjust higher. There may be an average price
per square meter higher than 150,000 baht due to the lack
of land left, continuously increasing price of construction
materials. The project in Cha-am zone may take some time
to sell unsold units with decreased price due to the age of
the condominium as seen in some projects.

While the completed project in Hua Hin is ready at the
beginning of 2022, there are still ongoing promotions to
close the project, reflecting that the condominium project
in Cha Am - Hua Hin - Khao Takiab is balanced in terms of
supply and demand. According to the survey, there will

be new high-rise projects launched in Vana Nava water



park area. The highlight is the view from the living room
overlooking the sea. This will be a new supply of the
market in the second half of 2022 and should cause some
excitement in the Hua Hin condominium market. From
the launch of the said project, it reflects that the trend of
increasing condominiums is expanding to areas that are
not adjacent to the sea because there is still quite a lot of
land left to be developed, and with attractive selling price
and features, the project may receive good responses

from buyers.

Bangkok housing market

Research Department at Colliers Thailand found
that the overall supply of new condominiums for sale in
Bangkok at the end of Q3 2022 decreased markedly as
many developers prepared plans for the launch more than
10,000 of new units in the last quarter. It was found that
there were only 9 new condominium projects with 5,491
units and a total investment value of 14,683 million baht, a
decrease from the previous quarter of 5,177 units or 51.4
percent. Moreover, out of all the newly opened supply,
they are still developed by major developers in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, up to 4,398 units which is80% with
a total investment value of approximately 12,580 million
baht, along with non-listed developers only 1,093 units,
or 19.9%, with a total investment value of approximately
2,103 million baht. It is expected that during the last quarter
of the year, the launch of new condominium projects will
become active again and may result in new supply of
condominiums in the Bangkok area this year surpassing
40,000 units again. During the past third quarter, it was
found that major developers have opened sample rooms
of many new condominium projects which will be launched
during the last quarter of the year for a visit. Both in the
area along the Chao Phraya River as well as in the city
center area, including in the area along the Purple Line
train route: Tao Poon - Rat Burana (Kanchanapisek Ring
Road), which is a new route that its land has started to be
delivered and the construction will begin at the end of this

year. As aresult, the launch of new condominium projects in

the area is bustling again. It is found that in the past, some
land development projects have the developer changed,
including the suspension of sales of condominium projects
in some condominium projects due to sales problems that
did not achieve the goals.

Some major developers are preparing for the launch
of new projects again after delaying plans to launch new
projects in the last two years, and most still choose to
launch new projects in areas with their relative confidence
in purchasing power and with less competitors such as
in areas near the new train station under construction,
educational facilities, work sources, etc. In addition, some
projects have been redesigned to meet the needs of more

customers in the last quarter of the year.

Qaurterly Newly Launched Condominium Demand
on the Third Quarter of 2022 divided by Location

@ Inner Area (Sathorn,
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(Krung Thon Buri -
Kanlapaphruek)

Outer Bangkok

Source: Research Team, Colliers Thailand

Qaurterly Newly Launched Condominium Demand
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Supply

For the supply of new condominiums launched in the
third quarter of the year. 2022 for Bangkok area in the past,
most developers still choose to launch projects at a price of
less than 2 million baht per unit and are still located in the
most outskirts of Bangkok 1,877 units, 34.2%, followed by
areas around the east (Sukhumvit) 1,704 units, or 31.1%.
Developments in the inner-city areas (Sathorn, Silom,
early Sukhumvit) are the areas where no new projects
launched. However, some developers are still preparing
for a launch in these areas in the last quarter of the year.
Research Department of Colliers Thailand predicts that
in the last quarter of this year, overall, the launch of new
condominium projects in the Bangkok area will be bustling
again. Condominium projects near universities, the Chao
Phraya River, or even condominium projects along the
mass transit lines that are under construction will still be
popular due to the purchasing power of developers in the

last quarter of the year.

Selling Price

Average selling price of newly launched condominiums
during the third quarter. 2022 is about 95,330 baht per
square meter, an increase of 8.7 percent from the previous
quarter. Since some new projects launched in the past
quarter are located next to BTS stations, the average
selling price is quite high, but Colliers Thailand Research
Department found that in the past quarter, there are only
2 new condominium projects launched for sale in the
Bangkok area, namely price range 50,001 - 100,000 baht
per square meter, which is 3,451 units or 64.5%, and the
price range of 100,001 -150,000 baht per square meter,
which is 2,040 units or 35.5 %. Both price ranges are prices
that are easily affordable to purchasers. It is the price
range that the purchasing power can still respond very
well in the past. Most of these are condominium projects
near new mass transit lines under construction and in the

eastern outskirts of the city. Most developers still use the
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price as the strategic selling point to attract the purchasing
power, as well as designing new room styles to present to
customers in response to the needs of the generation of
purchasing power. It was found that some projects have

more than 35 room designs.

Qaurterly Newly Launched Condominium Sales Rate Divided by
Qaurter at the End of the Third Quarter of 2022
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Demand

Foreign purchasing power is still the target group of
large developers in the stock market, especially projects. in
the areas of Sukhumvit, Rama9 and Ratchadapisek, which
are central business areas. Although many developers have
been able to sell units in projects along the mass transit
lines that are being built for foreign buyers as seen from
the sales of new condominiums that have been launched
for sale in the past. It is found that some major developers
have modified the room layout in some projects under
construction by adjusting, reducing sales units, merging
some sales units together to increase the size of the unit
according to the needs of the purchasing power, especially
foreign purchasing power which still favors large-space
units that have been quite well received. Colliers found
that condominium projects in Bangkok are still gaining
interestin joint ventures with foreign developers, especially
developers from Japan. In the last quarter, there were
more than 3 projects with joint venture plan announced,
mostly ones located in Sukhumvit, Phra Rama 4, Bangna

and On Nut areas.



Theaverage selling rate of newly launched condominiums
in the third quarter is approximately 43.0 percent, a
decrease of 1.0 percent from the previous quarter. Although
there were new condominium projects open for sale in the
past, many projects were able to generate sales very well,
but at the same time, there were some large projects that
are unable to generate sales as expected by developers. As
a result, the average selling rate dropped slightly. Colliers
Thailand Research Department found that domestic and
foreign purchasing power continues to be interested in the
condominium market in Bangkok as seen from the picture
of Sales offices of many new projects crowded with a lot
of interested customers. Most of the purchasing power is
still looking for and interested in condominium projects
with low selling price per unit. Condominiums with selling
prices ranging from approximately 50,000-100,000 baht

per square meter and an average of selling price of 1.2-2.0

million baht are still interesting for buyers. Consequently,
some projects have sold more than 50.0 percent of the
units. in such brief period., Colliers Thailand Research
Department views that condominium projects in the price
range will still continuously be popular products among,
both developers and buyers in the last quarter of the year.
It is predicted that major developers in the market will
continue to develop new projects in the said price range
to the market in large numbers. Most of them are in the
area along the yellow, pink, and blue train lines, etc., and
will continue to receive interest from different purchasing
powers, reflecting the revitalization of the market that
has begun to improve this year, especially during the
last quarter of the year. The market will be highly active
because developers are preparing to launch more than 15
new projects with a total investment value of more than

20,000 million baht in the last quarter.

Qaurterly Average Sales Price of the Newly Launched on the First Quarter of 2016 - the Third Quarter of 2022
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(4) Assets Used in Business Operations
As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have main assets used in business operations

as follows:

1. Real Estate Development Cost

The cost of real estate development includes land and
buildings for sale in various projects with the book value
in the consolidated financial statement as of December 31,
2022, equal to 2,721.45 million baht. The subsidiaries have
the land and premises of 1,630 million baht mortgaged
with the commercial bank as a collateral for loans borrowed
from the bank. The real estate development cost is detailed

as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Items Total
Cost of land for development 1,998.41
Real Estate Development Cost 636.21
Financial Costs 86.83
Total 2,721.45

As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have net outstanding real estate development

costs according to the project-for-sale account as follows:

Book
Value
Cost (Net)
X As of 31
No. Project Name Encumbrance
December
2022
(million
baht)
1 |InterContinental 1,073.50| Mortgaged
Residences Hua Hin with financial
2 | VEHHA Project 278.27| Iinstitutions
3 | VI Ari Project 205.59
4 | Future Projects 1,164.09
Total 2,721.45

2. Building & Equipment
As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have buildings and equipment used for

business operations as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Cost Cost Book
Details Encumbrance
Price Price Value
Office 55.58| (13.61)| 41.97 None
Supplies &
Accessories
Vehicles 0.82| (0.31) 0.51 None
Total 56.40| (13.92)| 42.48

3. Right-of-use Assets
As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have rights of use assets of use rights in

business operations as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Cost Cost Book
Details Encumbrance
Price Price Value
Land 771 (1.71) 6.00 None
Building 20.21| (16.34) 3.78 None
Vehicles 2.45 (1.97) 0.48 None
Total 30.28| (20.02)| 10.26

4. Intangible Assets
As of December 31, 2022, the Company and its
subsidiaries have intangible assets used in business

operations, namely software and computer program

licenses, with a net book value 0f4.78 million baht.




1.3 Shareholding structure of the
Company Group

1.3.1 Shareholding structure of the
Company Group

The Company has a policy to invest in real estate
development business or if there is any business that is
attractive and has good returns, the Company may consider
investing through the consideration and approval of the
Board of Directors

The management policy of subsidiary companies is
to invest long-term in shareholding. The directors who
are representatives of the Company will be sent to join
the management of the subsidiary in proportion to the
Company’s shareholding to set important policies and

control the business operations of the subsidiaries in

order to be in the right direction and generate profits for
the company.

The proportion of investment in subsidiaries as of
December 31,2022, is equivalent to 25.96 percent of total
assets in the Company’s financial statements. In the future,
the Company will invest in other businesses in addition to
the existing ones based on potential risks, as well as good
returns to the Company.

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited is a real
estate developer in Thailand that currently has only
one segment: real estate development business group
that focuses on creating residential projects that elevate
“residence” into a living experience under the concept of
“More than just living”, which combines relaxation and
resort-level services, allowing you to immerse yourself in

nature and the luxury of modern life every day.

Investment Structure of the Company Group

Proud Real PLC.

99.99% 99.97% 99.97%

99.99% 99.99%

Hua Hin Alpha 71
Real Estate
Development

Hua Hin Sky Living
Real Estate
Development

Convent Beta
Real Estate
Development

Prompt Solution
Management
Real Estate Service,
Development

Proud Horseshoe
Real Estate
Development




1.3.2 Persons with Possible Conflicts

- None -

1. 3. 3 Relationship with major
shareholder’s business group

Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop and Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop
are major shareholders of the Company, holding 70.48 %
of shares and are directors of the Company which have an
agenda that may have a conflict of interest or connected
transactions. The Company will proceed in accordance with
the SET's rules to protect the interests of the Company
and shareholders. Directors with conflicts of interest will
not participate in decision-making on the agenda with

conflicts of interest.

1.3.4 Shareholders
(1) List of the first 10 major shareholders of the
Company as of the closing date of the register on December

30, 2022, as follows:

No. Shareholders Nusr::reersof Pro;z;;tlon
1 Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 226,046,445 35.24
2 |Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop| 226,046,444 35.24
3 |Ramkhamhaeng 191 62,000,000 9.67
Co., Ltd.

4 |Ms. Nannalin 9,789,200 1.53
Paiboonpreedee

5 |Mr. Thaninchot 9,500,000 1.48
Tantiphanrak

6 |Mr. Wuttichai 7,977,700 1.24
Piriyothaisakul

7 |Mr. Sinchoke 7,692,300 1.20
Piriyothaisakul

8 |Mrs. Naparat 4,525,800 0.71
Sihanatkathakul

9 |Ms. Orachon 4,476,600 0.70
Charoenponganan

10 |Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen 3,177,500 0.50
Other shareholders 80,237,051 12.50

641,469,040 100.00

Source : Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(2) Agreement Between Major Shareholders

- None -

1.4 Amount of registered capital
and paid-up capital

The Company has aregistered capital of 673,148,951.00
baht with a paid-up registered capital of 641,469,040 baht
divided into 641,469,040 ordinary shares with a par value
of 1 baht per share.

1.5 Issuance of other securities

- None -

1.6 Dividend Payment Policy

The Company will pay dividends of not less than 40%
of net profit after tax and legal reserve or the resolution of
the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors will consider
the dividend payment for the benefit of the shareholders,
such as a reserve for future investment, reserve money
for repayment of loans, or as working capital within the

company.
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/ 2. RISK MANAGEMENT

2.1 Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Plan

The company has continuously implemented corporate risk management. It is
considered a vital component of every process in business operations that is linked at
all levels.

Due to the changing circumstances, there are high uncertainties from many factors,
both externally and internally, affecting the organizational context, and are challenging
for business operations to achieve their goals. In the past, unexpected crises, natural
disasters, epidemics, and various threats have affected the ability to conduct business

and may cause disruption of critical processes.

2.2 Risk factors for the Company’s business
operations

1) Risk from legal changes and regulations that may affect
the real estate development business.

The company operates in the category of development of residential real estate
projects under relevant laws, regulations, rules, and regulations. Currently, there are laws
and many related regulations which changes in each area depending on the economic
situation and policies from the government sector, such as, the Land Allocation Act
which includes the town planning law, traffic planning and control area arrangements,
etc., which may pose a risk of inconsistent operations with laws and regulations.

The Company is aware of such risks with a review of the law and all relevant
regulations are up to date in all areas where the project is developed to perform the

work in accordance with the requirements in all respects.
2) Risk from competition in real estate development

business

Real estate development business has many business competitors. As a result, there
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is more competition among small companies outside the
stock market. Large companies within the stock market,
which is considered an important direct competitor,
together with the Company’s reputation in the real estate
development business in a brief period, results in less
credibility compared to a company that has been known for
a long time. At present, many competitors have a variety
of development models that meets the needs of customers
very well. In addition, various companies have strategies
to continuously boost sales to build more customer base
and reduce the number of inventories.

The company has risk management guidelines by
presenting the name of the company to be more widely
known among the customers of each project, such as
continuous advertising and marketing communications
in magazines and other media to penetrate high-end to
upper-level customers for the InterContinental Residences
Hua Hin , etc., as well as studying the possibility of
developing strategies to meet the needs of customers,
both interesting locations, mass transit system, as well as
various innovations to be applied in future projects, etc. The
Company aims to become a leading real estate development
company within 1-2 years from now on through the risk

management.

3) Risk from the spread of COVID-19

Due to the current epidemic situation of COVID- 19,
business operations must be carefully conducted. This is
due to the need to modify the operational plan from the
original plan. In terms of the work of the employees within
the company, it is necessary to adjust the new working style
to bein line with preventive measures to avoid contact with
the COVID-2019. Regarding marketing planning, originally,
there were both short-term and long-term plans, resulting
in a change in the form of an innovative marketing plan to
better meet the needs of customers including sales from
the original plan to sale to foreign customers. At present, it
has not met the target set by the Company. The purchasing
power base of Thai customers helps to achieve the overall

sales target.
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The Company has set a new management approach
with a focus in line with prevention of COVID-2019
infection by allowing employees to work from home in
order not to have contact to other people to facilitate the
equipment for employees to work continuously. Moreover,
the Company has a marketing and sales plan focusing on
domestic customers but also pays attention to foreign
customers by elaborating project information to foreign
sales representatives, so they know the details and for

foreign interested parties to be able to trade together.

4) Risk from Land Acquisition

On several occasions, potential land requires high
number of financial resources. With limited resources at this
early stage, itimpossible to have an enough amount of land
that will support the future in the medium and long term

The Company has studied additional guidelines in
investment guidelines for new projects, which is defined
as a business plan by planning both short-term and long-
term to develop additional new projects, both in terms
of condominiums. and low-rise projects according to the
appropriate period in order not to be dependent on only

one part.

5) Labor and Contractor Hiring Risks

At present, real estate development business and
recruitment of workers and contractors encounter
readiness and high potential issues, due to the substantial
number of businesses in this category, including a higher
competitiveness. In addition, the Company doesn’t have a
long reputation in the real estate development industry
and low number of projects comparing to new businesses.
This may be unattractive in the eyes of contractors enough
to corporate with us comparing to other companies that
have been known for a long time. Additionally, the number
of projects are low. This may make the contractors worry
about no new project in the future. Contractor recruitment,
therefore, becomes difficult. As a result, the Company may
delay the construction and it may not be efficient enough

to meet the standards set by the Company.



The Company is aware of such problems and is
creating more credibility for the contractor. The Company
undertakes various construction works to create interest
in working together by building confidence that there will
be ongoing projects to attract contractors to collaborate

with the Company in the future.

6) Risk from Fluctuating Raw
Material Price

Fluctuating raw material price affects cost such as
metal price and gas price that is the transportation cost

and higher labor expense.

7) Risk from Economic Volatility

Overview of the economy in 2022 in the past real
estate sector, it was considered to have a severe negative
impact on the development, such as competition from
various companies that continued to develop real estate
and economic slowdown which causes Thai customers to
be more concerned about spending, and problems from
the global economy which lowers the ratio of foreigners
compared to the past year. Therefore, there is a risk
that product sales will be more difficult and will affect all
companies in the real estate development business.

The Company has considered the possibility of
developing projects to survive in the current economic
situation. The Company has studied the economic
conditions that may affect the business overall and the

response and needs of customers. To prepare and adapt

to the situations, the company has given importance to
and studied business. The company has been trusted by
Intercontinental Hotel Group (IHG) , a world-renowned real
estate development brand, to develop InterContinental
Residences Hua Hin. The project will be able to increase
the confidence of the Company and third parties and face

the current economic situation very well.

8) Risk from the Strictness of Financial
Institutions

During the contracted economic conditions in the past
few years, considerations for granting credit to residential
borrowers from financial institutions are becoming more
stringent to prevent customers who are unable to pay, and
Bank of Thailand (BOT) has issued measures to regulate
real estate lending (LTV) to maintain economic stability.
As a result, customers have less purchasing power which
directly affect the Company’s main income. It also makes
it more difficult to obtain funds for management from
financial institutions.

The Company gives importance to such incidents
by creating credibility with various financial institutions
that the company has sufficient capacity to pay capital,
appropriate and concise business plan, careful decision
in creating excess debt, good cash flow management,
and established business alliances with various financial
institutions to increase offers to customers for loan
consideration so customers can contact for credit more

conveniently.




/ 3. DRIVING BUSINESS
TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY

3.1 Sustainability Management Policy and Goal
According to the good corporate governance policy and the Code of Conduct for
Directors Executives and employees, revised B.E. 2562, which was approved by the Board
of Directors Meeting No. 9/2019, held on August 14, 2019, the company realizes the
importance of social and environmental responsibility, including focusing on personnel
development and the organization to grow sustainably together with partners, customers,
shareholders, alliances, employees and society. The company has adhered and instilled
awareness in all employees to transform such concepts into activities for society and

the environment.

3.2 Stakeholder Impact in Business Value Chain
Management

3.2.1 Business Value Chain
The company’s business processes from upstream to downstream involving many

groups of stakeholders starting from

e Procurement of potential land for project development, in this process, the feasibility
of project development will be studied, defining target customers, and analyzing
competitors, risk analysis and relevant legal and regulatory issues,

e Project design and development preparation, which involves designing project
concepts, developing designs for use in various purposes, selecting materials used
in the project, obtaining permission from relevant authorities, and providing funds
for project development,

e Sales planning and marketing activities by selecting sales tools and marketing
materials, design and construction of a house or model room

e Construction of the project starting from the selection of contractors, project
construction supervision consultant, construction of public utilities, construction
of houses or condominiums, project cost management, and construction quality

control and inspection.
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Delivery of houses/condominiums to customers. In
this process, the company will facilitate the request
for bank loans for customers. Inspection of home/
condominium home delivery, correction of work and
transfer of ownership.

Service after ownership transfer. In this process, the
company has customer relationship management.
There is a guarantee for the quality of the house /
condominium, facilitation when customers report
repairs, and the establishment of a juristic person for

the management of residential buildings.

3.2.2 Stakeholder Analysis Business
Value Chain

Engagement from both internal and external
stakeholders is an essential element in determining the

direction of operations for sustainable development. The

Company has analyzed the operations of the organization

to identify the groups of stakeholders related to the
company’s business operations and summarized the

expectations of the groups of stakeholders as follows:




Stakeholders

Stakeholder engagement process

Stakeholder Expectations

Investors and e Annual general and extraordinary meetings e Business results
Shareholders
The Board of e Meetings to clarify and answer questions with e Direction, work policy

Director,
Executives and

employees such as Town Hall.

employees

e Career opportunities
e Compensation and welfare
e Employee potential development

Customers °

e Call Center
e After Sale Service

Constant customer satisfaction surveys throughout |e
the operation process before and after unit delivery.

Quality of products and services

Community and |e

Public hearing with the community for projects .

Operations that do not have a

Society that fall within the scope of Environmental Impact negative impact on the well-being of
Assessment: (EIA) the community
Partners and e Business partner meeting e Business results
Contractors e Fair trade competition
e Transparency and accountability
Government e Submission of an environmental impact assessment |e Legal compliance
Agencies report to the Office of Natural Resources and e Transparency and accountability
Environmental Policy and Planning before starting |e Accuracy and completeness of
the project. information
e Application for various licenses to business-related
departments
Business e Competition in the real estate business e Fair trade competition

Competitors

3.3 Sustainability Management
in the Environmental Aspect

The Company is committed to conducting business
along with environmental preservation by complying with
various environmental requirements, focusing on resource
efficiency, developing production processes to prevent and
reduce environmental impacts, and promoting personnel
development to have knowledge and awareness of the
environment and social responsibility along with leading to
the practice throughout the organization and continuous

development.

Policy to Promote Efficient Use of Resources
The company encourages employees to use resources

worthily, such as using reusable paper and saving water

and electricity with campaign signs posted at various points

in the office building.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Community or Society Development
Contributions

The social responsibility development policy that the
Company has implemented in the past year is all about CSR
in process that is integrated with the company’s operations.
As the company is an expert in building quality housing, we
believe that quality housing will make people’s lives better.
With an experience in running a business, the Company
is ready in terms of knowledge, experience, and ability to
be transferred to personnel within each person to develop
their own skills or extend knowledge for the benefit of
society. In addition, the company is committed to creating
personnel with knowledge and ability to develop quality
housing in terms of construction, management in various
areas, and having social responsibility when producing

personnel with better knowledge and responsibility in



society. These people will work together to produce

works and standardized buildings, which is an important

foundation for sustainably creating a developed society.

The Company is very aware of the business operation
along with social development, especially the delivery of
providing a More Than Just Living lifestyle that is not only
for customers or residents. In 2022, it is the beginning of
expanding business under the philosophy to a sustainable
society with “Children and Family” being the basic structure
that is the starting point, instilling concepts, and lifestyles
of people in present and future societies, raising children’s
quality is therefore of immense importance. These are the
origins of to start of expansion of the results of creating
activities for customers and the public who are interested
in parenting or doing activities with children, especially
in early childhood (In the womb until 6 years), which is
considered the most important age of learning and self-
development in every aspect of humans.

Parenting through “Playing and reading” is another
important way to promote children’s development that has
been confirmed by the research institute. It helps to better
develop distinct parts of the body, especially brain cells,
compared to children who are raised through the screen.
It can also help foster bonding with family members.

Within 2022, the company has set up Vehha Reading
Club and organized activities with the foundation, various
organizations, and publishers. Throughout the year, 578
people participated in the activities, both family groups
and educational personnel. Details of the activities are as
follows:

1. Stories from The Cloud, Hua Hin picture book exhibition,
13-16 October 2022 at VEHHA Sales Gallery, Holiday Inn
Hotel, joint activities with the Dream Seed Foundation.
This is Hua Hin's first picture book exhibition, along
with activities to read storybooks and international art
picture books from world-class artists where we have
arranged a space filled with more than 300 picture
books and storybooks, including Thai, Japanese and
English books. The activities were attended by 110
families, totaling 350 people.

2. Trick of Read, Read Together Halloween October 29-30,
2022, at VEHHA Sales Gallery, Holiday Inn Hotel, joint
activities with Sandclock Books , a Halloween-themed
family holiday activity that encourages children to read
books, listen to stories, and make handmade toys to
promote proper development and learning, with families
also doing activities together on weekends. The activity
was attended by 51 families, totaling 153 people.

3. The Power of Picture Books Project and creative activities
for early childhood children on 12-13 November
2022 at the Hua Hin Grand Hotel and Plaza, where
the company has sponsored activities with private
education coordination and promotion committee in
Prachuap Khiri Khan province to organize creative
activities as a guideline to promote children’s learning
with early childhood teachers from private schools in
Prachuap Khiri IKhan province in an activity week. There
were 8 families participating in total of 16 people.
The Company is committed to conducting activities

to continually improve the quality of life of Thai people,

especially the beginning of development at the family

institution, which is an important basis for creating a

lifestyle that supports family relationships, development,

and learning suitable for children to cultivate the concept

of sustainably living a quality life together.

3.4 Sustainability Management in
Social Aspect

The company has a policy to treat employees equally
and fairly, promote the employment of local workers, the
disadvantaged and the disabled without discrimination
despite differences in race, religion, gender, age, education
and others, provide welfare, safety, occupational health,
and working environment, as well as focus on developing
the potential and expertise in the field, cultivating
awareness, and encouraging personnel to participate in
creating good, efficient, effective work for the organization,
society, and the environment, and listening to opinions
from customers to ensure service satisfaction as well as

taking care of the community and society.
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/ 4. ANALYSIS AND EXPLANATION

OF MANAGEMENT

Financial Information

Summary of Auditor’s Report in the last 3 years

e Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December
2022

Thefinancial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 was audited by Mr. Piya Chaipruckmalakarn Certified
Public Accountant (Thailand) No.7544 from EY Office
Limited.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with
an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis of matters is
“recognition of revenue from sale of real estate”. However,

that matters did not affect the opinion of the auditor.

e Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December

2021

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 was audited by Miss. Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No.4604 from EY
Office Limited.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with
an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis of matters is
“compliance with loan covenants in loan agreements”.
However, that matters did not affect the opinion of the

auditor.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

* Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31 December

2020

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 was audited by Miss. Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No.4604 from EY
Office Limited.

The auditor commented “Unqualified opinion with
an emphasis of matter”. The emphasis of matters are
“recognition of revenue from sale of real estate” and
“compliance with loan covenants in loan agreements”.

However, that matters did not affect the opinion of the

auditor.

|




Summary of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of

Cash Flows and Financial Ratio; comparative of 3 years.

Statement of Financial Position

2022 2021 2020
Description
Million Baht % Million Baht % Million Baht %

Cash and cash equivalents 199.22 5.00 288.63 7.24 161.53 8.07
Trade and other receivables 106.07 2.66 0.26 0.01 0.22 0.01
Inventories 0.20 0.01 0.20 0.01 0.68 0.03
Real estate development costs 2,721.45 68.24 3,344.65| 83.86 1,593.42 79.61
Current tax assets 2.22 0.06 1.90 0.05 3.03 0.15
Other current assets 153.69 3.85 280.27 7.03 184.76 9.23
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,182.85| 79.81, 3,915.91| 98.19| 1,943.64| 97.11
Restricted bank deposits 0.19 - 0.19 - 0.19 0.01
Buildings and equipment 42.48 1.07 9.83 0.25 9.14 0.46
Right-of-use assets 10.26 0.26 11.11 0.28 15.31 0.76
Intangible assets 4.78 0.12 4.60 0.12 4.99 0.25
Deferred tax assets 27.09 0.68 45.20 1.13 26.88 1.34
Other non-current financial assets 2.41 0.06 132 0.03 1.26 0.06
Total non-current assets 87.21 2.19 72.25 1.81 57.77 2.89
Total assets 3,270.06| 81.99, 3,988.16| 100.00| 2,001.41 100.00
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2022 2021 2020
Description
Million Baht % Million Baht % Million Baht %
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans 85.12 2.13 19.68 0.49 14.10 0.70
from financial institutions
Trade and other payables 87.50 2.19 673.89| 16.90 47.42 2.37
Current portion of long-term loans 1.20 0.03 101.94 2.56 99.82 4.99
from financial institutions
Current portion of lease liabilities 6.11 0.15 5.99 0.15 7.22 0.36
Deferred revenue from sale of real estate 399.97| 10.03 657.39| 16.48 358.52| 1791
Deferred revenue from contract work - - - - 1.38 0.07
Accrued expenses related to the projects 128.49 3.22 1.73 0.04 6.23 0.31
Cumulative and redeemable preference shares 663.74| 16.64 611.40| 15.33 - -
Retention payables 16.32 0.41 25.92 0.65 - -
Other current liabilities 8.37 0.21 2.92 0.07 3.20 0.16
Total current liabilities 1,396.82| 35.02| 2,100.86| 52.68 537.89| 26.88
Long-term loans from financial institution, 991.39| 24.86 1,258.91| 31.57 738.88| 36.92
net of current portion
Lease liabilities, net of current portion 3.56 0.09 3.27 0.08 6.24 0.31
Provision for long-term employee benefits 3.38 0.08 2.05 0.05 1.14 0.06
Provision for decommissioning costs 8.25 0.21 8.04 0.20 3.01 0.15
Retention payables 42.22 1.06 19.11 0.48 20.89 1.04
Total non-current liabilities 1,048.80| 26.30| 1,291.38 32.38 770.16 | 38.48
Total liabilities 2,445.62| 61.32| 3,392.24| 85.06| 1,308.05 65.36
Registered share capital 673.15 673.15 673.15
Issued and fully paid-up share capital 641.47| 16.08 641.47| 16.08 641.47| 32.05
Share premium 263.63 6.61 263.63 6.61 263.63| 13.17
Deficits (80.66)| (2.02) (309.18)| (7.75) (211.74)| (10.58)
Total shareholders’ equity 824.44| 20.67 595.92| 14.94 693.36| 34.64
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,270.06| 81.99 3,988.16 | 100.00 2,001.41 100.00
PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 58



Statement of Comprehensive Income

2022 2021 2020
Description
Million Baht % Million Baht % Million Baht %
Revenues from sale of real estate 2,108.37| 99.91 - - 181.65 91.65
Finance Income 0.33 0.02 0.47 12.98 0.37 0.19
Other Income 1.59 0.08 3.15 87.02 16.18 8.16
Total Revenues 2,110.29| 100.00 3.62 100.00 198.20, 100.00
Cost of real estate sold 1,340.56| 63.52 - - 146.29 73.81
Cost of contract work - - - - - -
Selling and distribution expenses 165.90 7.86 0.29 8.01 15.32 7.73
Administrative expenses 230.82 10.94 101.68| 2,808.84 93.02 46.93
Severance pay - - - - - -
Finance cost 68.77 3.26 17.15 473.76 4.04 2.04
Total expenses 1,806.05 85.58 119.12| 3,290.61 258.67| 130.51
Loss before income tax 304.24| 14.42 (115.50) | (3,190.61) (60.47)| (30.51)
Income tax income (expenses) (75.72)| (3.59) 18.27 504.70 15.65 7.90
Loss for the year 228.52| 10.83 (97.23) | (2,685.91) (44.82)| (22.61)
Other comprehensive income for the year- - - (0.21) (5.80) 0.17 0.09
net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 228.52| 10.83 (97.44) | (2,691.71) (44.65)| (22.53)
Statement of Cash Flows
(Unit : Million Baht)
Description 2023 2022 2021

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 815.59 (974.81) 114.38
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (38.48) (0.77) (7.27)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (866.52) 1,102.68 (47.48)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (89.41) 127.10 59.63
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 288.63 161.53 101.90
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 199.22 288.63 161.53
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Financial Ratio

Description Times 2023 2022 2021
Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio Times 2.28 1.86 3.61
Quick Ratio Times 0.22 0.14 0.30
Operating Cash Flow to Current Liabilities Times 0.47 (0.74) 0.32
Receivable Turnover Times 41.07 N/A N/A
Collection Period Day 9 N/A N/A
Accounts Payable Turnover Times 23.11 6.99 8.18
Payment Period Day 16 52 45
Profitability Ratio
Gross Profit Margin — Real Estate Business % 36.42 - 19.47
Gross Profit Margin — Construction Business % - - -
Gross Profit Margin % 36.42 N/A 19.47
Other Income Ratio % 0.08 87.02 8.16
Net Loss Margin % 10.83 (2,685.91) (22.61)
Return of Equity % 32.18 (15.08) (6.26)
Efficiency Ratio
Return on Total Assets % 6.99 (2.44) (2.24)
Return on Fixed Assets % 397.29 (380.70) (152.24)
Total Assets Turnover Times 0.65 0.00 0.10
Financial Policy Ratio
Debt to Equity Times 297 5.69 1.89
TIE Ratio Times 5.42 (5.73) (13.97)
Dividend Payout Ratio % - - -
Growth Rate
Revenues from sale of real estate % 100.00 (100.00) 237.51
Revenues from contract work % - - (100.00)
Cost of real estate sold % 100.00 (100.00) 389.76
Cost of contract work % - - (100.00)
Selling and administrative expenses % 127.01 (5.88) 21.59
Net profit (loss) % 335.03 (116.93) (11.80)

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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4.1 Analysis of Operating Results and
financial Position
Overview of Past Operations

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited operates a
single real estate development business. In 2019, additional
investments were made in 2 subsidiaries, namely Hua
Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited and Hua Hin Sky Living
Company Limited to develop residential real estate projects.
At present, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited is in the
process of turn over "InterContinental Residences Hua Hin",
the first luxury residential project managed by the world-
class hotel chain "IHG" in Thailand, on a land size of 7 rai
2 ngan 48.8 square wa. right by the beach in the heart of
Hua Hin on Petchkasem Road around Soi Hua Hin 71. Hua
Hin Sky Living Company Limited is developing "VEHHA"
which is a residential project on land of 5 rai 1 ngan 9.5
square wa located between Vana Nava Water Park and
Holiday Inn Hua Hin Hotel.

In 2021, the company has invested in 2 more
subsidiaries, Proud Horseshoe Company Limited and

Convent Beta Company Limited to develop residential real

4.1.1 Performance

Revenue

estate projects. At present, Proud Horseshoe Company
Limited has started to develop a luxury low-rise residential
project on a land of 1 rai 2.2 square wah in Soi Aree 3,
Bangkok. Convent Beta Company Limited has started to
develop a residential project on a land of 1 rai 2 ngan 38.5
square wah on Convent Road, Silom, which is the central
business district of Bangkok.

In 2022, the company has invested in a subsidiary,
Prompt Solutions Management Company Limited to provide
real estate management services, especially real estate
projects of the Group.

As the Company has invested in Hua Hin Alpha 71
Company Limited, Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited ,
Proud Horseshoe Company Limited, Convent Beta Company
Limited and Prompt Solutions Management Company
Limited, the Company has the authority to control and,
therefore, consolidated the financial statements of the
companies in the consolidated financial statements using
the same accounting policy for the same accounting

transactions or similar accounting events.

The primary business of the Company is real estate development. The income is as follows:

Revenue Source Table

(Unit : Million Baht)

Description 2022 2021 Changes
Real Estate Development Business 2,108.37 100% - 0% 2,108.37 100%
Financial Revenues 0.33 0% 0.47 13% (0.14) (30%)
Other Revenues 1.59 0% 3.15 87% (1.56) (50%)
Total 2,110.29 100% 3.62 100% 2,106.67 58,195%

Remarks : Other Revenues include revenue from property management, sales at " 111 Social Club" store (2021) and reverse projected cost of sales (2021), etc.
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Real Estate Development Business

Because the company is in the process of developing
a new project, there is no income from the transfer of
condominium ownership in 2023, compared to the year
2022 in which the company transferred ownership the last
unit of the condominium, "Focus Ploenchit", to customers
with net value of 8.59 million baht. Hua Hin Alpha 71
Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the company, transferred the
ownership of 136 units in “InterContinental Residences

Hua Hin” condominium to customers totaling a value of

2,099.78 million baht. So, the revenue increased 100% as
compared to the previous year. The proportion of revenue
from the property development business per total revenue
in 2022 was 100%

As of December 31, 2022, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company
Limited and Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited, the
subsidiaries of the company, have purchase and sale
contract of 240 units, amounting to 3,935 million baht,

which can be shown as follows:

The value of the

Proiect Number of Total Sales purchase/ Percentage to
) Units (million baht) sale contract Total Sales
(million baht)
InterContinental Residences Hua Hin 238 3,778 3,459 92
VEHHA 364 2,290 476 21

Financial Revenues

Financial income includes interest received from bank
deposits. In 2022, the company has financial income of
0.33 million baht, an decrease of 0.14 million baht or
30% compared to the previous year which had financial
income of 0.47 million baht due to the decrease in bank

deposits in 2022.

Other Revenues
In 2022, the company had other income of 1.59 million
baht, a decrease of 1.56 million baht or 50% compared to

the previous year, which had other income of 3.15 million

baht, mainly due to the income from sales revenue at
“111 Social Club” shop decreased by 1.69 million baht,
because the company currently does not operate this

shop anymore.

Expenses

The Company's expenses consist of cost of sales and
selling expenses, real estate administrative expenses,
financial cost and income tax expense.

For the year 2022 and 2021, the Company has costs

from real estate development business as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

Items Year 2022 2021 Increase (Decrease)
Revenue 2,108.37 100% - N/A 2,108.37 100%
Cost 1,340.56 64% - N/A 1,340.56 100%
Gross profit 767.81 36% - N/A 767.81 100%
Selling Expenses 165.90 8% 0.29 N/A 165.61 57,107%
Profit after Selling Expenses 601.91 29% (0.29) N/A 602.20 | 207,655%
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Cost of Real Estate Development Business

In 2022, the company had the most of the cost of the
real estate development business from “InterContinental
Residences Hua Hin” project increased by 1,340.56 million
baht or 100 percent compared to the previous year which
there was no income from the real estate development
business. In 2022, the company has the cost of the real
estate development business at the rate of 64% of revenue

and has a gross profit margin of 36%.

Selling Expenses

In 2022, the company had selling expenses of 165.90
million baht, an increase of 165.61 million baht compared
to the previous year. The main expense is the ownership
transfer fee for the condominium unit, the cost of
advertising, public relations and sales promotion of the

“InterContinental Residences Hua Hin” project.

(Unit : Million Baht)

Items 2022 2021 Changes
Administrative expenses 230.82 101.68 129.14 127%
Financial costs 68.77 17.15 51.62 301%
Income (Expense) income Tax (75.72) 18.27 93.99 514%
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year - net of income tax - (0.21) 0.21 100%

Administrative expenses

In 2022, the company had administrative expenses of
230.82 million baht, an increase of 129.14 million baht or
127% compared to the previous year, which was 101.68
million baht, due to an employee expense increased by
32.51 million baht due to the increase in the number of
employees. Specific business tax increased by 66.86 million
baht and condominium juristic person expenses increased
by 13.61 million baht.

Financial costs

In 2022 , the Company had financial costs of 68.77
million baht, an increase of 51.62 million baht or 301%
compared to the previous year, which was 17.51 million
baht, mainly due to the interest on preferred shares with
cumulative dividend and redeemable, an increase of 37.08
million baht, financial costs of the loans from financial
institution, increased by 14.88 million baht. Interest on

lease liabilities decreased by 0.34 million baht.

Income (Expenses), Income Tax

In 2022, the Company's income tax was 75.72 million
baht, an increase of 93.99 million baht or 514% compared
to the previous year, which was 18.27 million baht, resulting
from has income tax on profits generated during the year in
the amount of 57.61 million baht. In addition, the company
has adjusted the deferred income tax from the reversal of
the subsidiary’s accumulated tax losses to tax expenses
amounting to approximately 24 million baht, due to the
subsidiaries began to obtain income tax from sales of real

estate and tax profits.

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year - net of
income tax.

In 2022, the Company did not have other comprehensive
income compared to the year 2022, which has other
comprehensive loss for the year - net of income tax in the
amount of 0.21 million baht, consisting of actuarial losses
of 0.26 million baht and related income tax revenue of
0.05 million baht.
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4.1.2 Financial Position

The Company's financial position for the year 2022 compared to the year 2021 has significant changes as follows:

Assets (Unit : Million Baht)
Items 2022 2021 Changes
Cash and Cash Equivalents 199.22 288.63 (89.41) (31%)
Trade and other Receivables 106.07 0.26 105.81 40,696%
Inventory 0.20 0.20 - -
Real Estate Development Cost 2,721.45 3,344.65 (623.20) (19%)
Current Tax Assets 2.22 1.90 0.32 17%
Other Current Assets 153.69 280.27 (126.58) (45%)
Total Current Assets 3,182.85 3,915.91 (733.06) (19%)
Restricted bank deposits 0.19 0.19 - -
Building & Equipment 42.48 9.83 32.65 332%
Right-of-use Assets 10.26 11.11 (0.85) (8%)
Intangible Assets 4.78 4.60 0.18 4%
Deferred Tax Expense 27.09 45.20 (18.11) (40%)
Other non-current financial assets 241 1.32 1.09 83%
Total Non-Current Assets 87.21 72.25 14.96 21%
Total Assets 3,270.06 3,988.16 (718.10) (18%)

The company had total assets as of 31 December 2022 in the amount of 3,270.06 million baht, a decrease of 718.10
million baht or 18% compared to the total assets of the year 2021, which was 3,988.16 million baht, divided into current
assets of 3,182.85 million baht and non-current assets of 87.21 million baht. Significant changes are as follows:

1. Trade and other receivables increased by 105.81 million baht, due to the subsidiaries of the company has received
advance checks from the customers.

2. Real estate development costs as of December 31, 2022, consist of:

(Unit : Million Baht)

InterContinental

Fut
Items Residences VEHHA VI Ari Hure Total
. Projects
Hua Hin
Cost of land for development 501.92 200.87 169.93 1,125.69 1,998.41
Real Estate Development Cost 529.38 62.07 29.63 15.13 636.21
Financial costs 42.20 15.33 6.03 23.27 86.83
Total 1,073.50 278.27 205.59 1,164.09 2,721.45

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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The cost of real estate development decreased by

623.20 million baht compared to the year 2021, mainly due

to the adjustment to the cost of real estate sales of about

1,335 million baht, because of the transfer of ownership

of the condominium “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”

project. In addition, the cost of real estate development

increased by 712 million baht during the year, was due to

the construction of the subsidiary’s projects has progressed

more than last year.

3.

Other current assets decreased by 126.58 million baht.
Main decrease was due to prepaid sales and marketing
management fees which belongs to subsidiaries
decreased by 29.18 million baht. In addition, there
was a decrease in prepaid goods and services of 89.32
million baht and other advance expenses decreased by

8.07 million baht.

Liabilities

4.

Building and equipment increased by 32.65 million
baht. Main increase was due to the decoration of the
mockup rooms of the VEHHA project and the sale office
of the ROMM Convent project.

Deferred tax assets decreased by 18.11 million baht,
resulting from the reversal of deferred tax assets arising
from the accumulated tax losses of the subsidiaries
as tax expenses because of the subsidiaries began to
make profits.

Other non-current financial assets are the security
deposit which increased by 1.09 million baht, Main
increase was due to the office rental deposits and land

leases for the construction of sales offices.

(Unit : Million Baht)

Items 2022 2021 Changes

Bank overdraft and short-term loans from financial institutions 85.12 19.68 65.44 333%
Accounts and Other Payables 87.50 673.89 (586.39) (87%)
Long-term Loans Portions from Financial Institutions 1.20 101.94 (100.74) (99%)
Due Within One Year

Portion of lease liabilities due within one year 6.11 5.99 0.12 2%
Advance income from the sale of real estate 399.97 657.39 (257.42) (39%)
Expenses for accrued projects 128.49 1.73 126.76 7,327%
Preferred shares with cumulative and redeemable dividends 663.74 611.40 52.34 9%
retention payable 16.32 25.92 (9.60) (37%)
Other Current Liabilities 8.37 2.92 5.45 187%
Total Current Liabilities 1,396.82 | 2,100.86 | (704.04) (34%)
Long-term loans from financial institutions - 991.39 1,258.91 (267.52) (21%)
net of current portion

Finance lease liabilities - net of current portion 3.56 3.27 0.29 9%
Reserving for Long-Term Employee Benefits 3.38 2.05 1.33 65%
Provision for Demolition Costs 8.25 8.04 0.21 3%
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(Unit : Million Baht)

Items 2022 2021 Changes
retention payable 42.22 19.11 23.11 121%
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,048.80 1,291.38 (242.58) (19%)
Total Liabilities 2,445.62 | 3,392.24 | (946.62) (28%)

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has total
liabilities of 2,445.62 million baht, a decreased of 946.62
million baht or 28% compared to the total liabilities of the
year 2022, which was 3,392.24 million baht, divided into
current liabilities of 1,396.82 million baht and non-current
liabilities of 1,048.80 million baht. The major changes are
as follows:

1. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial
institutions increased by 65.44 million baht. Main was
due to short-term loans from financial institutions
increased by 57 million baht.

2. Trade and other payables decreased by 586.39 million
baht, main was due to the accrued land cost decreased
by 550 million baht. At the same time, there is more
payment for the construction of the project. As a result,
the construction-related payables decreased by 36
million baht.

3. Unearned income from the sale of real estate decreased
by 257.42 million baht, main was due to the capital
received in advance of the “InterContinental Residences
Hua Hin” project decreased.

4. Expenses for accrued projects increased by 126.76
million baht, due to estimate the cost of construction

of “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin” project.
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5. Cumulative and redeemable preferred shares decreased

by 52.34 million baht because of recorded the return

of preferred shares.

. The withholding tax payable and unpaid sales tax

increased by 5.45 million baht, divided into the
withholding tax payable of 2.16 million baht and unpaid

sales tax of 3.07 million baht.

. Long-term loans from financial institutions in the

amount of 992.59 million baht, divided into portions
due within one year of 1.20 million baht and portions
due after one year of 991.39 million baht. They
are loans from the credit line of Hua Hin Sky Living
Company Limited to purchase land for the development
of the “VEHHA” project, loan from the credit line of
Proud Horseshoe Company Limited to purchase land
for the development of the “VI Ari” project and loan
from the credit line of Convent Beta Company Limited
to purchase land for the development of the “ROMM
Convent”. Loan collateral is land and buildings of the
project, and the company guarantees the debt to the
subsidiary. In addition, the Company also has soft loan.
The details of long-term loans from financial institutions

are as follows:



Limit Loan Amount Interest Rate
Project (million  Asof 31/12/22 Period Percentage per Payment of Debt
baht) (million baht) Year
Loan for use in the 2.90 1.21 Within 2.0 Pay in installments every
company's operations April 2023 month, totaling 12 installments
(Soft loan) starting from May 2022
VEHHA 870.00 110.00 Within MLR-1.5 when transferring the
September ownership of the condominium
2026
VI Ari 172.70 110.40 Within MLR-2.0 When transferring ownership
November of land title deeds according to
2023 each project
ROMM Convent 1,680.00 778.38 Within MLR-1.5 when transferring the
September ownership of the condominium
2026
Total 2,725.60 999.99

Note : Loan balance before deducting loan financing fee

During the year, the company and its subsidiaries borrowed 958.66 million baht and loan repayment 1,320.99

million baht.

8. Retention payable in the amount of 58.54 million baht, divided into the portion due within one year in the amount

of 16.32 million baht and the portion due after one year but within five years in the amount of 42.22 million baht,

a total increase of 13.51 million baht from the previous year. This is due to retention payable from the construction

of “InterContinental Residences Hua Hin”

Shareholder's Equity

As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the Company has shareholders' equity as follows:

(Unit : Million Baht)

Items 2022 2021 Changes
Registered Capital 673.15 673.15 - -
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital 641.47 641.47 - -
Premium on Ordinary Shares 263.63 263.63 - -
Accumulated Loss (80.66) (309.18) (228.52) (38%)
Total Shareholder's Equities 824.44 595.92 228.52 38%

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has shareholders' equity of 824.44 million baht, an increase of 228.52 million

baht or 38% compared to the previous year, which was 595.92 million baht because the company had a net profit for

the year 2022 amounting to 228.52 million baht, resulting in a decrease in accumulated losses.
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4.1.3 Cash flow and Liquidity

(Unit : Million Baht)

Items 2022 2021
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 815.59 (974.81)
Net cash used in investing activities (38.48) (0.77)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities (866.52) 1,102.68
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (89.41) 127.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 288.63 161.53
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 199.22 288.63

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had cash and
cash equivalents in the amount of 199.22 million baht
with an increase in net cash flow of 89.41 million baht,
consisting of:

1. Net cash flow used in operating activities amounted
to 815.59 million baht. The main items that increased
cash flow were the decrease in real estate development
costs (excluding finance costs) 668.32 million baht, a
decrease in other current assets 124.47 million baht.

2. Netcash usedininvesting activities amounted to 38.48
million baht, from cash paid for purchases of equipment
and intangible assets.

3. Net cash flows from financing activities amounted to
866.52 million baht, the main items were cash paid to
repay long-term loans from financial institutions of a
subsidiary in the amount of 1,320.99 million baht, while
receiving loans from financial institutions in the amount

of 465.66 million baht.

The Company's liquidity ratio in 2022 was 2.28 times, an
increase of 0.42 times compared to 2021, which was 1.86
times. This increasing in ratio was partly due to a decrease
in trade and other payables, advance income from the
sale of real estate. As a result, current liabilities increased
in a higher proportion than current assets. The company
continues to use its funding from long-term loans and
shareholder capital as it is shown that the debt-to-equity
ratio as of December 31, 2022, was 2.97 times, which was

a decrease from the year 2021 with the ratio of 5.69 times.
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Obligations and Contingent Liabilities
As of December 31, 2022, The Company and its
subsidiaries have commitments and contingent liabilities
as follows:
1. Obligations under various service contracts that must
be paid in the future.

The Company Group has commitments under
various service contracts that must be paid in the
future. The term of the contract ranges from 1 year to
3 years, amounting to approximately 21 million baht
(2021 : 6 million baht)

2. Commitments relating to contracts for real estate
development cost projects and related services

The Group has commitments in respect of real
estate development cost projects and related services
amounting to 257 million baht (2021 : 601 million baht)

3. Guarantees
3.1 The Company guarantees loans and credit facilities
to subsidiaries in the amount of 2,823 million baht

(2021 : 3,833 million baht)

3.2 The Company has a letter of guarantee issued by

a bank on behalf of the Company in the amount

of 0.3 million baht (2021: 0.3 million) to guarantee

the performance of the contract.



4. Other obligations

On November 22, 2019, a subsidiary entered into
a trade name license agreement and accommodation
management agreement with InterContinental Hotels
Group (Asia Pacific) Company Limited. In this regard, the
subsidiary is committed to pay service fees at the rates,
conditions, and criteria specified in the agreement. The
subsidiary has an obligation to pay royalty fee of 3% of

the income from the sale of the condominium.

4.2 Main Factors and Influences that
may Affect Future Operations or
Financial Position

Real estate development business is a business with
good returns. Although there are factors that affect the
operation in terms of the ability to procure land with
potential at reasonable prices, location, design, price, which

must meet the needs of target customers. The company
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foresees the real estate market trend for customers who
want to live in tourist cities, close to transportation, and
is near to Bangkok. The company, therefore, has a policy
to expand investment in vertical real estate business,
especially around Hua Hin District, Prachuap Khiri Khan
Province. Therefore, it has invested in a subsidiary to
develop projects in that area. The nature of the project
focuses on target groups with high purchasing power. The
current real estate market is still small.

During 2022, there is still an outbreak of the Coronavirus
Disease 2019 that affects most businesses and industries.
Such situations may bring about uncertainties and impacts
on the business environment. The Group's management
monitored the progress of the situation and assessed
the fiscal impact on the value of the assets, provisions,
and ongoing contingent liabilities. The management uses
estimates and judgments on various issues when the

situation changes appropriately.
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/ 5. GENERAL INFORMATION AND OTHER
ESSENTIAL INFORMATION

Main Company Information

Company Name:

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited

Securities symbol:

PROUD

Business Type:

Real estate development business

Company Registration

Number:

0107545000331

Registered Capital:

673,148,951 shares as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital:

641,469,040 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock:

Common Stock

Share Value:

1 baht per share

Head Office Location:

No. 900 Tonson Tower, 6 Floor, Ploenchit road, Lumpini Sub-istrict, Pathumwan District

Bangkok 10330

Phone: 0-2035-0999

Fax: 0-2035-0998

Company Website : www.proudrealestate.co.th
Listed in MAI : October 5, 2004

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Information of juristic persons in which the Company holds shares of 10 percent or
more of the total number of shares sold

1) Company Name: Hua Hin Alpha 71 Company Limited

Business Type: Real estate development business

Company Registration 0105562068876

Number:

Registered Capital: 800,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital: 800,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock: 6,000,000 preferred shares and 2,000,000 ordinary shares as of December 31, 2022

Share Value: 100 baht per share

Location: No. 900 Tonson Tower, 6™ Floor, Ploenchit road, Lumpini Sub-istrict, Pathumwan District,
Bangkok 10330

Shareholding 99.99%

Proportion:

2) Company Name: Hua Hin Sky Living Company Limited

Business Type: Real estate development business

Company Registration | 0105562068957

Number:

Registered Capital: 50,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital: 50,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock : Common Stock

Share Value : 100 baht per share

Location : No. 900, Tonson Tower, 6™ Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan Bangkok 10330
Shareholding 99.97%

Proportion:

3) Company Name : Proud Horseshoe Company Limited

Business Type : Real estate development business

Company Registration |[0105564071882

Number :

Registered Capital : 20,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital : 20,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock : Common Stock

Share Value : 100 baht per share

Location : No. 900, Tonson Tower, 6 Floor, Ploenchit Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan Bangkok 10330
Shareholding 99.99%

Proportion :
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4) Company Name : Convent Beta Company Limited

Business Type : Real estate development business

Company Registration 0105564122312

Number :

Registered Capital : 1,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital : 1,000,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock: Common Stock

Share Value : 100 baht per share

Location : No. 900 Tonson Tower, 6™ Floor, Ploenchit road, Lumpini Sub-istrict, Pathumwan District
Bangkok 10330

Shareholding 99.97%

Proportion :

5) Company Name: Prompt Solution Management Company Limited

Business Type : Engage in other service activities relating to real estate

Company Registration |0105565066769

Number :

Registered Capital : 500,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Paid-up Capital : 500,000 baht as of December 31, 2022

Type of Stock : Common Stock

Share Value : 100 baht per share

Location : No. 900 Tonson Tower, 6% Floor, Ploenchit road, Lumpini Sub-istrict, Pathumwan District
Bangkok 10330

Shareholding 99.94%

Proportion :
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Reference Person

Securities Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

(Common stock)

93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building Ratchadapisek Road, Dindaeng Sub-district,
Dindaeng District, Bangkok 10400

Telephone:

(662) 009-9999

Auditors

EY Office Company Limited

193/136-137 Lake Ratchada Building, Office Complex, 33™ Floor, Ratchadapisek Road,
Khlong Toei Sub-district, Khlong Toei District, Bangkok 10110

Telephone:

(662) 264-9090

Fax:

(662) 264-0789-90

5.2 Other Crucial Information

- None -

5.3 Legal Disputes

- None -

5.4 Secondary Market

- None -

|

1
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/ 6. GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is an effective managed organization on

Good Corporate Governance and Excellent Management.
We conduct business with responsibility, ethics, fairness,
transparency, and accountability by striving to maximize
the benefits of shareholders and consider all stakeholders

to build sustainable confidence and growth together.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

6. Corporate Governance Policy

The Company has established a good corporate
governance policy in writing and regularly reviews such
policies. The good corporate governance policy has
been prepared in accordance with the Good Corporate
Governance Principles for listed companies in 2017 (CG
Code) in accordance with the guidelines set by The Office
of the Securities and Exchange Commission for the purpose
of creating sustainable value for the business to ensure that
it meets the expectations of the business sector, investors,

as well as the capital market and society as a whole. This

policy also applies to subsidiaries.




6.1 Overview of Corporate Governance
Policies and Practices

The Company has established the Group’s Good
Corporate Governance Principles, consisting of 15categories

of policies, which can be summarized as follows:

Section 1 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Rights of Shareholders and
Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company places importance on shareholders’ rights
and equitable treatment of shareholders by ensuring that
shareholders participate in decision-making on important
matters of the Company and support shareholder
participation, such as setting criteria for minority
shareholders to propose additional agenda in advance of
the shareholders’ meeting date, nominating individuals to
serve as directors, providing opportunities for shareholders
to submit questions in advance of the meeting date, as well
as disclosing such criteria to shareholders in advance and
publishing them on the Company’s website.

In addition, on the day of the shareholders’ meeting,

the Board of Directors has ensured that the meeting is

conducted in an orderly, transparently, and efficiently
manner, and allows shareholders to fully exercise their
rights. For example, ensuring that the notice of the
shareholders’ meeting contains accurate, complete, and
sufficient information to exercise the rights of shareholders,
not adding unnecessary agenda items to the meeting
without prior notice, and disclosing the resolutions of the
shareholders’ meeting with the results of the vote within the
next business day through the information system of the

Stock Exchange of Thailand and on the Company’s website.

Section 2 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Roles of Stakeholders

The Company conducts business ethically, responsible
to society and the environment and does not violate the
rights of stakeholders to guide all parts of the organization
to sustainably achieve the main goal and objectives. The
Company’s policy covers all stakeholders involved in
the Company, including responsibility to shareholders,
customers, suppliers, creditors, competitors, employees,

community, society, and environment.



Section 3 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Disclosure and Transparency

This policy is in line with Principle 7 on Maintaining
Financial Credibility and Disclosure of Good Corporate
Governance Principles for Listed Companies 2017
(CG Code). The Company will ensure that the system
of preparation of financial reports and disclosures of
valuable information is accurate, adequate, punctual and

in accordance with relevant rules, standards, and practices.

Section 4 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities
of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the
Board, President, and Sub-Committees.

The Board of Directors understands and aware of the
responsibility as a leader to ensure that the organization
has good management, is responsible for ensuring that
all directors perform their duties with responsibility,
vigilance, and integrity to the organization, and ensure
that the operation is in accordance with the law, Articles of
Association, and Resolutions of the Shareholders’ Meeting.

This section of the policy defines the roles and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, sub-committees,
Chairman of the Board, and Chief Executive Officer,
covering the nomination and remuneration of directors and
executives, independence of the Board of Directors from
Management, Development of directors, and evaluation
of the performance of directors’ duties, including the

supervision of subsidiaries and associated companies.

Section 5 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Human Resource Management and
Development.

The Company recognizes that employees are the
company’s most valuable resource and the key factor in
bringing sustainable success and growth to the company.

We have established specific guidelines for human
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resource management and development, such as managing
employee compensation fairly and equitably, promoting
and encouraging employees to be trained both internally

and externally, etc.

Section 6 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Accounting and Financial
Transactions

The Company recognizes that the recording of
accounting and financial transactions must be accurate,

complete, factual, and verifiable.

Section 7 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Internal Control

The Company has a risk management and internal
control system that will effectively achieve its objectives

and comply with relevant laws and standards.

Section 8 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Connected Transactions

The Company will consider the actions relating to
connected transactions correctly and transparently and
will disclose such information. The company therefore has
set it as a practice guideline for directors, executives, and

employees to perform correctly.

Section 9 Policies and Code of Conduct
Regarding Anti-Corruption.

The Company has a policy against corruption in all
forms, where all directors, executives, and employees will
not get involved or participate in any corruption, shall
not bribe, be bribed, or exploit unlawful and immoral in
all forms, directly and indirectly, and arrange for a review
of compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy on a regular

basis.



Section 10 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Non-Infringement of Intellectual
Property.

The Company has a policy and code of conduct that
does not support any action that infringes intellectual
property. It is established that the guidelines, for example,
the performance of the duties of executives and employees,
will be the intellectual property of the Company. The
Company does not permit the use of any works, software,
or computer programs that infringe intellectual property

in the Company’s work.

Section 11 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Non-Violation of Human Rights

The Company has a policy and code of conduct on
non-violation of human rights, whereby the Company
shall not take any action that discourages or discriminates
against individuals on the basis of gender, race, religion,
status of persons, or socioeconomic status, etc., and shall
adopt such policies and codes of conduct for employments,
assignments, promotions, and compensation for work as

well.

Section 12 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Whistleblowing

The company ensures that there is a mechanism for
receiving complaints and actions in case of whistleblowing
when employees see actions that may be considered

fraudulent, and corruption related to the company.

Section 13 Policy and Code of Conduct
Regarding Safety, Occupational Health, and
Work Environment

The Company is aware of safety, occupational health,
and work environment of employees and is confident that
accidents and illnesses that occur at work are preventable.
Therefore, the company has established a policy for all

employees to follow.

Section 14 Policy and Succession Plan of
Executives

To ensure the continuity of business operations, the
Board of Directors has established a succession plan to
prepare for the succession of senior management positions
in case of vacancy or inability to perform duties.

In addition, the company has a job rotation planin place
for employees in key positions of the Company to have
the opportunity to gain experience about jobs in other
departments, including attending the meeting of the Board
of Directors or sub-committees, to prepare the successor

for the position as the Company deems appropriate.

Section 15 Policy Regarding Board Meetings.
The Company arranges to schedule the meeting and
agenda of the Board of Directors’ meeting in advance so
that the directors can arrange the time and be able to
attend the meeting. The number of board meetings will be
considered appropriately to the duties and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors and the nature of the Company’s

business operations.

6.2 Business Code of Conduct (if any)
The Company has prepared a business ethics and code
of conduct manual for directors, executives and employees
of the company and requires monitoring of compliance with
the good corporate governance policy business ethics and
code of conduct for directors, executives and employees
of the Company and good practices regularly, as well as
publicizing the manual to all employees throughout the

organization.

6.3 Key Changes and Developments

in the Policy, Practices, and Corporate

Governance Systems in the Past Year
The Company annually reviews the principles of good

corporate governance of the group of companies and

business ethics of the group of companies to enhance

regulatory efficiency and comply with the Good Corporate
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Governance Principles for Listed Companies 2017 (CG Code)
in accordance with the guidelines set by the Securities and

Exchange Commission.

Other Practices According to Corporate
Governance Code

Section 1 Rights of Shareholders
The Company recognizes and values the rights of all

shareholders to ensure that shareholders are entitled to
equal fundamental rights such as attending shareholders’
meetings and the right to receive adequate, accurate, and
complete information. The Company has promoted the
rights of shareholders as follows:

1. Arrangement of the 2022 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders, which the Company has promoted
and supported all groups of shareholders including
institutional investors attended the meeting by
proceeding as follows:

Actions taken before the date of the shareholders’
meeting.

The Company provide opportunities for shareholders
to propose agenda and nominate candidates to be
elected as directors and send questions in advance
before the date of the 2022 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. The company has informed such criteria
on the company’s website. and informed through
the information dissemination system of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand to shareholders.

The Company published the invitation letter for
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders together
with supporting documents in both Thai and English
versions of the meeting on the Company’s website
and sends the invitation letter which clearly states the
date, time, place and agenda of the meeting, attached
with a proxy form and supporting documents for each
agenda both in Thai and English, to be considered 14
days in advance of the meeting with sufficient details
of the agenda including the opinions of the Board of
Directors, for shareholders to make decisions on the

exercise of their voting rights. In addition, the Company
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has provided the necessary details, documents, and

evidence that shareholders or proxies must present in

full to maintain the right to attend the meeting in case

the shareholders are unable to attend the meeting.

Shareholders may proxy for independent directors of

the Company or any person to convene and vote on

their behalf. A proxy is a form in which shareholders

can direct their vote.

Procedures on the Date of the Meeting of Shareholders

The Company determines the appropriate date, time,
and place of the meeting so that shareholders can
come to the meeting conveniently.

The Company provides adequate and appropriate
personnel to facilitate shareholders in checking
the meeting attendance documents and providing
duty stamps.

The Company arranges registration using barcode
system for accuracy, convenience, and speed, and
informs the number and proportion of shareholders
attending the meeting in person and by proxy, how
to vote and count votes clearly. Voting and vote
counting is done openly, and the company had
implemented a barcode system used to count votes
and show results. This helps to conduct the meeting
efficiently and quickly.

The Company hires external legal advisors to ensure
that the meeting is transparent, comply with the
laws and articles of association of the Company.
The Company conducts the meeting in accordance
with the agenda set forth in the invitation letter and
does not add agenda to the meeting.

The Company allocates sufficient time and allows
shareholders to express their opinions and ask
questions. The directors and executives of the
Company clarify and provide complete information
to shareholders.

The Company arranges for voting by using ballots
for every agenda. To comply with good practice in

organizing the shareholders’ meeting, the Company
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requested that the shareholders and proxies who

attended the meeting returned all remaining ballots
after the meeting was completed to keep it as
evidence which can be examined later.

The Company records the meeting in the form of

video media.

Actions after the shareholders’ meeting date

The Company informs the resolutions of the
meeting and the results of each agenda through
the information dissemination system of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and on the Company’s website
on the day of the shareholders’ meeting for the
shareholders to know.

The company recorded the minutes of the meeting
accurately and completely and submitted the
minutes of the meeting to the Stock Exchange of
Thailand within 14 days after the meeting date and

published on the Company’s website.



2. To provide important and necessary information to

shareholders by disclosing valuable information on
the Company’s website and through the information
dissemination system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
so that the shareholders are thoroughly informed of

news and information.

Section 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

1. The Company places importance on equitable treatment

of shareholders. The Company provides a process and
channels for minority shareholders to participate in
the recruitment and election of directors before the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders by giving
shareholders the opportunity to propose agendas,
nominate individuals to be elected as directors, and
propose questions in advance of the date of the
shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the criteria

prescribed by the Company from December 15 2021
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to February 15, 2022. None of the shareholders has
proposed an agenda item or nominated an individual

to be elected as a director.

. The Company has established a written policy to

prevent the use of inside information to guide the
retention and prevention of the use of the Company’s
internal data by informing the guidelines to employees,
management and directors for acknowledgment and
strict compliance with such policies. As of 2022, there
has not been directors, executives or employees who
use insider information of the company to seek benefits

for oneself.

. The company has clearly set a policy for related

transactions. This is a transaction between the Company
and individuals who may have a conflict of interest or a
stake. The Audit Committee will provide opinions on the
necessity of entering the transaction and proceeding
in accordance with the announcement of the Capital
Market Supervisory Board and the announcement of the
Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
which must be approved by the management or the
Board of Directors or shareholders. The transactions
between each other were conducted according to
the market price and in accordance with the normal
course of business. In case there is no comparable
market price, such connected transactions must be at
an adequate and reasonable price for the best interest
of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company does not have a policy to provide
financial assistance to non-subsidiaries, except in the
case of lending or guaranteeing loans in proportion to
the shareholdings in accordance with the joint venture

agreement.

. The Company has established a policy on conflicts of

interest by disclosing the interests of directors and
executives to provide the Company with information
on the implementation of the transaction requirements
between them, which may cause conflicts of interest

and may lead to the transfer of interests.
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Section 3 Consideration of the Role of

Stakeholders

The Company recognizes and is aware of the rights of all
stakeholders. The Company has established guidelines for
the treatment of various stakeholder groups in the Business
Ethics Handbook as a guideline for conduct alongside the
Company’s regulations and rules under the framework
of ethics, morality and integrity, there are guidelines for
stakeholders as follows:

Treatment of Stakeholders

1. Treatment and Responsibilities to Shareholders
The Company recognizes that the shareholders
are the owners of the business and the Company. The

Company is responsible for creating added value for

shareholders overall, thus requiring employees to follow

the following guidelines:

1.1 Perform duties with integrity, as well as make
decisions to take any action with care, prudence,
and fairness to all shareholders for the benefit of
the shareholders.

1.2 Supervise operations to ensure that the Company
has good financial status and operating results, and
reports on the status of the company, performance,
financial database, accounting, and other works
regularly and completely based on facts.

1.3 Report to shareholders equally about the future
trends of the company, both positive and negative,
based on possibilities, and provide sufficient
supporting information and reasons.

1.4 Do not seek benefits for yourself and others by
using any information of the Company which has
not been disclosed to the public or taking any action
in a manner that may cause a conflict of interest
with the organization.

1.5 The company must treat all shareholders equally

in the shareholders’ meeting.
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2. Treatment and Responsibilities to the Public Sector

The Company places immense importance on
compliance with laws, rules, and regulations in the
public sector, especially in conducting transactions.
The Company avoids actions that may induce the state
or government employees to improper action, but will
focus on building a good relationship between each
other to the extent appropriate and able to do so with
the following principles of practice:

2.1 Proper action when dealing with government
officials or agencies

2.2 Always be aware that laws, rules, or regulations in
various government agencies may have different
conditions, procedures, or practices. The Company,

therefore, recognizes and complies with.

. Treatment and Responsibilities to Employees

The Company has always recognized that all
employees are the most valuable resource of the
Company and are a factor of success in achieving the
goals. Therefore, the Company has established a policy
for fair treatment in terms of opportunity, remuneration,
appointment, transfer. as well as potential development
by adhering to the following principles:

3.1 Treat employees with respect for honor, dignity,
and individual rights.

3.2 Always maintain a working environment that is safe
for life and property of employees.

3.3 Appointment, transfer, reward, and punishment of
employees is done in good faith and based on the
knowledge, ability, and suitability of employees.

3.4 Give importance to the development of knowledge
and abilities of employees with constant
development, such as organizing seminars,
training, and providing opportunities thoroughly

to all employees.




3.5 Determine fair remuneration for employees in
accordance with market conditions, business
competition, nature of work, performance, and the
ability of the company to pay such remuneration.
Avoid any unfair actions. which may affect job
security of employees

3.6 Employees are given an opportunity to make
suggestions or file complaints about work and
determine solutions for the benefit of all parties

and create a good relationship in working together.

. Treatment and Responsibilities to Customers

The Company focuses on real estate development
business by creating, presenting, and managing the
company’s products and services to customers with
standards and ethics under the following operating
principles:

4.1 Committed to provide, develop products and

services to meet customer needs.
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4.2 Deliver quality products and services under fair
conditions.

4.3 Provide accurate and sufficient information about
products and services so that customers have
enough information to decide without exaggerating
either in advertising or in other communication
channels with customers, which causes customers
to misunderstand about the quality, quantity or
any conditions of the goods or services.

4.4 Provide a process that enables customers to report
problems or improper provision of services for the
company to prevent, solve problems for customers
quickly, and use such information to further
improve or develop products and services.

4.5 Maintain customer information and confidentiality

without disclosing or misusing it.
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5. Treatment and Responsibilities to Business Partners

and Counterparties
The company has a policy to treat business partners

and counterparties which is regarded as a partner and

one of the key business success factors with equality
and consideration of mutual benefits. The company has
the following practice guidelines:

5.1 The wish to ensure the efficient provision of goods
and services under the following principles:

e There is competition on equal data.

e There are criteria for evaluating and selecting
business partners and contract parties.

e Prepare contract forms that are suitable and fair
to both parties.

e Establish a management and monitoring system
to ensure full compliance with contract terms
and prevent fraud and misconduct at all stages
of the procurement process.

* Make payments to business partners and
contract parties on time according to the agreed
payment conditions.

5.2 We aims to develop and maintain sustainable
relationship with business partners and
counterparties with a clear objective of quality of
products and services that are worth the value of
money and mutual trust.

5.3 All executives and employees are prohibited from
accepting any personal benefits from business
partners and contract parties, whether directly or
indirectly.

5.4 Do not use information obtained from procurement

for personal or other benefits.

The Company has criteria for selecting business
partners with the following qualifications:
e Haswork that meets the criteria set by the Company,
including quality, price, delivery schedule and

service.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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7.

*  Comply with the law, has ethical standards of society
and value, and consider human rights, society, and
environment.

* Be in good business conditions and has a stable
financial position; Has a verifiable establishment with
a credible history of conducting business, no history
of prohibited trade due to fraud or abandonment
history, or in the list of prohibited names of the
government and private sectors.

*  Comply with the company’s policies and guidelines.

Treatment and Responsibilities to Creditors
The Company is committed to conducting business

with principles and discipline to build creditors’ trust.

The company adheres to the following principles:

6.1 Follow the conditions according to the contract or
that have been strictly agreed.

6.2 In the event that the agreed terms and conditions
cannot be complied with, the company will notify
creditors in advance to jointly consider finding

solutions to the problem.

The company will treat officers with responsibility,
fairness, upholding good practice according to the terms
and conditions of the contract guarantee conditions,
fund management, debt repayment schedule, and strict
financial obligations without concealing information or
facts that will cause damage to creditors, and will report
financial status to creditors according to the terms of
the loan agreement accurately and completely without

distorting facts.

Treatment and Responsibilities to Competitors

The Company aims to conduct business with
the intention of achieving sustainable success and
becoming a leading company in the business under
fair and ethical industry competition. The principles

for treatment of commercial competitors are as follows:



7.1 Conduct within the framework of good competition
rules.

7.2 Does not seek confidential information of
competitors with dishonest means for the benefit
of the Company’s business operations.

7.3 Does not make malicious accusations or maliciously
damage competitors.

7.4 Does not take any action that infringes the

intellectual property of others or competitors.

. Treatment and Responsibilities to the Overall Society
The company gives importance to surrounding

communities and society by realizing that we are
like a part of the society that will take steps towards
the development of society and the environment for
sustainability. Therefore, the company has continued to
conduct activities for the community and society along
with conducting business under responsibility towards
the community and society as follows:

8.1 Has a policy to conduct business that considers
the environment and comply with applicable
environmental laws and regulations.

8.2 Has a clear corporate social responsibility (CSR)
operating policy and adheres to within the
organization.

8.3 Encourages employees to be conscious and

responsible for the environment and society.
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8.4 Respects the traditions and culture of each locality
in which the Company operates.

8.5 Regularly conducts activities to contribute to
the creation of society, community, and the
environment to provide a better quality of life for
the communities in which the company is located.

8.6 Cooperates in activities with the communities
surrounding the area in which the Company
operates as appropriate.

8.7 Responds quickly and effectively to events affecting
the community environment, life, and property
resulting from the Company’s operations, in full
cooperation with government officials and related
agencies.

8.8 Have a policy against corruption. The Company
personnel prohibit bribery in any form, directly or
indirectly, whether by offering, giving, promising,
demanding, requesting, giving, accepting bribes,
or have any behavior that implies fraud or
corruption in order to obtain or maintain any other
inappropriate business benefits for the Company’s
personnel or other persons, especially government
officials, property gifting, or any other benefits
to government officials, both domestically and
internationally, making sure that giving does not

violate local laws and customs.
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/ /. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
AND IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT
THE BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES,
EXECUTIVES, EMPLOYEES, AND OTHERS

7.1 Corporate Governance Structure

Proud Real Company Management Structure Estate Public Company Limited as of December 31, 2022 consists of

the Board of Directors, divided into 3 sub-committees to help screen important tasks, namely the Audit Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Executive Committee. The Chief Executive Officer is the highest executive

of the Company.

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Executive Committee

Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee
Chief Executive
Officer
Internal Audit
Business Project Finance and
Development and Sales, Marketing . Administative
Development and L Accounting R
o Management Division L Division
Strategy Division L Division
Division
88
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7.2 Board of Directors Information
7.2.1 Composition of the Board of
Directors
Currently, the Board of Directors of the Company
consists of 8 members as follow:
e 7 non-executive directors, representing 87.5% of the
total number of directors.
e 3 independent directors, representing 37.5% of the
total number of directors.
e 1 executive director.
e 2 female directors, accounting for 25% of the total
number of directors.
The company’s regulations and the principles of good
corporate governance of the group of companies determine

the composition of the Board of Directors to be consisted
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of at least 5 directors and not more than 12 directors who
are appointed and removed by the shareholders’ meeting.
The board should ensure that the board is comprised of
directors with diverse qualifications, both in terms of skills,
experiences, abilities and specific characteristics, as well as
gender and age necessary to achieve the objectives and the
main goals of the organization by preparing skills matrix
to ensure that the overall committee is qualified and able
to understand and respond to needs of stakeholders. In
addition, there must be at least 1 non-executive director
who has experience in the primary business or industry
in which the Company operates. The details are shown in

Board Skills Matrix as follows:
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1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut 4 4 v
2. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm v v v
3. Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul v v v v
4. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul v v
5. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen 4 v 4 v
6. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 4 v 4
7. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop v v v
8. Mr. Dan Zonmani 4 v v

7.2.2 Information of the Board of Directors and Individual Control Authorities of

the Company

The list of the Board of Directors as of December 31, 2022, consists of:

Date of appointment

No. List of Directors Position .
as a director
1. |Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut |Independent Director / May 13, 2019
Chairman of the Board of Directors/
Chairman of the Audit Committee/ Chairman of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. | Mr. Verapong Chaiperm Director / Vice Chairman / Chairman of the May 13, 2019
Executive Committee
3. | Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Director /Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee May 13, 2019
/ Member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee
4. | Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Director/ Member of the Executive Committee May 13, 2019
5. | Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul Director / Member of the Nomination and 2015
Remuneration Committee
6. |Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul Independent Director / Member of the Audit May 13, 2019

Committee

7. |Mr. Dan Zonmani

Independent Director / Member of the Audit
Committee

February 23, 2021

8. |Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen

Director/ Member of the Executive Committee/
Chief Executive Officer

May 13, 2019

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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Company’s Authorized Signatory Directors

The authorized signatories of the Company are
Mr. Verapong Chaiperm or Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop or
Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop or Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen,

two of these four jointly sign and affix the Company’s seal.

Qualifications of Directors and Term of Office

Directors of the Company must be appropriate, qualified
individuals who do not have any prohibited qualifications in
accordance with the requirements of the Board of Directors
and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act,
Public Limited Company Law, Law on The Prevention
and Suppression of Corruption, and other related laws.
In addition, the board’s position has been determined as
follows:
1. At every annual general meeting of shareholders, at
least one-third of the directors must retire from office.
If the number of directors cannot be divided into three
parts, then the number closest to one-third shall be
issued. A director who retires by rotation may be re-
elected to hold the position again.
If the position of director becomes vacant for reasons
other than the expiration of the term, the Board of
Directors shall elect individuals who are qualified and do
not have characteristics prohibited by law to become a
substitute director at the next board meeting unless the
director’s termis less than two months. The resolutions
of the Board of Directors shall consist of a vote of not
less than three-quarters of the number of remaining
directors, and the replacement individual shall serve
only as a director for the remaining term of the director
he or she represents.
Any director who wishes to resign from the position
must submit a letter of resignation to the company. The
resignation is effective from the date the resignation letter
reaches the company.

The shareholders’ meeting may vote for any director
to vacate his or her position before the expiration of the
term by a vote of not less than three-quarters of the

number of shareholders who attended the meeting and
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have voting rights, and not less than half of the number
of shares held by the shareholders present at the meeting

and entitled to vote.

7.2.3 Information about the role and

duties of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is independent in making

decisions in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. There is a clear separation of roles and
responsibilities between the board and the management.

To comply with the law, objectives, regulations and

resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, the good

corporate governance principles of the Group of Companies
have defined the roles, duties, and responsibilities of the

Board of Directors, which can be summarized as follows:
The roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

as specified in the Group’s Principles of Good Corporate

Governance are as follows:

1. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

e Determine and review the board structure regarding
the number of directors and proportion of independent
directors, including a variety of qualifications to suit the
Company’s business operations.

e Determine the company’s vision, mission and business
strategy with regular reviews and approvals.

e (Consider the company’s core operational plan, budget,
goals, and policies for business operations, as well as
develop the Company’s capabilities.

e Monitor and ensure that the Company’s strategies
are implemented and monitor the performance of the
Company by requiring that the performance report be
reported regularly.

e Manage the Company in accordance with the law,
objectives, Articles of Association, Resolutions of
the Board of Directors, and the resolutions of the
shareholders’ meeting.

e Establish risk management policy and supervise risk
management, as well as regularly review and evaluate

risk management systems.
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Supervise and develop the Company’s corporate
governance in accordance with the guidelines of the
SEC and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

Encourage employees at all levels to be conscious of
ethics and integrity and comply with the Company’s
corporate governance, ethics, and anti-corruption
policies, as well as supervise the company’s internal
control system and internal audits to reduce the risk
of corruption and abuse of power, as well as prevent
illegal acts.

Oversee the interests of both major and minor
shareholders, as well as encourage shareholders to
exercise their right to maintain their interests and
ensure that the Company discloses valuable information
accurately, completely, transparently, verifiably, and
timely

Supervise the processes and channels for receiving
and handling complaints of whistleblowers or all
stakeholders effectively and provide opportunities
for all stakeholders to contact and complain directly
about matters that may be problematic to the Board
of Directors.

Consider the senior executive development plan and the
succession plan for the position of chief executive and
supervise the annual evaluation of the performance of
senior executives and have a system for determining
remuneration for senior executives that is prudent,
transparent, in line with their responsibilities and
performance to generate incentives, both in the short
and long term.

Annually evaluate the performance of the Board
of Directors’ duties and review the performance
assessment form of directors and sub-committees on
a regular basis.

Supervise the transparent process of nomination
and election of persons as directors and determine
the appropriate remuneration of directors and sub-
committees.

Attend board meetings and shareholders’ meetings,

except in case of force majeure whereby the directors

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

who are unable to attend the meeting must notify the
Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary in
advance of the meeting for a reasonable time.

Continuously develop knowledge and ability to perform
tasks. Attend training or participate in courses related
to the performance of directors’ duties or seminar
activities that continuously increase knowledge in the

performance of work.

. Duties and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the

Board of Directors

Supervise, monitor, and ensure that the performance of
the board'’s duties is effective, and the main objectives
and goals of the organization are achieved.

Set the agenda of the Board of Directors’ meeting in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and have
measures in place to ensure that important matters are
included in the agenda.

Allocate sufficient time for the management to present
matters and for directors to discuss critical issues

thoroughly, as well as encourage directors to exercise

prudent discretion and give opinions freely.




Strengthen good relations between executive directors
and non-executive directors, and between the Board of

Directors and the Management.

. Duties and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer
Supervise the management of the Company and its
subsidiaries in line with the vision, mission, values,
and policies of the Board of Directors, shareholders’
resolutions, Articles of Association, and objectives of
the Company.

Manage and supervise the general management of
the Company and its subsidiaries to comply with
the objectives, policies, rules, and regulations of the
Company, as well as follow up on the operations of
the management to report the progress of the results
of operations and operating results of the Company
and its subsidiaries to the Board of Directors regularly.
Set policies for human resource management and
support operations in all departments in accordance
with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors
to develop and utilize existing potential fully and

efficiently.

e Provide advice and transfer business experience to
executives and employees for their benefits to the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries.

e Manage finances and budget expenditures of the
Company and its subsidiaries for maximum benefit
and efficiency.

e Perform any other tasks as assigned by the Board of
Directors and/or the resolutions of the shareholders’

meeting.

7.3 Information about

the Sub-Committee

As of December 31, 2022, the Board of Directors
resolved to appoint 3 sub-committees comprising 1) Audit
Committee, 2) Nomination and Remuneration committee,
and 3Executive Committee, with the following details:

The Audit Committee consists of 3 independent
directors who are independent, knowledgeable, competent,
and experienced in the review of financial reports, as well
as having an understanding of the corporate business

and qualifying according to the Notification of the Capital
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Market Supervisory Board and announcement of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding the qualifications
and scope of work of the Audit Committee, B.E. 2558In
2022 the name list and meeting attendance of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has 3 members

of the Audit Committee as follows:

Attend all
meetings/
Name-Surname Position . 9
meetings
(times)
Mr. Anuwat Chairman 4/4
Maytheewibulwut | (Independent Director)
Ms. Anchalee Director (Independent 4/4
Bunsongsikul Director)
Mr. Dan Zonmani |Director (Independent 3/4
Director)

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit

Committee

Responsible for reviewing the Company’s financial
reports, adequacy of the internal control system,
compliance with laws, rules and regulations related to
securities and Stock Exchange connected transactions or
transactions that may have conflicts of interest to ensure
accuracy, completeness, and transparency. Review the
internal process for receiving and supervising the receipt
of whistleblowing, and receiving complaints as well as
considering the selection, nomination, and termination
of employment of an independent person to function
as the Company’s auditor and propose the auditor’s
remuneration. The details of which appear in the Audit
Committee Charter and the report on the performance of
the Audit Committee for the year 2022.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists
of 3 directors who are knowledgeable, capable, and
experienced in recruiting and considering the selection of
qualified persons to be the Company’s directors. Name list

and meeting attendance in 2022 are as follows:

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has 3 members

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as follows:

Attend all
meetings/
Name-Surname Position . 9
meetings
(times)
Mr. Anuwat Chairman 1/1
Maytheewibulwut | (Independent Director)
Mr. Anucha Director 1/1
Sihanatkathakul
Mr. Pasu Director 1/1
Liptapanlop

The Nomination and Remuneration

Committee’s Role and Responsibilities.
There are 2 main responsibilities:

1. In terms of recruitment, by considering the structure
and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company Group, the Company will consider individuals
with qualifications suitable for the specific characteristics
of the Company by preparing Board Skills Matrix, as
well as setting criteria and methods for recruiting and
selecting persons to hold positions as directors of the
Company Group, sub-committees of the Company, as
well as reviewing the Succession Plan for the positions
of Chief Executive Officer and senior executives of the
Company to keep the management of the company
going.

2. Compensation considerations by determining the form
and criteria for remuneration of the Group Committee
of Directors. The Group’s sub-committees and chief
executive officers, as well as considering special
remuneration to directors as appropriate. Within the
limit approved by the shareholders’ meeting. Consider
the bonus rate framework and the annual salary increase
rate of the Group employees. The details appear in
the Charter of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. and report on the performance of duties of

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. In 2022



The Executive Committee consists of 4 directors who
are knowledgeable, capable, and experienced in investment.
real estate development management economics and
finance. The name list and meeting attendance in2022
are as follows:

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has 4 members

of the Board of Directors as follows:

Attend all
meetings
Name-Surname Position I, gs/
meetings
(times)
Mr. Verapong Chaiperm* | The Chairman 0/12
of the Board
Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Director 11/12
Ms. Proudputh Director 12/12
Liptapanlop
Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Director 12/12

Note :*Mr. Verapong Chaiperm did not attend the meeting due to sick leave.

7.4 Information about executives

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive
Committee

Responsible for setting policies, goals, strategies, and
operational plans. annual budget and various management
powers of the Company to be presented to the Board
of Directors to approve along with control. Take care of
the business operations of the company group to be in
accordance with policies, goals, strategies, as well as giving
advice and management advice to senior executives. The
details appear in the Executive Committee Charter and the
report on the performance of the Executive Committee for
the year 2022.

7.4.1 Names and positions of executives as of December 31, 2022

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has executives listed in the Company’s organizational chart and as defined

in the Securities and Exchange Commission announcement as follows:

List of Executives Position
Mr. Pumipat  Sinacharoen Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Natarin Paramawes Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing Division
Ms. Naruedee [Koslathip Senior Vice President of Finance and Accounting Division
Ms. Anotai Worasunthararom Senior Vice President of Business Development and Strategy Division
Mr. Chisarat ~ Surakarn Vice President of Project Development
Mr. Kitiwat Chinrangkhakun Vice President of Project Development
Mr. Eakchai Tejthiwat Vice President of Corporate Marketing and PR Department

7.4.2 Remuneration policy Executive
Director and Executive Officer

The Board of Directors has appointed a nomination
and remuneration committee. It consists of 1 independent
director and 2 non-executive directors for a total of 3

persons to determine the policy, criteria and procedures

for determining the nomination and remuneration of
directors in order for shareholders and stakeholders to
ensure that the persons who will take the position have
the qualifications and potential that are suitable for the
company’s needs according to the Good Governance

Principles, including appropriate remuneration forms and
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criteria to take care of the company’s interests, as well as
in return to incentivize personnel to perform their tasks
in accordance with the objectives. The main goal of the
organization and consistent with the long-term benefits
of the business by presenting to the Board of Directors’
meeting for approval and presented to the general meeting
of shareholders for approval annually.

The company has set a clear and transparent policy
on remuneration for directors, The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration which is at the same level as those in the
same industry and is high enough to ensure and maintain
qualified directors as required by the Company.

In terms of determining the remuneration of directors,
for directors and sub-committees, both monetary and non-
monetary forms. The Board of Directors will consider the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. This is comparable to the remuneration rate
of directors in the real estate sector at the same level, as
well as the suitability of the scope of responsibilities of the
directors and sub-committees, which consists of meeting

allowances and salaries.

Provident Fund Contribution

The company does not make contributions to the
provident fund for directors. Except for the directors and
executives who are employees of the company as well. In
the year 2022, the company recorded contributions to the
provident fund for 7 executives, totaling 1.0 million baht.

In addition, the Company’s executives receive other
benefits and services in accordance with the Company’s
regulations as well as employees, such as medical benefits

and health check-up.

7.4.3 Total remuneration of executive
directors and executives
Executives’ Remuneration

In the year 2022 the Company recorded remuneration
consisting of salaries and bonuses to 7 executives totaling
29.4 million baht.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

7.5 Information about employees
Personnel

As of December 31, 2022, the Company has a total of
63 employees, of which in 2022 the Company recorded
remuneration for employees, including salaries, bonuses,
provident fund contributions and other income totaling
75 million baht.

The number of employees in each major line of work

is as follows:w

1. Administrative Department 2 People
2. Business Development and Strategy 6 People
3. Project Development Team A 3 People
4. Project Development Team B 2 People
5. Accounting & Finance 10 People
6. Sales and Marketing 28 People
7. Legal & Compliance Department 1 People
8. Information Technology Department 2 People
9. Human Resources Department 2 People
10. Purchasing and Administration 5 People
Department
11. Process Improvement Department 1 People
12. Public Affairs Department 1 People

However, the Company has not changed the number of
employees significantly in the past 3 years.

Remuneration and Welfare Policy
of Personnel

The Company recognizes that personnel are one of the
key factors in driving and driving the Company towards
business excellence. Therefore, the Company develops and
cares for all employees equally and treat employees fairly,
paying attention to welfare of employees, and focuses on
ensuring that employees’ benefits are paid appropriately
in compliance with employment in the labor market.

To reward the performance of duties and responsibilities,
the Company motivates employees to work efficiently,
boosts morale and enhances the well-being of employees’

families to determine the appropriate compensation and



welfare payment schedule Covering all age ranges of
employees in accordance with the situation, economic
conditions and be able to compete with the real estate
market. In addition, in 2022, the company has conducted
a survey of employee engagement to the organization to
use the survey results to develop compensation and welfare
according to and close to the needs and satisfaction of
employees as much as possible.

To make the remuneration transparent and fair,
the Company has set a remuneration policy in line with
the Company’s performance, whereby the Company
will consider remuneration based on performance and
profitability each year and use the Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) as a tool for managing compensation based
on employee performance. The compensation is divided
into 2 types, namely monetary compensation, and non-

monetary compensation, with the following details:

(1) Monetary Compensation

Salary

The Company has established policies and forms of
remuneration for employees according to their workload
and responsibilities. There is consideration of compensation
that is higher than the law, survey, and design the salary
structure of the organization (Salary Structure) based on
the compensation data in the labor market to be fair to
employees in accordance with the situation, economic
conditions and able to compete with the Company. In
addition, to motivate efficient performance and boost
employee morale, the Company determines to consider
adjusting the remuneration rate for employees each year
by considering the performance, goals, and direction of
growth of the company, together with the performance of
each individual employee according to the performance

indicator (KPI) set each year.

Annual Special Remuneration (bonus)
In 2022, the company has set a policy, rules, and
methods for paying annual special remuneration which

are clearly stated. It has also set clear work goals with

employees through the Performance Management System,
which consists of performance indicators (KPI) from
organization level to individual level so that employees
understand their job responsibilities and organization
goals and are able to work efficiently. The performance
results will also be used to consider the annual special

remuneration (Bonus) for employees.

Provident Fund

The company has established a provident fund
according to the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530, with the
objective of promoting savings, creating security for
employees and their families, and for employees to receive
tax benefits. However, the application for membership
of the provident fund and the amount of employee
contributions will depend on the employee’s willingness.
Employees can choose investment plans according to their
needs. And can be accumulated at a rate ranging from
3% to 15% of salary. The company will pay contributions
to the provident fund for each employee. at the rate of 5

percent of salary

Social Security Contributions
Other Revenues include allowances, divisions, and travel

expenses, etc.

(2) Non-Monetary Compensation.

Life Insurance and Health Insurance

The Company provides life insurance and health
insurance to all employees, whereby each employee is
entitled to medical treatment when sick in the case of
emergency, inpatients, outpatients, and accidents, and
receiving benefits in case of death. The amount of insurance

depends on the level of job position of each employee.

Annual Health Check-Up

Because the health of employees is a priority, the
Company has organized annual health check-ups with
the aim of encouraging employees to take care of their

physical health to be always healthy, as well as knowing
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the risks of various diseases and conditions Including
understanding and being able to prevent diseases that
may occur in the future.

Social Security Fund Contributions

This is a fund that comes from social security money
that is deducted from the salary of employees each
month, contributions from the Company, and government
contributions to be used in case of illness/accident which

is not caused by the operation.

Compensation Fund
Every year, the Company will issue all contributions to
the compensation fund to be used in case the employee

has an illness or an accident arising from work.

Grants and Benefits that Cover Families
Welfare for children, funeral allowances, funeral wreath
allowance, and funeral expenses. The welfare also covers

the case of parents, the employee’s spouse, and children.

Special Events

The Company places importance on employee
engagement and happiness at work as the priority.
Therefore, activities are organized to promote and build
good relationships, relieve stress from work, increase the
opportunity for employees to get to know employees
from different departments, both between employees and
between executives and employees which will bring about
a strong culture, a good working atmosphere, and the
strength of the organization, such as New Year’s activities
Annual travel activities of the company (Company Outing

Trip) , Chinese New Year, Songkran, etc.

Human Resource Development Policy

The Company believes that personnel are the
cornerstones for sustainable growth of the organization.
Therefore, it focuses on developing strategies for human
resource management in all processes. From recruitment
and selection of employees, performance management,

employee development. This includes applying technology
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to many operational processes so that employees can
collaborate happily with the Company and be able to work
effectively. Key details are as follows:
Selection and Recruitment Process
The Company understands the image of the organization
is one of the key factors for the success of the organization
that can help attract new employees and retain old
employees with the organization. Therefore, the Company
publicize information, present a good image of the
organization, and human resource management policies,
including corporate culture and working atmosphere,
so that the target group know, understand the correct
information, and are ready to become part of the company.
e Employer Branding Project. The company has publicized
information and presented a good image of the
organization, including communicating human resource
management policies such as corporate culture working
atmosphere, so that the target group can receive
information through various channels such as the
Company’s website, the Company’s social media , and
working with various job search platforms to ensure that
those who are interested in applying for the job get to
know and acknowledge accurate information about the
organization. This will help attract people with the same
goals to be ready to become part of the organization.
e Intern project in collaboration with educational
institutions to promote and develop the potential
of students to be knowledgeable, up to date with
technology, gain firsthand experience and can
experience the real work environment. Proud is also
an important force in driving the economy through
workplace training alongside studying in educational
institutions, while also receiving countless benefits, with
PROUD faculty and staff as caregivers and mentors,
while also increasing the chances of recruiting and
selecting high-potential people to join the organization.
e Proud Onboarding Program to prepare new employees
starting with orientation providing knowledge about
corporate culture, organizational overview, business

overview from construction to sales and transfers, as



well as providing on-the-job training by supervisors
or mentors to develop and help new employees adapt
more quickly to the corporate culture.

Performance Management, Rewarding, and

Recognition
In 2022, the Company has developed a (Performance

Management System: PMS) starting with the (Key
Performance Indicator. KPI) in collaboration with each
employee to clearly define the work goals of each employee
and to ensure that the performance evaluation results
are fair, transparent, clear, and acceptable. In addition to
managing performance through performance evaluations
based on suchindicatorindices, the assessment of employee
behavior is also a matter that the Company recognizes and
attaches importance to, so it has organized activities and
projects to promote performance management, such as:

e Preparation of performance evaluation system using
KPI: Key Performance Indicators to ensure fair,
transparent, and clear evaluations, and discussions
between supervisors and practitioners. A guide has
been set up to help guide the assessment of employees
more effectively.

e Mid-Year Performance Review enables employees
to understand their strengths and weaknesses
and improve their performance prior to the annual
evaluation.

e Providing feedback between supervisors and workers
to inform employees of where they need to develop to
move to higher positions in the future will help motivate
employees.

e Salary Survey exploration and improvement of the
salary structure of the organization to be up to date
in accordance with the situation, economic conditions,
and fairness to ensure the returns and salary structure
of the organization can compete with the real estate
market.

e Creating Way of Working so that employees can be
proud to be employees of the Company, be aware of
the quality of products and services, appreciate the

importance of customers, and consider the results of
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their operations at every stage, innovating to pursue
bigger goals, including promoting self-integrity to jobs
and to the Companuy.

e “MORE THAN JUST LIVING” Branding Workshop
educates, raises awareness and understanding of the
importance of PROUD’s identity essence that defines
image, identity, identity, benefits of the business that
the company does because we believe that working
with clear principles and have a solid common belief are
important basis that creates behavior and commitment

to work to always get the best results.

People Development

The company is committed and intends to create quality
employees to create competitiveness and sustainable
growth. Therefore, it pays attention to the development
of employees’ abilities in all aspects for employees at all
levels and in every moment of work. Therefore, employees
have been developed to have behaviors consistent with
the culture of the organization. Developing knowledge
and skills to work or manage work professionally and
efficiently development of new knowledge skills so that
employees can keep pace with changes, possess potential
and readiness to meet challenging business challenges,
both now and in the future, and are able to apply the
acquired knowledge to work operations or improve the

company’s operational processes. In the past year 2022,

the Company has arranged the following actions:

e The PROUD Onboarding Program is organized to take
care of new employees for a period of 4 months from
the start of work to the end of the probationary period,
whereby new employees are supervised by mentors and
staff, both in terms of work and other matters, in order
to provide employees with the necessary knowledge to
work, strengthen skills, reassure new employees, and
enable them to adapt more quickly to the culture of
the organization.

e Leadership Development ensures that the organization

can grow sustainably with an emphasis on planning,
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strategy, and team management to prepare executives
in the organization, both in business and personnel
management.

e Brand building project with understanding and caring
for brands (MORE THAN JUST LIVING workshop) is a
project organized to educate and raise awareness of
the importance of brands to employees. In this project,
expert speakers from outside are also brought in to
provide knowledge, so that employees can create
works and communicate the brand accurately and
appropriately.

e In-House Training is a project that promotes and
supports employee learning in various fields to be
able to perform tasks correctly and appropriately in
each position with a focus on conceptual adjustment,
the attitude and way employees work to be able to
cope with uncertain environments to ensure that the

company remains competitive and can grow steadily.

The rapidly changing world of business, technology,
and challenges in the new normal digital age causes the
organization to adapt, realize a variety of learning styles
that meet the needs of both the Lifestyle of the new
generation and the response to the epidemic of the corona
virus (COVID-19). In 2025, the company has therefore
focused on personnel development through online training
courses which can reduce restrictions on time and place.
Courses that the company has been organized such as:

e ADMD Product Knowledge Training for Business
Development and Strategy, Sales, and Marketing

e Mindsets to Win in the COVID Era work “well” with a
successful mindset .

e Basic construction cost estimation principles for project
development, business development, and strategy
improving work processes.

e How to Pitch like a Pro for Sales and Marketing.

e Hotel Management

Employee Engagement

Employee engagement to the organization and
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happiness in the work of employees brings satisfactory

results in many aspects, whether it is a matter of reducing
the turnover rate of employees, creating works of higher
quality and efficiency, commitment to work, and customer
service. The company has organized activities to strengthen
relationships between employees, to encourage employees
to meet and get to know each other, including Employee
Engagement Survey as a channel to receive opinions.
Employee feedback which is useful in formulating strategies
for managing the organization and human resources both

in the short and long terms.

Using technology to increase efficiency in human
resource management (Digital HR)

Today’s world is constantly and rapidly changing. This
is the result of the leaps and bounds of technology. For
this reason, the Company’s human resources management
has realized the changes, and has initiated the application
of technology in the workplace to provide convenience to
employees to be able to respond and provide information
to employees at all levels quickly and thoroughly, as well
as reduce work processes and reduce the use of corporate
resources, such as paper or document storage. In the past
year, it has been implemented as follows:

e Development of ESS system to provide employees

with convenient and quick access to the necessary



information, starting with the use of technology to

help with time management. The system developed by
the Company is User-Friendly , can be used anytime,
anywhere via internet network and smartphone, reduces
the company’s resource consumption, paperless , and

save the highest operating costs.

7.6 Other Important Information
Individuals assigned direct responsibility for the control
of bookkeeping, internal audit supervisors, company
secretaries, and compliance supervisors are listed as follows:
1. Ms. Narudee Koslatip holds the position of Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, responsible for finance and accounting
(CFO) and is responsible for supervising accounting. The
details of the history appear in the attachment.
P&L Internal Audit Co., Ltd., an internal audit service
provider, is responsible for the internal audit of the
Company, which was appointed by the Audit Committee
at the 5th /2021 meeting on November 5, 2021 . As
detailed, the history appears in the attachment.
Ms. Nittaya Maetineewattanavong, holding the position
of Legal Officer and Company Secretary and was
appointed by the Board of Directors At the meeting
No. 9/2021 on November 8, 2021, is the company

secretary, responsible for organizing meetings of the
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Board of Directors and the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders, including giving advice to the Board of

Directors in compliance with the law related regulations.

Follows up and coordinates to ensure compliance with

the resolutions of the Board of Directors as well as

keeping important documents of the company according
to legal requirements, such as the register of directors

Company’s annual report, report on interests and

holdings of securities reported by directors or executives.

and support various activities of the Board of Directors
to be able to perform duties efficiently and effectively
as well as the disclosure of data and information to
relevant regulatory agencies within the specified period.

Supervises the business operations of the company. The

details of the history appear in the attachment.

The Company also has an Investor Relations Department
with Ms. Narudee Koslatip. The Deputy Chief Financial
and Accounting Officer is responsible for disseminating
the Company’s information, both financial and general
information, to shareholders. Investors, securities
analysts, investment credit rating institutions through the
Company’s website under the heading “Investor Relations
Information” so that interested parties can study the
information conveniently in case of shareholders. Investors
and related parties have any questions and would like to
inquire, please contact the Investor Relations Department
tel. 02-035-0999 or Email: ir@proudrealestate.co.th or
through the Company’s website.

Auditor’s Remuneration
1.Audit fee

The Company and its subsidiaries paid audit
compensation to the Auditing Office, EY Office Co., Ltd.
the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries, in the

past fiscal year totaling 2,270,000 baht.

2.Non-Audit Fee
Consulting fee 120,000 baht.
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/ 8. REPORT OF KEY OPERATING RESULTS
FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

8.1 Summary of the board’s

performance in the past year

8.1.1 Recruitment, development, and
evaluation of the performance of duties
of the Board of Directors

Nomination and Appointment of Directors

To nominate and select suitable individuals to serve as

directors of the Group of Companies, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee will be responsible for selecting

and screening qualified persons in accordance with the

Company’s Articles of Association as follows:

1.

Consider qualified expertise, professionalism, leadership,
far-reaching vision, moral, and ethical, transparent
work history, as well as the ability to express opinions
independently.

Consider the Board Skill Matrix considering the suitability
of skills, experiences, abilities, and qualifications in a
variety of areas that are critical to the business without
limiting or discriminating against gender and race or
any distinction to obtain the composition of the Board

of Directors with the most complete and beneficial.

. Check the qualifications of the nominated individual

by inquiring to the SEC, including investigating the
conflict of interest that the individual may have with
the Company.

In the case of selection of independent directors, the

qualification criteria of independent directors will be
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considered. The Company has defined the definition

of independent directors in accordance with the SEC’s

requirements, consisting of 9 clauses as follows:

1) Holds no more than 1% of the total number of
shares with voting rights of the company, including
the shares held by related persons of such
independent director.

2) Is not or has not been a director who has
participated in the administration, employees,
workers, consultants who have received regular
salaries or control authorities of the Company,
unless they have been out of such nature for at
least 2 years.

3) Is not a person with a blood relationship or by
legal registration of another director, company
executives, major holders, controlling authority
or persons who will be nominated to be directors,
executives, or controlling persons of the Company
or its subsidiaries.

4) Does not have or have had a business relationship
with the Company in a manner that may impede
the exercise of his or her independent judgment,
including not being or having been an implied
shareholder or controlling person in a business
relationship with the Company, unless he/she has
been out of such nature for at least 2 years.

5) Is not or has not been an auditor of the Company

and is not a shareholder of any implied status, the
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controlling authority, or partner of the audit office,
which has the auditor of the company, unless he/
she has been out of such nature for at least 2 years.
Is not or has not been a professional service
provider, including providing services as legal
advisors or financial advisors, which receive fees
more than 2 million baht per annum from the
Company and is not shareholders of any kind. The
regulator, regulator, or partner of the professional
service provider, unless he/she has been discharged
from such nature not less than 2 years

An independent director must not be a director
appointed to represent the Company, major
shareholders or shareholders who are related to
major shareholders.

Does not operate a business that has the same
nature and is in significant competition with the
business of the Company or its subsidiaries or not
being a significant partner in a partnership or being
an executive director, employee, staff, consultant
who receives regular salary or holds more than 1%
of the total number of shares with voting rights
of any other company which operates a business
that has the same nature and is in significant
competition with the business of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

Does not have other characteristics that makes it
impossible to give an independent opinion on the
company’s operations.

If a director’s position becomes vacant due to retirement
by rotation, the Company will provide an opportunity
for shareholders to nominate a person to be elected
as a director every year. This will be proposed to the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for further
consideration and the shareholders have the right to
elect a person nominated as a director not exceeding
the number of directors to be elected at that time. The
vote cannot be split, and the shareholders shall cast all
their votes to select the candidates to be nominated as

directors one by one. The persons receiving the highest
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votes in descending order will be elected as directors
equal to the number of directors to be elected at that
time. If the persons elected in descending order have
equal votes which will exceed the number of directors
to be elected at that time, the chairman of the meeting
shall have a casting vote to obtain the number of
directors to be elected at that time.

In case the director resigns, or the director’s position
becomes vacant due to other reasons. In addition to the
deadline, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
will nominate qualified individuals in accordance
with the above criteria to be presented to the Board
of Directors for approval at the Board of Directors’
meeting, the resolution of not less than three-quarters

of the remaining directors shall be resolved.

Recruitment of Top Executives

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
established criteria for the nomination of the chief
executive to the position of Chief Executive Officer. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consider
and screen qualifications, knowledge, abilities, skills, and
experiences that are beneficial to the Company’s operations
and approve the preliminary qualifications before
proposing to the Board of Directors approval. In addition,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for recruiting top executives of the Company
Group by considering the executives of the company who
have knowledge, ability and experience that are beneficial
to the operations of the company group and presented to
the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors of the

Company Group for approval.:

Director Development

For newly appointed directors, the Company arranges
an orientation for new directors to acknowledge the
nature of business, the Company’s business guidelines,
and related information such as shareholder structure,
management structure, past performance, and major

construction projects of the company, as well as guidelines



for good corporate governance, relevant laws and
regulations for the benefit of the performance of duties
of directors with the Chief Executive Officer briefing such
information. The company secretary is responsible for
preparing important documents, including the Company’s
Articles of Association, company regulations, Principles
of Good Corporate Governance of the company group,
sub-committee Charter Minutes of past Board of Directors
meetings, annual reports, etc.

In addition, the Company recognizes the importance of
attending training courses necessary for the performance
of the Board of Directors and other courses which
promotes development of knowledge and competency
for directors on a regular basis. It also helps directors
to understand the business and can perform duties and
supervise the company effectively, for example, in terms
of good governance, risk management, internal control,
and laws related to the Company’s business, etc. Most of
the directors have completed the training from the Thai
Institute of Directors Association (IOD) as detailed in the

director profiles.

Assessment of the Performance of the Board
of Directors
The Company evaluates the performance of the Board
of Directors both as a group, as an individual, and evaluate
the performance of the Chief Executive Officer once a
year for the Board of Directors to jointly consider the
performance, problems, and obstacles during the past
year. The assessment is divided into 4 types, consisting of:
1) Self-Assessment Form of the Board of Directors
2) Self-Assessment Form of the Individual Board of
Directors
3) Self-Assessment Form of Sub-Committees
4) Evaluation of the Performance Form of the Chief
Executive Officer
The Board of Directors shall use the summary of the
performance assessment results to analyze, consider
improving operational efficiency accordingly and in

accordance with good corporate governance principles.

Self-Assessment form of the Board of Directors
consists of 6 questions:
1) Structure and Qualifications of the Board of
Directors.
2) Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors
3) The Board of Directors’ Meetings
4) Responsibilities of the Directors
5) Relationship with Management
6) Self-development of directors and development of
executives
Summary of performance assessment results of the
Board of Directors with an average score of percentage
3.8 (Full score: 4)

Self-assessment form for each sub-committee consists
of 3 questions on the following topics:

1) Structure and qualifications of the Sub-Committee

2) The Sub-Committee’s Meetings

3) Compliance with the authority, duties, and

responsibilities of the sub-committee

Performance assessment of individual committees the

summary is as follows:

Rati t
Sub-Committees ating (percent)

Out of 4
1. The Audit Committee 3.9
2. Nomination and Remuneration 3.3
Committee
3. Executive Committee 3.4

The self-assessment form of the Individual Board of
Directors consists of 3 questions as follows:
1) Structure and Qualifications of the Board of
Directors.
2) The Board of Directors’ Meetings
3) Roles, Duties, and Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors
Summary of the performance assessment of the
Individual Board of Directors has an average percentage

score 3.6 (Full score: 4)
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Evaluation of the performance of the Chief Executive
Officer consists of 10 questions:
1) Leadership
Determination of Strategies
Strategy compliance
Financial Planning and Practice

)
)
)
5) Relationship with the Board of Directors
) External Relations

)

)

9) Product and Service Knowledge

10) Personal Attributes

Summary of the performance assessment of the
Individual Board of Directors has an average percentage

score of 3.7 (Full score: 4)

8.1.2 Attendance and remuneration of
individual committees

7) Administration and Employee Relations Summary of the board of directors’ meeting as of
8) Succession December 31, 2022, as follows:
Meeting
List of Directors Position The Board of Annual General
Directors Shareholders

1. Mr. Anuwat Independent Director / Chairman / Chairman 5/5 1/1

Maytheewibulwut of the Audit Committee/ Chairman of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm(1) Director / Vice Chairman / 0/5 0/1
Chairman of the Executive Committee
3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Director / Member of the Nomination and 5/5 1/1
Remuneration Committee /
Member of the Executive Committee
4. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Director/ Member of the Executive Committee 5/5 1/1
5. Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul Director / Member of the Nomination and 5/5 1/1
Remuneration Committee
6. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul Independent Director / 5/5 1/1
Member of the Audit Committee
7. Mr. Dan Zonmani Independent Director / 5/5 1/1
Member of the Audit Committee
8. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Director/ Member of the Executive Director/ Chief 5/5 1/1
Executive Officer

Note (1) Mr. Verapong Chaiperm did not attend the meeting due to sick leave.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
scrutinize the remuneration of the Board of Directors and
its sub-committees before presenting them to the Board
of Directors for approval.

In this regard, the Company has determined the
remuneration rate of directors in monetary terms, i.e.,
meeting allowances, remuneration according to the

Company’s performance, i.e., director’s gratuity. However,
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the Company does not have other non-monetary benefits.

Establishing the criteria for the payment of that
remuneration. The Company considers the suitability and
other factors including 1) industry practices, 2) operating
results and business size 3) knowledge, abilities, and
experience of directors. 4) Roles, duties, and responsibilities
of directors 5) Performance of directors by determining the
remuneration of directors to be appropriate, fair, able to

incentivize and retain qualified directors. In addition, the



payment of directors’ gratuity must be consistent with the
dividend to the shareholders.

In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for scrutinizing the
remuneration scheme of the Chief Executive Officer to
present to the Board of Directors for approval, as well
as to consider the framework of bonus rates and annual
salary increase rates of employees based on the Company’s
operating results, economic condition and competitiveness.

The 2022 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held
on April 21, 2022, resolved to approve the remuneration
of directors as follows: 1. Meeting allowance of the Board
of Directors and sub-committees is paid according to the

number of times attended the meeting as follows:

Meeting Allowance for
the year 2022

Chairman Director
Board of Directors’ Meeting | 20,000 Baht| 15,000 Baht
Audit Committee Meeting 20,000 Baht | 15,000 Baht
Nomination and Remuneration 20,000 15,000
Committee Meeting Baht Baht

2. No gratuity was paid to the directors due to the

company’s losses.

The remuneration details of the Board of Directors and the Sub-Committee for the year 2022 can be summarized

as follows:
Unit : Baht
Meeting Allowance
Gratuity
Nomination Director
List of Directors Board of Audit Executive and from Total
Directors Committee Committee Remuneration Performance,

Committee ~ Year 2022
1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut| 100,000.00 | 80,000.00 - 20,000.00 - 200,000.00
2. Mr. Verapong Chaiperm - - - - - -
3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 75,000.00 - - 15,000.00 - 90,000.00
4. Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop 75,000.00 - - - - 75,000.00
5. Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul 75,000.00 - - 15,000.00 - 90,000.00
6. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul 75,000.00 | 60,000.00 - - - 135,000.00
7. Mr. Dan Zonmani 75,000.00 | 45,000.00 - - - 120,000.00
8. Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen 75,000.00 - - - - 75,000.00

Remuneration of the Board of Directors who resigned during 2022

- None -
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8.1.3 Supervision of operations of
subsidiaries and associated companies

The Board of Directors has a supervisory mechanism that
enables control over the management and responsibility
for the operations of subsidiaries in order to maintain the
interests of the Company’s investments by appointing
senior executives of the Company as directors or executives
in subsidiaries to jointly manage both at the policy and
operational levels, appointment of senior executives of
the Company which shall be approved by the Board of
Directors meeting.

In addition, individuals appointed by the Company must
ensure that the subsidiaries have regulations regarding
connected transactions. The acquisition or disposition of
assets or other important transactions of such company
shall be complete and correct and apply the rules related
to the disclosure of information and the above transactions
in the same manner as the rules of the Company, including
the need to supervise the storage of information and
accounting records of subsidiaries. The Company can
audit and compile the consolidated financial statements
in a timely manner.

The company has no agreement between the company.
with other shareholders (shareholders’ agreements) in
managing subsidiaries and the Company does not operate

business by holding shares in holding company

8.1.4 Compliance Monitoring of
Corporate Governance Policy and
Practice

The Company places importance on good corporate
governance. and business ethics of the company group.
Relevant policies and guidelines have been established in
the principles of good corporate governance and business
ethics of the company group along with promoting the
real implementation.

In addition, the Company has monitored to ensure
compliance with good corporate governance principles in

4 more issues, namely:
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1. Prevention of conflicts of interest

The Company has a policy on conflicts of interest.
Executives and employees must inform the Company of
any relationship or connected transaction in the business
that may cause a conflict of interest with the Company.

In addition, at every meeting of the Board of Directors
or sub-committees, the directors shall report their interests
at least before considering the agenda and record them
in the minutes of the meeting. Directors with such
interests cannot give their opinions freely and refrain

from participating in the meeting to consider the agenda.

2. Supervision of Inside Information

The Company has policies and codes of conduct
for directors. The Company’s executives and personnel
maintain the security and confidentiality of the information
and prohibit the use of material inside information of the
Company which has not been disclosed to the public for
the benefit of themselves or others, including trading in
the Company’s securities.

1) The Company requires directors and executives
to report on the holding of securities held by
the Company on their own behalf, spouse and
minor children to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) pursuant to Section 59
of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and
related announcements and send copies of the
report to the Company.

2) The Company assigns directors, executives, and
employees to be responsible for reporting changes
in securities holdings to commissions SEC under
Section 1. 59 of the Securities and Exchange Act
B.E. 2535 Within 3 days from the date of the
change in holding of securities. The Secretary
of the Company shall notify the Secretary of the
Company to prepare a record of the change and
summarize the number of securities of directors
and executives individually for presentation to the

Board of Directors at the next meeting.



3) Directors, executives and employees are prohibited
from using financial statement information or other
information that affects the stock price of the
Company to disclose to third parties or persons who
are not involved and do not trade securities within
1 month before the financial statement information
or other information that affects the price of the
company’s securities will be released to the public,
and must not trade securities until the 24 -hour
period has elapsed after all the information has
been disclosed to the public.

4) The Company will disclose the company’s operating

results and information that affects changes in

the price of securities and affects the Company’s
financial statements within 45 days from the end
of the quarter and 60 days from the end of the

accounting period.

3. Anti-Corruption

The Company has a policy against all forms of
corruption. All executives and employees will not be
involved in or participate in any corruption, will not bribe,
or accept bribes or exploit any unlawful and immoral in any
form, directly or indirectly, and regularly conduct audits
for compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy.

1) Directors, Executives, and employees at all levels

must comply with the anti-corruption policy and

Securities holding of directors as of 31 December 2022

shall not be directly or indirectly involved in or

involved in corruption.

2) Employees of the Company at all levels must
be aware that corruption is unacceptable in the
Company’s corporate culture.

3) Employees who participate in or involved in
corruption shall be subject to disciplinary and
statutory penalties.

4) If any employee witnesses an act that may be

considered a fraud related to the Company, the
employee shall notify the Company without delay
and cooperate in the investigation of the relevant

facts.
The Company will keep the whistleblower and the
name of the informant confidential for the safety of the

whistleblower’s life and property.

4. Whistleblowing

The Company has a policy and code of conduct
regarding whistleblowing, i.e., if any employee withesses
an act that may be considered as a fraud related to the
Company, employees are required to notify the Company
without delay and cooperate in the investigation of relevant
facts.

The Company will keep the whistleblower and the
name of the informant confidential for the safety of the

whistleblower’s life and property.

Number of shares of PROUD

No. List of Directors Position December | December | mcrease/
31,2021 31,2022  Decrease
' ' during 2022
1. |Mr. Anuwat Independent Director / Chairman / - - -
Maytheewibulwut Chairman of the Audit Committee/
Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
2. | Mr. Verapong Chaiperm Director / Vice Chairman / Chairman - - -
of the Executive Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
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Number of shares of PROUD

No. List of Directors Position December  December  'crease/
Decrease
1, 2021 1, 2022 .
31,20 31,20 during 2022
3. | Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop Director/ Vice Chairman of the 226,046,445 | 226,046,445 -
Executive Committee/ Member of
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
4. |Ms. Proudputh Liptapanlop Director/ Member of the Executive | 226,046,444 | 226,046,444 -
Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
5. |Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul |Director/ Member of the Nomination - - -
and Remuneration Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
6. | Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul Independent Director/ Member of - - -
the Audit Committee
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
7. | Mr. Dan Zonmani (1) Independent Director/ Member of N/A - -
the Audit Committee
Spouse and Underage Children N/A - -
8. | Mr. Pumipat Sinacharoen Director/ Member of the Executive 3,222,900 3,177,500 45,400
Director/ Chief Executive Officer

Spouse and Underage Children - - -

Securities holdings by resigned directors during 2022.

- None -

Management's securities holdings on December 31, 2022

Number of shares of PROUD

No. List Position December  December Increase/
31,2021 31, 2022 Decrease

1. | Mr. Chuntorn Chuntratip @ Executive Vice President of Project 100,000 N/A N/A

Development
Spouse and Underage Children - - -
2. |Ms. Natarin Paramawes Vice President of Sales and N/A - -
Marketing Division
Spouse and Underage Children N/A - -
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Number of shares of PROUD

No. List Position December  December Increase/
31,2021 31, 2022 Decrease

3. |Ms. Anothai Worasuntrarom Senior Director, Business - - -
Department and Strategies

Spouse and Underage Children - . -

4. |Ms. Budsabong Pansawadi @ Senior Vice President of Finance - N/A N/A
and Accounting Division
Spouse and Underage Children - N/A N/A
5. | Ms. Naruedee Koslathip @ Senior Vice President of Finance N/A N/A N/A
and Accounting Division
Spouse and Underage Children N/A N/A N/A
6. |Mr. Chisarat Surakarn @ Vice President of Project N/A N/A N/A
Development
Spouse and Underage Children N/A N/A N/A
7. | Mr. Kitiwat Chinrangkhakun Vice President of Project N/A - -
Development
Spouse and Underage Children N/A - -
8. | Mr. Eakchai Tejthiwat © Vice President of Corporate N/A N/A N/A
Marketing and PR Department
Spouse and Underage Children N/A N/A N/A

Note: (1) Mr. Chuntorn Chuntratip resigned during 2022.
(2) Ms. Budsabong Pansawadi resigned during 2022.
(3) Ms. Naruedee Koslathip has been appointed to the position during 2022.
(4) Mr. Chisarat Surakarn has been appointed to the position during 2022.
(5) Mr. Eakchai Tejthiwat has been appointed to the position during 2022.
(6) N/A means no information as the executive has been appointed to the position during 2022.

8.2 Report on the performance of  8.3.1 Report on the performance

duties of the Audit Committee of duties of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for the year

for the year 2022 2022

Further details are as shown in page 12-13 Further details are as shown in page 14

8.3 Report on the performance of 8.3.2 Report on the performance of
duties of the Executive Committee

for the year 2022.
for the year 2022 Details are as Further details are as shown in page 15

duties of the Subcommittees

follows:
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/ 9. INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERCOMPANY

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited recognizes
the importance of internal control and risk management to
have effective operational oversight. The Audit Committee
is responsible for independently reviewing the internal
control system without interference from other persons
in order to ensure that the Company’s internal control
system is in place, appropriate and adequate to protect
the Company’s assets and protect the interests of the
Company, its subsidiaries and shareholders, including
preventing fraud, corruption or risk factors that may
affect the operation of operations that may cause conflicts
of interest. It can be checked in accordance with good

corporate governance guidelines.

9.1 Summary of opinions of the
Board of Directors and the Audit

Committee on Internal Control according to international standards covering all 8

At the Audit Committee Meeting No. 1/2023 held important parts, namely:
on February 20, 2023, the Audit Committee assessed Internal Environment
the sufficiency and appropriateness of the internal Objective Setting
control system from the assessment report of the Audit Event Identification
Committee in various aspects to ensure that the Company Risk Assessment
give importance to proper internal control and adequate Risk Response
risk management. Therefore, there is an internal control Control Activities

Information and Communication

© N o U~ W N

Monitoring
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1. Internal Environment

The Company recognizes the importance of internal
management in the organization to achieve suitability
in business operations with competence and to create a
culture of good internal control. The Company separates
the authority from the executive committee in delegating
the work to the Audit Committee independently in
order not to create a favorable benefit to the Board of
Directors, all executives and employees which has written
policies and practices related to business ethics to allow
personnel within the company to acknowledge by setting
a framework for work, such as the conflict of interest
policy, anti-corruption policy, etc. There is also a process
for monitoring and evaluating performance according to
the specified business ethics for the organization to truly
operate properly.

The Board of Directors has established an internal
audit unit which has performs an independent audit,
both in check to control internal risks of the organization
and other issues related to business. In addition, in terms
of evaluation, follow-up and building confidence in the
organization, the internal audit unit can directly report

audit results to the audit committee. The Audit Committee

is personnel with immense potential, knowledge, ability,
and expertise in the Company’s business. This ensures that
there will be appropriate internal control. In addition, they
are independent in their work from the Board of Directors
and executives. The operation will be able to meet internal
audit objectives effectively and efficiently.

The Board of Directors has clearly defined the structure
of the organization’s management. There is a supervisor
assigned to manage each line of work which defines
the framework of responsibility, give authority to make
decisions and approve so that the work is clearly performed
and can be checked by assigning supervisors in each line
of work to be knowledgeable and competent. This can also

develop employees under their supervision effectively.

2. Objective Setting

The Company has set objectives for risk management
from both inside and outside the organization by assigning
the internal audit department to assess risks that may
affect the organization and reports to the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee to examine the risks
that may occur, determine the response to risks that may

occur to the organization, be consistent with the risks that

the organization can accept.



3. Event Identification

The company pays attention to events that may affect
the management of the organization in order not to cause
such risks to affect the management of the organization by
requiring a study of information that may be a risk factor
to the organization from both within the organization
and outside the organization, including current business
operations To collect such risks to present to the Executive
Committee in order to determine a policy to respond to such

risks in order to have guidelines to respond appropriately

4. Risk Assessment

The Company is aware of the risks associated with
the impact that will occur from the operation which has
an assessment of the risks from the business it operates
and operations within the company. The entire Board of
Directors has determined that there will be a response to
the risks that will occur. The Board has set auditing goals
that prevent incidents that will affect the organization. The
internal audit department has assessed the risks that may
occur to the organization from both inside and outside the
organization in line with the company’s business model.
Every operational level of the organization, every unit,
every operational position, including operational risks,
compliance, and external risks that may affect the business
in order to have a complete set of topics for auditing, etc.,
which have been considered by the audit committee and set
measures to control, prevent and respond to both negative
and positive risks in order to have proper risk management
from those who are responsible for taking such risks as
well as taking into account the risks that occur to the
organization on a regular basis so that auditing guidelines

can be adjusted to have an up-to-date risk response.

5. Risk Response

The Company responds to risks that may occur from
both within the organization found from the examination
of the internal audit department and from outside the
organization, such as the impact on the type of business or

economic impacts, etc. The Board of Directors is responsible

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

for taking risks of the overall image of the organization
including appropriate risk management methods and the
highest authority in each line of work is responsible for
considering such risks and find ways to respond to risks so

that such risks are acceptable for the organization.

6. Control Activities

The Board of Directors has set a scope approval
authority, duties and responsibilities are clearly defined
according to the operational structure of the organization.
There is a clear division of work duties for all executives and
employees to follow. It also requires that there be written
guidelines for controlling risks that may occur, such as
setting operational standards for all departments within the
organization, diversity towards the organization, such as
the Anti-Corruption Policy or the determination of control
in accordance with the law, etc. by such determination
for use in controlling potential risks, both from inside and
outside the organization. In addition, the Board of Directors
is interested in the development of information systems to
be adapted according to the structure of the organization,
focusing on the suitability and safety of the organization in
addition, the company has established a process to monitor
the operations of its subsidiaries to be the same standard
for all companies. All controls are reviewed on a regular
basis to accommodate risks that may change according to

each period in a timely manner.

7 Information and Communication

The Company recognizes the importance of developing
information systems and data communications to be
suitable for the nature of the business in which it operates
to be modern, both in terms of devices and operating
systems used, immediate access to use but still remains
safe to use which can be adapted for the utmost benefit
of the Executive Committee for use in operations and
decision-making. It is accurate and efficient information
and can also be used within the organization appropriately
including establishing communication channels in terms of

disclosure of information that is important to both internal



and external parties. In addition, channels for receiving

complaints, comments or clues are also established related
to corruption unlawful act from persons with personal stake
in the company or individuals to bring such information
for examination to find clarity or to adjust be appropriate

and fairness to all parties involved.

8. Monitoring Activities

The Company places immense importance on
supervising, monitoring, and evaluating whether it is
in line with the operational goals, business ethics and
requirements that have been defined, including the
performance of executives and employees, whether it
affects the organization to consider whether there is any
additional improvement or development in any part. The
operations in this section are scheduled according to the
specified period. From both the self-assessment of the
practitioner and the assessment from the internal audit
department. There are procedures that have standards
for auditing and reporting results to persons with risk
authority including reporting to the Audit Committee or
the Board of Directors to consider deciding again after
receiving the evaluation and be able to promptly correct
the risks that arise with appropriate risk response methods

for each event.

It can be concluded that the Company has an internal
control system that is sufficient and suitable for business
operations. There were no significant defects in the internal
control system and can protect assets from misuse or
unauthorized use by executives. Company financial reports
are prepared in accordance with accepted accounting
principles. The disclosure of information in financial reports
is accurate and dependable. The business operations of
the company completely comply with the Securities and

Exchange Act and other relevant laws.

Head of Internal Audit of
the Company

Currently, the Company’s internal audit department
is an outsourcing company, P&L Internal Audit Co., Ltd.,
which has been hired to audit for the year 2022 and 2023
(annual contract), which has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The individuals have sufficient knowledge
and competency to perform the tasks. The consideration
and approval of the appointment, removal, transfer of the
position of the head of the internal audit department of

the company must be approved by the Audit Committee.
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PART 3

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS







/ REPORT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTS

Dear Shareholders

The Board of Directors is responsible for the separate
financial statements and consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries, including the financial
information contained in the Annual Report, which the
financial statements for the year ended December 31,2019
are prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting standards in Thailand by choosing appropriate
accounting policies and observing them regularly, using
careful discretion and reasonable estimates in the
preparation of, as well as disclosing sufficient important
information in the notes to the financial statements so that
they can reflect the financial position and performance,
cash flow for the benefit of shareholders and general
investors accurately and transparently, and has been
audited by a certified public accountant which gave an
unconditional opinion in the investigation which the
company has supported with information and documents
so that the auditor can examine and express opinions in
accordance with the auditing standards.

The Board of Directors has established and maintained
an appropriate and effective system of internal control,
internal audit and supervision to ensure that the accounting
information is accurate, complete and sufficient to maintain
the Company’s assets and prevent risks, as well as to

prevent fraud or significant irregular operations.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

In this regard, the Board of Directors has appointed an
audit committee which consists of all independent directors
who are responsible for reviewing accounting policies and
responsible for the quality of financial reports review of
the internal control system and internal audit, as well
as considering the complete, sufficient and appropriate
disclosure of information about related party transactions,
with the Audit Committee’s opinion appearing in the Audit
Committee’s report in the annual report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the
company’s overall internal control system is adequate and
appropriate and can reasonably ensure that the separate
financial statements and consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are reliable, in compliance with
generally accepted accounting standards, and comply with

relevant laws and regulations.

|

(Mr. Anuwat Methivibulwut)
The Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Proud Real Estate Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Proud Real
Estate Public Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of
Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2022, their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence Standards issued by the
Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in my professional judgment, was of most significance in my
audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the context
of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do
not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to this matter. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for my audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.
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Key audit matter and how audit procedures respond to this matter are described below.
Revenue recognition from sales of real estate

Revenue from sale of real estate is a significant amount in the statement of comprehensive
income and it is a key performance indication in the real estate industry on which the financial
statements’ users focus. In addition, the Group has a significant number of sale agreements.

| have therefore focused on the audit of the actually occurring and timing of revenue recognition.
I have examined the revenue recognition from sales of real estate of the Group by:

e Assessing and testing the Group's internal controls with respect to the cycle of revenue from
sales of real estate by making enquiry of responsible executives, gaining an understanding of
the controls and selecting representative samples to test the operation of the designed
controls.

e Applying a sampling method to select real estate sale agreements to assess whether the
revenue recognition was consistent with the conditions of the relevant agreements, and was
in compliance with the Group’s policy.

e On a sampling basis, examining supporting documents for actual sales transactions occurring
during the year and near the end of the accounting period.

e Performing analytical procedures on disaggregated data to detect possible irregularities in sales
transactions throughout the period, including accounting entries made through journal vouchers.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Group, but does not include the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Group is expected to be made available

to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadeqﬁate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine this matter that
was of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. | describe this matter in my auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Piya Chaipruckmalakarn

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 7544

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 20 February 2023
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Short-term loans to related parties
Inventories

Real estate development costs
Current tax assets

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits
Investments in subsidiaries
Long-term loans to related party
Equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current financial assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

10

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2022 2021 2022 2021
199,222,959 288,630,819 4,197,090 9,463,165
106,070,004 258,171 86,854,615 30,607,562

- - 468,900,400 462,065,400

195,358 195,358 - -

2,721,449,611 3,344,655,181 - 3,782,770

2,220,710 1,808,114 2,207,954 1,896,847

153,691,440 280,264,504 10,001,727 7,307,934

3,182,850,082 3,915,902,147 572,161,786 515,123,678

192,366 191,890 192,366 191,890

- - 271,498,500 221,249,025

= R 100,000,000 100,000,000

42,484 717 9,829,021 2,501,429 4,078,201

10,257,629 11,112,021 485,881 3,510,894

4,775,997 4,604,021 4,775,997 4,604,021

27,086,150 45,202,092 2,896,245 2,389,125

2412912 1,315,616 1,706,192 1,198,005

87,209,771 72,254,660 384,056,610 337,221,161

3,270,059,853 3,088,156,807 956,218,396 852,344,839
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities and shareholders' equity

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

~ from financial insitutions

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term loans from
financial institutions

Current portion of lease liabilities

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate

Accrued expenses related to the projects

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

Retention payable

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term loans from financial institutions,
net of current portion

Lease liabilities, net of current portion

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for decommissioning costs

Retention payable

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

18
16

17

18

19

20

17
18

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
85,116,053 19,678,365 71,323,566 14,725,197
87,501,295 673,889,814 46,962,213 8,173,360
1,206,000 101,936,000 1,206,000 1,936,000
6,112,415 5,990,042 500,353 2,276,040
399,966,816 657,385,323 - 8,303,932
128,487,992 1,734,647 1,202,717 1,734,647
663,739,726 611,404,406 3 ;
16,319,799 25,918,359 13,933,921 14,023,745
8,369,128 2,919,063 4,317,173 3,822,241
1,396,819,224 2,100,856,019 139,445,943 54,995,162
991,390,875 1,258,910,144 - 964,000
3,560,409 3,273,382 - 500,353
3,381,735 2,051,392 3,381,735 2,061,302
8,253,002 8,038,796 3,288,478 3,173,508
42,219,991 19,113,129 - -
1,048,806,012 1,291,386,843 6,670,213 6,689,253
2,445,625,236 3,392,242,862 146,116,156 61,684,415

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

129

56-1 ONE REPORT 2022



PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities and shareholders' equity (continued)
Shareholders' equity
Share capital
Registered
673,148,951 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Issued and fully paid-up
641,469,040 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each
Share premium
Deficits
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

Note

22

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

2022 2021 2022 2021
673,148,951 673,148,951 673,148,951 673,148,951
641,469,415 641,469,415 641,469,040 541,469,040
263,629,186 263,629,186 263,629,186 263,629,186
(80,663,984) (309,184,656) {94,995,986) (114,437,802)
824,434,617 595,913,945 810,102,240 790,660,424
824,434,617 595,913,945 810,102,240 790,660,424

3,270,058,853 3,988,156,807 956,218,396 852,344,839
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of comprehensive incom
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Profit or loss:
Revenues
Revenues from sale of real estate 2,108,367 454 - 8,688,000
Other income 1,587,402 3,146,720 102,804,404 42,571,091
Total revenues 2,109,954 856 3,146,720 111,392,404 42,571,991
Expenses
Cost of real estate sold 1,340,558,199 - 3,782,770 -
Selling and distribution expenses 165,898 412 287,850 1,434,588 -
Administrative expenses 230,818,532 101,685,542 111,708,176 75,625,167
Total expenses 1,737,275,143 101,973,392 116,925,534 75,625,167
Operating profit (loss) 372,679,713 (98,826,672) (5,533,130) (33,053,176)
Finance income 335,661 471,137 29,575,217 32,112,169
Finance cost 24 (68,773,655) (17,154,169) (6,107,391) (1,281,057)
Profit (loss) before income tax income (expenses) 304,241,719 (115,509,704) 18,934,696 (2,222,064)
Income tax Income (expenses) 26 (75,721,047) 18,272,490 507,120 (27,989)
Profit (loss) for the year 228,520,672 (97,237,214) 19,441,816 (2,250,053)
Other comprehensive income:
ftem not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial loss - (257,291) - (257,291)
Income tax effect 26 - 51,458 - 51,458
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- net of income tax = (205,833) - (205,833)
Other comprehensive loss for the year = (205,833) - (205,833)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 228,520,672 (97,443,047) 19,441,816 (2,455,886)
Earnings per share 27
Basic earnings (loss) per share

Profit (loss) 0.356 (0.152) 0.030 (0.004)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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/ PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of changes in shareholder's equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2021
- Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2021
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at 31 December 2021

Balance as at 1 January 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Issued and Total
paid-up shareholders'
share capital Share premium Deficits equity
641,469,415 263,629,186 (211,741,609) 693,356,992
= . (97,237,214) (97,237,214)
- - (205,833) (205,833)
z (97,443,047) (97,443,047)
641,469,415 263,629,186 (309, 184,656) 595,913,945
641,469,415 263,629,186 (309,184,6586) 595,013,945
- - 228,520,672 228,520,672
- 228,520,672 228,520,672
641,469,415 263,629,186 (80,663,984) 824,434,617
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Issued and Total
paid-up shareholders'
share capital Share premium Deficits equity
641,469,040 263,629,186 (111,981,916) 793,116,310
- - (2,250,053) (2,250,053)
- - (205,833) (205,833)
- (2,455,886) (2,455,888)
641,469,040 263,629,186 (114,437,802) 790,660,424
641,469,040 263,629,186 (114,437,802) 790,660,424
= - 19,441,816 19,441,816
- - 19,441,816 19,441,816
641,469,040 263,629,186 (94,995,986) 810,102,240
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit (loss) before tax 304,241,719 (115,509,704) 18,934,696 (2,222,064)

Adjustments fo reconcile profit (loss) before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:

* Depreciation and amortisation 17,672,228 15,700,040 5,771,673 6,666,544
Loss (gain) on sales/write-off of equipment 4,691 946,702 (1,279) 223,984
Provision for expected credit loss - 253 E 253
Reversal of estimated cost for rectification and

maintenance expense = (624,776) - (624,776)
Accrued income for guarantee fee - - - (4,050,000)
Amortisation of deferred interest expenses

under lease liabllities 18 443,764 686,382 80,543 279,380
Amortisation of front end fee 1,444,079 - - -
Provision for long-term employee benefits 1,330,343 656,240 1,330,343 656,240
Finance income (335,661) (471,137) (29,675,217) (32,112,169)
Finance cost 66,885,812 16,467,786 5,026,848 1,001,676

Profit (loss) from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and liabilities 391,686,975 (82,148,214) 1,567,607 (30,180,932)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of cash flows (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Operating assets (increase) decrease
Other receivables
Inventories
Real estate development costs
Other current assets
Other non-current financial assets
Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Deferred revenue from sale of real estate
Deferred revenue from contract work
Accrued expenses related to the projects
Other current liabilities

Retention payable

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities

Cash received from interest income
Cash paid for inferest expenses

Cash paid for corporate income tax

Cash received from withholding tax refundable

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
(105,858,358) 8,124 (30,276,639) (434,028)
- 481,918 - =
668,324,325 (1,166,709,027) 3,782,770 =
124,469,970 (84,120,762) 22,050 4,343,577
(1,097,297) (59,186) (608,187) 813
(39,319,581) 75,936,828 38,534,268 (1,468,872)
(257,418,507) 298,859,353 (8,303,932) 1,065,894
- (1,383,541) - (1,383,541)
126,753,346 (3,875,435) (531,930) (3,875,435)
4,886,044 (229,941) 494,032 3,320,816
13,508,302 24,137,748 (89,824) (1.344,636)
925,935,218 (939,102,125) 4,691,115 (29,956,244)
382,186 378,113 3,604,803 68,906,670
(53,319,715) (35,201,232) (903,9609) (832,423)
(69,261,795) (1,898,114) (2,207,954) (1,896,847)
1,856,881 1,012,630 1,856,881 1,012,630
815,592,775 (974,810,728) 7,040,876 37,233,786
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of cash flows(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid to provide short-term loans to related parties

Cash received from repayment of long-term loans to

related parties

~ Cash paid for purchase of investments in subsidiaries

Increase in restricted bank deposits

Cash received from sales of equipment
Cash paid for acquisition of equipment
Cash paid for acquisition of intangible assets
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts

Cash received from short-term loans from

financial institutions

Proceeds from short-term loans from financial institutions

Repayment of long-term loans from financial institutions

Cash paid for front end fee

Cash advance for finance cost

Cash received from issuance of cumulative

and redeemable preference shares

Cash paid for transaction cost for issuance of

cumulative and redeemable preference shares

Cash paid for interest expense

Payment of principal of lease liabilities

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Supplement disclosures of cash flows information

Non-cash items

Recorded the interest expense as real estate project

under development

Increase (decrease) in accrued cost of land
Increase in payables for purchase of equipment
Increase in payables for purchase of intangible assets

Increase in liabilities under lease agreements

=
=t
©

6

20

20

18

18

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2022 2021 2022 2021
. - (36,694,000) (445,098,400)
. - 29,859,000 541,500,000
- - (50,249,475) (170,999,400)
(476) (474) (476) (474)
20,390 714,954 20,390 714,954
(37,693,188) (1,189,464) (429,255) (1,179,428)
(805,920) (299,480) (805,920) (299,480)
(38,479,194) (774,464) (58,299,736) (75,362,228)
8,437,688 5,580,708 (401,631) 627,539
57,000,000 - 57,000,000 =
408,658,313 522,326,349 - 2,900,000
(1,320,993,923) - (1,694,000 -
(3,850,000) (2,508,979) . -
(1,475,000) (10,786,644) . -
. 600,000,000 . -
e (3,854,151) . 2
(8,555,000) 5 (6,555,000) -
(7,743,519) (8,076,374) (2,356,584) (3,876,374)
(866,521,441)  1,102,680,809 45,992,785 (348,835)
(89,407,860) 127,005,717 (5,266,075) (38,477,277)
288,630,819 161,535,102 9,463,165 47,940,442
199,222,959 288,630,819 4,197,090 9,463,165
45,140,908 38,573,785 - .
(550,000,000) 550,000,000 .
3,419,327 9,500 82,800 9,500
43,000 - 43,000 -
7,709,155 6,292,193 - .
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PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
Note to consolidated financial statemant
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.1

2.2

General information

Proud Real Estate Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) is a public company incorporated
and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in real estate development.
The registered office of the Company is at 900, Tonson Tower Building, 6th Floor, Ploenchit Road,

Lumpini, Patumwan, Bangkok.
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their
presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the
Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from the

Thai language financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Proud Real
Estate Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) and the following subsidiary

companies (“the subsidiaries”) (collectively as “the Group”):

Country of Percentage of
Company's name Nature of business incorporation shareholding
2022 2021

Percent  Percent

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.99 99.99
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.99 99.97
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. Real estate development Thailand 99.99 99.99
Convent Beta Co., Ltd. ‘ Real estate development Thailand 99.97 99.97
Prompt Solution Management Co., Ltd. Property management Thailand 99.94

service
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2.3

3.1

3.2

b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has
rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it

has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

c)  Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

d)  The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant

accounting policies as the Company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the

consolidated financial statements.
The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reportilng standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised financial reporting standards and
interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding
International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards
clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the

standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial statements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after 1 January 2023

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International
Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying

accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.

The management of the Group believes that adoption of these amendments will not have

any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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4. Significant accounting policies
4.1 Revenue and expense recognition
Revenue from sale of real estate

Revenue from sale of land and houses and sale of residential condominium units is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer by
generally upon transfer of the legal ownership of the properties. Revenue from sale of real
estate is measured at the amount of the consideration received after deducting discounts and
consideration payable to the customers. The payment condition depends on the payment terms
which is stipulated in the contract with customers. Payment in advance from customers,
which made before transferring of control of the asset, has been presented under the

caption of “Deferred revenue from sale of real estate” in the statement of financial position.
Interest income

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual
basis. The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
unless the financial assets subsequently become credit-impaired when it is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit loss allowance).

Finance cost

Interest expense from financial liabilities at amortised cost is calculated using the effective

interest method and recognised on an accrual basis.
4.2 Cost of sale of real estate

Cost of sale of land and houses/residential condominium units is determined based on the
anticipated total development costs (after considering the actual costs incurred to date)
attributed to land and houses/residential condominium units already sold on the basis of the

salable area, and is recognised as cost of sale in accordance with the revenue recognition.

Cost of sale of real estate includes cost of other goods, such as furniture and fixtures, that
are considered part of the residential condominium unit and transferred to a customer in

accordance with the contract.

Selling expenses directly associated with projects, such as specific business tax and

transfer fees, are recognised as expenses when the sale occurs.
4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist cash in hand and at banks and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
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4.4 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost and net realisable value.
4.5 Real estate development costs

Real estate development costs are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of real estate development is calculated as detailed below.

Land

Land is valued at cost on a weighted average method (calculated separately for each
projects) and is recognised as cost in accordance with the revenue recognition.

Deferred interest

Interest expenses relating to project development are recorded as deferred interest, with
capitalisation ceasing when the ownership is transferred to buyer. Such deferred interest is
recorded as a part of real estate development costs and is recognised as cost of sale in

accordance with the average revenue recognition (calculated separately for each project).

Infrastructure

The costs of construction for infrastructure like road, electricity system, water supply system
and others are recorded as a part of real estate development costs and are recognised as

cost of sale in accordance with the revenue recognition.
Deferred project development costs

Preparation costs and project development costs before sales are recorded as a part of
real estate development costs and are recognised as cost of sale in accordance with the

revenue recognition.

The Group recognises loss on diminution in value of projects (if any) in profit or loss.
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4.6 Cost to obtain a contract

The Group recognises commission paid to obtain a customer contract as an asset and
amortised to expenses on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of revenue
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of an
asset recognised exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the entity expects to
receive less direct costs. Provided that the amortisation period of the asset that the Group
otherwise would have used is one year or less, costs to obtain a contract are immediately
recognised as expenses.

4,7 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the
cost method.

4.8 Equipment and depreciation

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on
impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the straight-line basis
over the following estimated useful lives.

]

Equipment - 5-10 years
Furniture and office equipment - 3-5 years
Vehicles - 4 -5 years

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on assets under installation.

An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

4.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset or development of the projects that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the costs of the respective
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

To the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the development of projects, interest
costs are presented as the actual borrowing costs less any investment income from the
temporary investment of those borrowings. To the extent that funds are borrowed and used
for the general purposes, the interest costs are determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that project. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the entity that are outstanding during the
year, other than borrowings made for specific purposes.
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4.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Following the initial recognition, the
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over the economic
useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation
expense is charged to the profit or loss.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives
Computer software 3 -10 years

4.11 Leases

At inception of contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group as a lessee

The Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the
lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Group recognises right-of-
use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based on

lease payments.
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease,
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located less any lease incentives received.
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Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs, on the
straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease term.

Buildings 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term or
the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

The Group discounted the present value of the lease payments by the interest rate implicit
in the lease or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or
a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.
4.12 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associates, and individuals or enterprises which directly or indirectly own
a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company,
key management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and
direction of the Company’s operations.
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4.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs impairment reviews in respect of
the buildings and equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. The Group
also carries out annual impairment reviews in respect of goodwill. An impairment loss is
recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset'’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
4.14 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund

are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group and employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly
contributed by employees and by the Group. The fund's assets are held in a separate trust
fund and the Group’s contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Group has obligations in respect of the severance payments they must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Group treats these severance payment

obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified

independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefits plans are recognised immediately

in other comprehensive income.
4.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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4.16 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the
taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax
rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they
recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be
utilised.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Group records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items
that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

4.17 Financial instruments

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
However, trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing component are
measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue

recognition.
Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), or fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is
driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flows characteristics of the financial assets.
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Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate ("EIR") method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Except for derivative liabilities, at initial recognition the Group's financial liabilities are
recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. In determining amortised cost, the Group takes into account any
discounts or premiums on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares are separated into financial liability and
equity components based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance date of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares, the Group initially
recognised the value of the liability component and redemption option at fair value using a
market rate and classified as a financial liability. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the equity component.

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares - liability component are measured at
amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until they are redeemed or due to repayment. The
value of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares - equity component determined
upon the issuance of the preference shares do not change in subsequent periods. The
redemption option are subsequently measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the fair value of the redemption option are recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issuance of cumulative and redeemable preference
shares are apportioned to the liability and equity components of the cumulative and
redeemable preference shares in proportion to the allocation of proceeds to the liability and
equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.
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Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group has transferred control of
the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
(a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a significant increase in credit risk to have occurred when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, and considers a financial asset as credit
impaired or default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to have a significant increase in credit
risk and to be in default using other internal or external information, such as credit rating of
issuers.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

ECLs are calculated It is based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the

contractual cash flows.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
4.18 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between- buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Group applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a
quoted market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation
technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant
observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair

value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on

categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:
Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or

indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the

reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding
matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported
amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant

judgements and estimates are as follows:
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Leases
The Group as a lessee
Determining the lease term with extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgement in
assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or
terminate the lease considering all relevant facts and circumstances that create an

economic incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, the
management is required to exercise judgement in estimating its incremental borrowing rate
to discount lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar

economic environment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based

upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

6. Related party transactions

During the years, the Group had significant business transactions with related parties. Such
transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and

were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Group and

those related parties.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Transfer pricing policy
2022 2021 2022 2021
Transactions with subsidiary companies
(eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements)
87 34  Contractual agreed price

Management income - -

Interest income - - 29 32  MLR -0.5% per annum

Other income - - 16 8  Contractual agreed price

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 148



(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements Transfer pricing policy
2022 2021 2022 2021
Transactions with related parties
Rental fee 4 4 - - Contractual agreed price
Other expenses 5 2 - - Contractual agreed price
Transactions with related persons
Return on cumulative and
redeemable preference
shares 2 1 - - Contractual agreed price

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of the accounts between the Group and

those related parties are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount due from and advance to related parties (Note 8)
Subsidiaries - - 37,901,421 7,618,345
Total amount due from and advance to
related parties - - 37,901,421 7,618,345
Interest receivables - related parties (Note 8)
Subsidiaries - - 48,761,058 22,744,120
Total interest receivables - related parties - - 48,761,058 22,744,120
Other payables and advance from related
parties (Note 16)
Related persons 110,000 312,000 110,000 312,000
Related parties 819,016 1,839,337 24,772,797 -
Total other payables and advance from
related parties 929,016 2,151,337 24,882,797 312,000

Interest payable - related party (Note 16)
Subsidiary - . 131 '291
Total interest payable - related party - g 131,291 -

Redeemable preference shares -
related persons (Note 20)

Related persons 20,027,816 18,000,000 - =
Total redeemable preference shares - related
persons 20,027,816 18,000,000 s
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Other current liabilities - related party
Subsidiary

Total other current liabilities - related party

Lease liabilities - related party
Related party

Total lease liabilities - related party

Loans to related parties

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate

financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
- - 2,812,188
- 2,812,188
3,084,031 6,487,031 -
3,084,031 6,487,031 -

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the balances of loans between the Group and those

related parties and the movements in loans were as follows:

Loans to subsidiary companies

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Balance as at

Balance as at

31 December During the year 31 December

Short-term loans to subsidiary companies 2021 Increase Decrease 2022
Convent Beta Co., Lid. 367,000,000 2,942,000 369,942,000
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. 52,712,400 11,576,000 64,288,400
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 42,353,000 22,176,000 (29,859,000) 34,670,000
462,065,400 36,694,000 (29,859,000) 468,900,400

Total

Short-term loans to subsidiary companies are due at call, carrying interest at the rate of

MLR-0.5% per annum.

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Balance as at Balance as at
31 December 31 December

Long-term loans to subsidiary company 2021 During the year 2022
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
100,000,000 - 100,000,000

Toftal

Long-term loans to subsidiary company bear interest at the rate of MLR-0.5% per annum.

The payment schedules of principal and interests are due within 31 December 2023.
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Directors and management’s benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had employee benefit
expenses payable to their directors and management as below.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

For the year ended
31 December

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits 31,298,200 25,251,037
Post-employment benefits 1,115,663 526,278
Total 32,413,863 25,777,315
Cash and cash equivalents
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash 278,829 98,461 67,879 73,690
Deposits at banks 199,136,496 288,724,248 4,321,577 9,581,365
Less: Restricted bank deposits (Note 11) (192,366) (191,890) (192,366) (191,890)
Total cash and cash equivalents 199,222,959 288,630,819 4,197,090 9,463,165

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed account carried
interests between 0.20 and 0.55 percent per annum (2021: between 0.05 and 0.25 percent
per annum).
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8. Trade and other receivables

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate
financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021

Trade receivables 102,665,777 - -
Amount due from and advance to related

parties (Note 6) - - 37,901,421 7,618,345

Other receivables - unrelated partie_s 3,404,227 258,171 192,136 245,097

Interest receivables - related parties (Note 6) - = 48,761,058 22,744,120

Total 106,070,004 258,171 86,854,615 30,607,562
9. Real estate development costs

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Land 1,998,408,249 2,625,032,470 1,641,624
Construction in progress and design
expenses 636,212,843 624,956,466 1,843,573
Promotion costs - 193,595 193,595
Capitalised borrowing costs 86,828,519 94,472,650 103,978
2,721,449,611 3,344,655,181 3,782,770

Total

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the subsidiaries capitalised borrowing
costs to be included in the cost of land and construction in progress which were calculated

from capitalisation rate from weighted average rate of loans as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

2022 2021
Borrowing costs included in the cost of land
and construction in progress (Million Baht) 45 39
Capitalisation rate (%) 4.80-5.17 3.25-5.08

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the subsidiaries have pledged some land and
construction thereon as collateral for credit facilities of the subsidiaries which have net book
value as follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

2022 2021
1,630 2,623

Net book value of land and construction that has been pledged as collateral
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10.

1.

12.

Other current assets

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Advance payment for project
management fee 87,571,969 190,228,045 - -
Prepaid expenses 12,185,540 4,046,391 4,558,620 2,091,667
Advance for purchase of inventories 41,371,463 70,551,911 165,306 165,306
Others 12,562,468 15,438,157 5,277,801 5,050,961
Total 153,691,440 280,264,504 10,001,727 7,307,934

Restricted bank deposits

These represent fixed deposits pledged by the Company with the banks to secure credit
facilities and letter of guarantees obtained from the banks.

Investments in subsidiaries

Company's name Paid-up capital Shareholding percentage Cost

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

(Thousand (Thousand (Percent) (Percent) (Thousand  (Thousand

Baht) Baht) Baht) Baht)
Ordinary shares
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. 200,000 200,000 99.99 99.99 200,000 200,000
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 50,000 250 99.99 99.97 50,000 250
Proud Horseshoe Co., Ltd. 20,000 20,000 99.99 99.99 19,999 19,999
Convent Beta Co,, Ltd. 1,000 1,000 99.97 99.97 1,000 1,000
Prompt Solution Management Co., Ltd. 500 - 99.94 - 500
Total investments in subsidiaries 271,499 221,249

The establishment of new subsidiaries

a. On 27 April 2021, a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution
to approve the establishment a new subsidiary under the name “Proud Horseshoe
Co., Ltd.”, which engages in real estate development and has registered share capital
of 200,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 20 million. The shares are
99.99 percent held by the Company. The establishment of the new company was
registered with the Ministry of Commerce on 28 April 2021 and 100 percent of which
have been called up. On 27 April 2021, the Company paid for such share capital of
Baht 20 million.
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b. On 9 August 2021, a meeting of the Company's Board of Directors passed a
~ resolution to approve the establishment a new subsidiary under the name “Convent
Beta Co., Ltd.”, which engages in real estate development and has registered share
capital of 10,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 1 million. The shares are
99.97 percent held by the Company. The establishment of the new company was
registered with the Ministry of Commerce on 16 August 2021 and 100 percent of
which have been called up. On 10 August 2021, the Company paid for such share
capital of Baht 1 million.

c. On 23 February 2022, a meeting of the Company's Board of Directors passed a
resolution to approve the establishment a new subsidiary under the name “Prompt
Solution Management Co., Ltd.”, which engages in property management service and
has registered share capital of 5,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each, totaling Baht 0.5
million. The shares are 99.94 percent held by the Company. The establishment of the
new company was registered with the Ministry of Commerce on 20 April 2022 and 100
percent of which have been called up. On 18 April 2022, the Company paid for such
share capital of Baht 0.5 million.

Subsidiary’s capital increase and additional called-up capital

On 6 September 2021, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Hua Hin
Alpha 71 Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary, passed a resolution approving the increase in the
registered capital in the amount of Baht 750 million (1.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 100
each and 6 million preference shares of Baht 100 each) from the existing registered capital
of Baht 50 million (0.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) to the new registered capital of
Baht 800 million (2 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each and 6 million preference shares of
Baht 100 each). The said company registered the capital increase with the Ministry of
Commerce on 9 September 2021.

The issuance and allocation of newly issued shares are as follows:

1. The issuance and allocation of 1.5 million newly issued ordinary shares with a par
value of Baht 100 each to the Company.

2. The issuance and allocation of 6 million newly issued preference shares with a par
value of Baht 100 each to specific investors which are related persons in an amount of
0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties in an amount of 5.82 million shares.

The Company presents the newly issued ordinary shares as investments in subsidiaries in
the separate financial statements and presents the newly issued preference shares as
cumulative and redeemable preference shares which are recognised as financial liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements as described in Note 20 to the financial statements.

On 6 July 2022, Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd., a subsidiary company, called up the
remaining 75 percent of existing capital shares, or equivalent to Baht 0.75 million. The
Company paid for such share capital on 8 July 2022.
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13.

On 6 July 2022, the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of Hua Hin Sky Living
Co., Lid., a subsidiary, passed a resolution approving the increase in the registered capital
in the amount of Baht 49 million (0.49 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) from the
existing registered capital of Baht 1 million (10,000 ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) to the
new registered capital of Baht 50 million (0.5 million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) by
offering new shares to its existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding. In this
regard, the shareholders have the right to subscribe for the new shares in proportion to
their existing shareholding, either in whole or in part, or to refuse to subscribe for the whole
amount of the offered shares. If any shareholder waives the right to subscribe for the new
shares (either in whole or in part), the un-subscribed shares will be allocated to other
shareholders who wish to subscribe for the new shares in excess of their proportion and
100 percent of which have been called up. Since other shareholders have waived their right
to subscribe for the new shares, the Company intends to subscribe for such shares. In this
regard, the Company has purchased 0.48 million new ordinary shares of Baht 100 each,
totaling Baht 49 million. As a result, the shares are currently held at 99.99 percent by the
Company. The said company registered the capital increase with the Ministry of Commerce
on 18 July 2022.

Equipment

Movements of equipment for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were
summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Furniture and

office equipment Vehicles Total
Cost
1 January 2021 12,227,486 - 12,227,486
Additions 4,429,331 822,431 5,251,762
Disposals/write-off (2,132,957) - (2,132,957)
31 December 2021 14,523,860 822,431 15,346,291
Additions 41,112,517 - 41,112,517
Disposals/write-off (59,132) - (59,132)
31 December 2022 55,677,245 822,431 56,399,676
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2021 3,088,546 - 3,088,546
Depreciation for the year 3,562,581 156,237 3,718,818
Accumulated depreciation on disposals/ write-off (1,290,094) . (1,290,094)
31 December 2021 5,361,033 166,237 5,517,270
Depreciation for the year 8,281,251 150,486 8,431,737
Accumulated depreciation on disposals/ write-off (34,048) - (34,048)
31 December 2022 13,608,236 306,723 13,914,959
Net book value
31 December 2021 9,162,827 666,194 9,829,021
31 December 2022 41,969,009 515,708 42,484,717
Depreciation for the year
2021 (included in the administrative expenses) 3,718,818
2022 (included in the administrative expenses) 8,431,737
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Cost

1 January 2021
Additions

31 December 2021
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2022
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2021
Depreciation for the year
31 December 2021

Depreciation for the year

Accumulated depreciation on disposals

31 December 2022

Net book value
31 December 2021

31 December 2022

Depreciation for the year

2021 (included in the administrative expenses)

2022 (included in the administrative expenses)

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

156

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Furniture and

office equipment Vehicles Total
6,910,569 - 6,910,569
366,500 822,431 1,188,931
7,277,069 822,431 8,099,500
512,055 - 512,055
(53,162) - (53,162)
7,735,962 822,431 8,558,393
1,954,306 - 1,954,306
1,910,756 156,237 2,066,993
3,865,062 156,237 4,021,299
1,919,230 150,486 2,069,716
(34,051) - (34,051)
5,750,241 306,723 6,056,964
3,412,007 666,194 4,078,201
1,985,721 515,708 2,501,429
2,066,993
2,069,716

——————



14.

Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets representing computer software, as at 31 December 2022

and 2021 was presented below.

Cost

1 January 2021

Additions

31 December 2021
Additions

31 December 2022
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2021

Amortisation for the year
31 December 2021

Amortisation for the year

31 December 2022
Net book value

31 December 2021

31 December 2022
Amortisation for the year

2021 (included in the administrative expenses)

2022 (included in the administrative expenses)
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(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated/
Separate
financial statements

6,752,390
299,480

7,051,870
848,920

7,900,790

1,765,244
682,605

2,447,849
676,944

3,124,793

4,604,021

4,775,997

682,605

676,944
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15. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

Bank overdrafts of the Company are subject to interest at the rate of MOR. The bank

overdrafts are guaranteed by a person without demanding consideration for the guarantee.

Bank overdrafts of the subsidiaries are subject to interest at the highest rate for normal

loans. The bank overdrafts of the subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Company.

Short-term loan from financial institutions of the Company is subject to interest at the rate of

11.5% per annum. The short-term loan is guaranteed by the pledge of the Company’s

ordinary shares which is owned by shareholder, amounting to 110 million shares.

16. Trade and other payables

Trade payables - unrelated parties

Other payables and advance from
related parties (Note 6)

Other payables - unrelated parties

Interest payable - related party (Note 6)

Accrued cost of land

Accrued expenses

Total

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
20,750,311 95,249,882 1,026,400 1,311,361
929,016 2,151,337 24,882,797 312,000
26,159,707 15,039,604 1,309,865 1,021,588
- - 131,291 -
- 550,000,000 - -
39,662,261 11,448,991 19,611,860 5,528,411
87,501,295 673,889,814 46,962,213 8,173,360
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Movements of the long-term loans account during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 were summarised below.
(Unit; Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Beginning balance 1,360,846,144 838,695,400 2,900,000 -
Additional borrowings _ 958,658,313 522,326,349 - 2,900,000
Amortisation of front end fee 2,865,405 1,925,096 - 3
Finance cost - Interest expenses on
borrowings (2,157,968) 408,278 - -
Repayments (1,320,993,923) - (1,694,000) -
Front end fee (6,621,096) (2,508,979) -
992 596,875  1,3R0,84A 144 1,206,000 2,900,000

Ending balance

Under loan agreements, the Group must comply with the conditions stipulated in the

agreements such as the maintenance of net debt to equity ratio.

As at 31 December 2022, the loan facilities of the subsidiaries which have not yet been

drawn down amounted to Baht 1,724 million (2021: Baht 1,068 million).
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18. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for used in its operations. Leases generally have lease terms

between 2 - 5 years.

a) Right-of-use assets

Movement of right-of-use assets for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

summarised below:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
Land Buildings Motor vehicles Total
1 January 2021 - 12,634,785 2,679,889 15,314,674
Additions - 11,012,672 - 11,012,672
Disposals - (10,918,122) (1,142,999)  (12,061,121)
Depreciation for the year - (10,656,368) (642,249) (11,298,617)
Accumulated depreciation on
disposals = 7,940,452 204,061 8,144,613
31 December 2021 - 10,013,319 1,098,702 11,112,021
Additions 7,709,155 - - 7,709,155
Depreciation for the year (1,713,145) (6,237,578) (612,824) (8,563,547)
31 December 2022 5,996,010 3,775,741 485,878 10,257,629
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
Buildings Motor vehicles Total
1 January 2021 5,686,889 2,679,889 8,366,778
Disposals - (1,142,999) (1,142,999)
Depreciation for the year (3,274,697) (642,249) (3,916,946)
Accumulated depreciation on disposals - 204,061 204,061
31 December 2021 2,412,192 1,098,702 3,610,894
Depreciation for the year (2,412,189) (612,824) (3,025,013)
3 485,878 485,881

31 December 2022
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b)

Lease liabilities

Lease payments

Less: Deferred interest expenses

Total

Less: Portion due within one year

Lease liabilities - net of current portion

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
10,004,729 9,568,247 512,100 2,868,684
(421,905)  (294,823) (11,747) (92,291)
0,672,824 9,263,424 500,353 2,776,393
(6,112,415)  (5,990,042)  (500,353)  (2,276,040)
3,560,409 3,273,382 - 500,353

Movements of the lease liability account during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

are summarised below.

Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Decrease

Accretion of interest
Repayment

Balance at end of year

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
0,263,424 13,459,038 2,776,393 6,373,387
7,709,155 6,292,193 - -

- (3,097,815) - -

443,764 686,382 80,544 279,380

(7,743,519)  (8,076,374)  (2,356,584)  (3,876,374)
9,672,824 500,353 2,776,393

9,263,424

A maturity analysis of lease payments is disclosed in Note 31.1 under the liquidity risk.

Expenses relating to leases that are recognised in profit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use

assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to short-term leases

Expense relating to leases of low-value

assets

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
8,663,547 11,298,617
443,764 686,382
2,938,898 627,911
284,793 96,000
163

2022 2021
3,025,013 3,916,946
80,544 279,380
2,117,831 208,105
174,077 96,000
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d)

19.

20.

Others

The Group had total cash outflows for leases for the year ended 31 December 2022 of
Baht 11 million (2021: Baht 8 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 5 million (2021:
Baht 4 million)), including the cash outflow related to short-term lease, leases of low-value
assets and variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate.

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate

Deferred revenue from sale of real estate comprises cash received in advance from
customers which can be classified by entity as follows:

(Unit; Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Proud Real Estate Public Co., Ltd. - 8,303,932 - 8,303,932
Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. 345,682,361 649,081,391 - -
Hua Hin Sky Living Co., Ltd. 54,284,455 . . .
Total 399,966,816 657,385,323 - 8,303,932

Cumulative and redeemable preference shares

On 3 September 2021, the Company, Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary,
and investors entered into an agreement of the shareholders of Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd.
The subsidiary agrees to offer 1.5 million newly issued ordinary shares to the Company at
the price of Baht 100 per share, totaling Baht 150 million and to offer 6 million preference
shares to related persons in an amount of 0.18 million shares and to unrelated parties in an
amount of 5.82 million shares at the price of Baht 100 per share, totaling Baht 600 million.

The rights attached to the preference shares shall be as follows:

Voting right 50 shares per 1 vote

Right to receive dividends Within 1 year from the completion of the transaction:
Preference shares are entitled to receive dividends at the
rate of Baht 7.5 per share.

After 1 year from the completion of the transaction:
Preference shares are entitled to a dividend of 10% per
annum of the par value of the preference shares.

Preference shareholders have the right to accumulate
accrued dividends of the preference shares.

Preference shares are not entitled to receive dividends
other than dividends at the rates as specified above.
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The right to receive areturn of  In the event of company dissolution and liquidation,

capital preference shareholders have the right to receive capital
return of preference shares and accrued dividend
payable of preference shares (if any) at their residual
value prior to liquidation before ordinary shareholders.

Redemption of preference shares Redemption of preference shares within 1 year

The Company and Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. shall
redeem the preference shares, either partially or entirely,
within 1 year from the date of completion of the
transaction. The investors will receive a return on the
preference shares at the rate of Baht 7.5 per share.
(excluding the tax payable of the investors).

Redemption _of preference shares after the maturity of
1 year but less than 3 years

(a) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has sufficient
retained earnings.

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to investors (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company will
exercise its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
at a price equal to the par value of the shares
plus a portion of the legal reserve.

(b) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has insufficient
retained earnings

(1) Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to the investors in
the amount that can be afforded (net of
withholding tax).

(2) Then on the same day, the Company wil
exercises its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
in the same proportions at the price equal to
the sum of (1) the par value of the shares
(2) the legal reserve (3) the amount of unpaid
dividends and accumulated accrued dividends
of preference shares and (4) the net of the
capital gains tax minus withholding tax at the
rate of 10%, as the investors are obligated on
tax payable for the accumulated dividend of the
preference shares.
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Redemption of preference shares at maturity of 3 years

The investors have the put option to request the
Company to purchase entirely preference shares from
the investors. The Company guarantees to act according
to the rights of the investors as follows:

(a) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has sufficient
retained earnings.

(1)

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to investors (net of
withholding tax).

Then on the same day, the Company will
exercise its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
at a price equal to the par value of the shares
plus a partion of the legal reserve.

(b) In case Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. has insufficient
retained earnings

(1

Hua Hin Alpha 71 Co., Ltd. will pay dividends
and accumulated accrued dividends of
preference shares (if any) to the investors in
the amount that can be afforded (net of
withholding tax).

Then on the same day, the Company will
exercises its right to purchase, either partially or
entirely, the preference shares from investors
in the same proportions at the price equal to
the sum of (1) the par value of the shares
(2) the legal reserve (3) the amount of unpaid
dividends and accumulated accrued dividends
of preference shares and (4) the net of the
capital gains tax minus withholding tax at the
rate of 10%, as the investors are obligated on
tax payable for the accumulated dividend of the
preference shares.

The subsidiary presents the preference shares as a financial liability component in
“Cumulative and redeemable preference shares” account at amortised cost until maturity

within one year in the consolidated statement of financial position. The subsidiary is

confident that preference shares will be redeemed within 1 year due to the transfer of

ownership of condominium within 2022.

As a result of the economic recovery from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the

transfer of ownership of residential condominium units by 2022 will be delayed.

Nevertheless, the subsidiary is confident that it will be able to redeem the said preferred
shares from the transfer of ownership of residential condominium units within 2023.
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Movements of cumulative and redeemable preference shares net from the transaction cost
for issuance of the cumulative and redeemable preference shares for the year ended
31 December 2022 were summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated
financial statements

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 611,404,406 -
Add: Issuing during the year -
Related persons (Note 6) - 18,000,000
Unrelated parties - 582,000,000
Total - 600,000,000
Amortisation of transaction cost for issuance of
cumulative and redeemable preference shares 2,650,389 1,203,761
Financial cost - Return on cumulative and
redeemable preference shares 49,684,931 14,054,796
Less: Transaction cost for issuance of cumulative and
redeemable preference shares - (3,854,151)

Balance at end of year 663,739,726 611,404,406

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to
employees after they retire, was as follows:
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year 2,051,392 1,137,861
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 1,284,802 639,286
Interest cost 45,541 16,954
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain (loss) arising from
Financial assumptions changes - (96,923)
Experience adjustments . 354,214

Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year 3,381,735 2,051,392

As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term
employee benefit is 12 years (2021: 12 years) (Separate financial statements: 12 years
(2021: 12 years)).
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Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised as follows:

(Unit: % per annum)
Consolidated/Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
Discount rate 2.22 2.22
Salary increase rate 5.00 5.00
Staff turnover rate ; 573-68.76 5.73-68.76

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of
the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

summarised below.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated/Separate financial statements

2022 2021

Increase 0.5%  Decrease 0.5%  Increase 0.5% Decrease 0.5%

Discount rate (129,971) 138,182 (86,848) 92,681

Increase 1.0% Decrease 1.0% Increase 1.0% Decrease 1.0%

Salary increase rate 298,617 (268,108) 178,215 (159,727)

Increase 20.0% Decrease 20.0% Increase 20.0% Decrease 20.0%

Staff turnover rate (442,166) 579,418 (266,588) 352,199

22. Share premium

Pursuant to Section 51 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, in case the
Company intends to offer share for sale at a price higher than the registered per value, the
Company is required to appropriate the amount in excess of the par value to the surplus
reserve fund. Share premium is not available for dividend distribution.
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23. Revenue from contracts with customers
23.1 Revenue recognised to relation to contract balances

During the year 2022, the subsidiary company recognised the items that were included in
advance received from customers at the beginning of the year of Baht 414 million as the
revenue in the statement of comprehensive income (2021: Nil).

23.2 Revenue to be recognised for the remaining performance obligations

As at 31 December 2022, expected revenue to be recognition in the future relating to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) of contracts with

customers are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Nalure of business:
Real estate development 1,390,880,635 2,961,709,811 - 8,588,000

The Group expects to satisfy the performance obligations within 3 years.

However, the revenue recognised in the future are subject to several internal and external
factors including ability to make installment payments by customers and getting approved
credit facilities from banks, the progression of projects construction of the Group and also
economic and political conditions.

24. Finance cost

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Interest expenses on borrowings 15,780,364 899,358 4,911,877 836,713
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 443,764 686,382 80,544 279,380
Return on cumulative and redeemable
preference shares 52,335,320 15,258,657 - -
Others 214,207 309,872 114,970 164,964
Tofal 68,773,655 17,154,169 5,107,391 1,281,057
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25. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

Construction infrastructure and
design expenses

Land cost

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits

Transfer and commission fee
Promotion and advertising expenses
Rental and service expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

26. Income tax

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate

financial statements

2022 2021
747,627,235 -
627,806,010 -

82,320,663 49,811,429
40,218,345 -
88,297,738 1,828,725

3,112,976 2,874,500
17,672,228 15,700,040

2022 2021
2,141,146 -
1,641,624 -

82,320,663 49,811,429
1,434,588 -
5,475,868 1,685,702
2,291,908 1,603,707
5,771,673 6,666,544

Income tax expenses (income) for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are made

up as follows:

Current income tax

Current income tax charge

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Income tax expenses (income) reported in

profit or loss

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate
financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
57,605,105 - -
18,115,942  (18,272,490) (507,120) 27,989
75,721,047  (18,272,490) (507,120) 27,989

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Deferred tax on actuarial losses

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate
financial statements

2022 2021
- (51,458)

2022 2021
. (51,458)
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The reconciliation between accounting profit (loss) and income tax expenses (income) was

shown below.

Accounting profit (loss) before tax

Applicable tax rate

Accounting profit (loss) before tax multiplied by
income tax rate

Effects of:
Non-deductible expenses

Deferred tax assets not recognised

Decrease in recognition of deferred tax assets

Unused tax loss increased (decreased)

Income tax expenses (income) reported in
profit or loss

Consolidated
financial statements

(Unit: Baht)
Separate
financial statements

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for expected credit losses - retention

The difference between book and tax
accounting net revenue

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for decommissioning costs

Unused tax loss

Interest on loan from parent company

capitalised as project costs

Total

2022 2021 2022 2021
304,241,719  (115,509,704) 18,934,696 (2,222,064)
20% 20% 20% 20%
60,848,344  (23,101,941) 3,786,939 (444 ,413)
15,877,206 4,544,727 3,195,329 981,703
(161,636) (967,786) (161,636) (967,786)
- 461,153 - 438,098
(842,867) 791,357 (7,327,752) 20,387
75,721,047  (18,272,490) (507,120) 27,989
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated Separate

financial statements

financial statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
1,596,929 1,596,928 1,596,929 1,596,928
169,102 322,865 (34,726) (101,682)
676,347 410,278 676,347 410,278
1,326,917 809,292 657,695 483,601
7,711,564 23,997,038 - &
15,605,291 18,065,691 - -
27,086,150 45,202,092 2,896,245 2,389,125
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible temporary differences Baht 1 million
(2021: Baht 2 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 1 million (2021: Baht 2 million)) and
unused tax losses which will expire in 2023 - 2027 totaling Baht 35 million (2021: Baht 53
million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 6 million (2021: Baht 48 million)), on which deferred
tax assets have not been recognised as the Group believes that the future taxable profits may
not be sufficient to allow utilisation of the temporary differences and unused tax losses.

27. Earnings per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing profit (loss) for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company (excluding other comprehensive income) by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
28. Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions

about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The Group is principally engaged in the development of real estate segment. Its operations
are carried on only in Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on operating
profit or loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the
financial statements. As a result, all of the revenues, operating profits and assets as
reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to the aforementioned reportable

operating segment and geographical area.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of the business units
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing
performance. Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and total
assets and on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss and total

assets in the financial statements.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent
with that for third party transactions.

Geographic information

The Group operates in Thailand only. As a resuit, all the revenues and assets as reflected

in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable segment.
Main customers

For the years 2022 and 2021, the Group has no major customer with revenue of 10 percent

or more of an entity's revenues.
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29. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company contributed to the fund monthly at the
rate of 5 percent of basic salary and its employees contributed to the fund monthly at the
rate of 3 percent to 15 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by Kasikorn
Asset Management Co., Ltd., will be paid to the employees upon termination in accordance
with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2022 amounting to approximately Baht 1 million
(2021: Baht 1 million) were recognised as expenses.

30. Commitments and contingent liabilities

30.1 As at 31 December 2022, the Group had commitments in respect of service agreements
payable in the future, which the terms of the agreements are generally between 1 and 3 years,
of approximately Baht 21 million (2021: Baht 6 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht
19 million (2021: Baht 1 million)).

30.2 Commitments with respect to project development and related services

The Group had commitments in respect of property development cost and related services
totaling Baht 257 million (2021: Baht 601 million) (Separate financial statements: Nil (2021:
Baht 0.2 million)).

30.3 Guarantees

(1) As at 31 December 2022, the Company has guaranteed bank credit facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to Baht 2,823 million (2021: Baht 3,833 million).

(2) As at 31 December 2022, there were outstanding bank guarantees of approximately
Baht 0.3 million (2021: Baht 0.3 million) issued by banks on behalf of the Company to

guarantee contractual performance.
30.4 Other commitment

On 22 November 2019, a subsidiary company entered into a sales and marketing license
agreement with Intercontinental Hotel Group (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. The subsidiary
company is obligated to comply with the conditions stipulated in the agreement whereby it
shall pay 3% of revenue generated by sales of condominium units.
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31. Financial instruments
31.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade payables, loans, short-term borrowings, cumulative and redeemable
preference shares and long-term loans. The financial risks associated with these financial

instruments and how they are managed is described below.
Credit risk

Credit risk primarily with respect to trade receivables, loans, deposits with banks and
financial institutions and other financial instruments. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
limited to the carrying amounts as stated in the statement of financial position.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures
and therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. Outstanding trade
receivables and contract assets are regularly monitored. In addition, the Group does not
have high concentrations of credit risk since it has a large number of customers.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar credit risks. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.
Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Group manages the credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions by
making investments only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to
each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’'s Board of
Directors, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s
Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore

mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.
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Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits with banks,

overdrafts, short-term loans, loans and borrowings. Most of the Group'’s financial assets and

liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market

rate.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, significant financial assets and liabilities classified by

type of interest rate are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets and

liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the

repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Restricted bank deposits

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from
financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Long-term loans

Cumulative and redeemable
preference shares

Retention payable

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2022
ized interest rate Floating Non-Interest Effective
Within 1 year 1-5years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per
annum)
- - 198,861,038 361,921 199,222,959 0.20 to 0.55
- - - 106,070,004 106,070,004 -
- - 192,366 - 192,366 0.20 to 0.55
- - - 2,412,912 2,412,912
- - 199,063,404 108,844,837 307,898,241
- - 85,116,053 - 85,116,053 MOR and 11.5
- - - 87,501,295 87,501,295 -
1,206,000 - 991,390,875 - 992,596,875 2 and MLR-2.00
to MLR-1.50
663,739,726 - - - 663,739,726 10
- - - 58,539,790 58,539,790 R
664,945,726 - 1,076,506,928 146,041,085 1,887,493,739
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Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Restricted bank deposits

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from
financial institutions
Trade and other payables
Long-term loans

Cumulative and redeemable
preference shares
Retention payable

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables

Short-term loans to related
parties

Long-term loans to related party

Restricted bank deposits

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Bank overdrafts and
short-term loans from
financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Long-term loan

Retention payable

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

31 December 2021

Fixed interest rate Floating Non-interest Effective
Within 1 year 1-5years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per
annum)
- - 287,888,502 742,317 288,630,819 0.05t0 0.25
- - - 258,171 258,171 -
- - 191,890 - 191,890 0.25t00.75
- - - 1,315,615 1,316,615 -
= - 288,080,392 2,316,103 290,396,495
- - 19,678,365 - 19,678,365 MOR
- - - 673,889,814 673,889,814 -
- 2,900,000 1,357,946,144 - 1,360,846,144 2 and MLR-2.00
to MLR-1.50
611,404,406 - - - 611,404,406 8.14
- - - 45,031,488 45,031,488 R
611,404,406 2,900,000 1,377,624,509 718,921,302 2,710,850,217
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
31 December 2022
Fixed interest Floating Non-interest Effective
rate 1 - 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
- 4,098,211 98,879 4,197,090 0.20 to 0.55
- - 86,854,615 86,854,615 s
- 468,900,400 - 468,900,400 MLR-0.50
- 100,000,000 - 100,000,000 MLR-0.50
- 192,366 - 192,366 0.20t0 0.75
- - 1,706,192 1,706,192 -
- 573,190,977 88,659,686 661,850,663
- 71,323,566 - 71,323,566  MOR and 11.5
- - 46,962,213 46,962,213 -
1,206,000 - - 1,206,000 2
- - 13,933,921 13,933,921 ,
1,206,000 71,323,566 60,896,134 133,425,700
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(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
31 December 2021

Fixed interest Floating Non-interest Effective
rate 1 - 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate

(% per annum)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 9,356,393 106,772 9,463,165 0.05t00.25
Other receivables - - 30,607,562 30,607,562 -
Short-term loans to related

parties ' - 462,065,400 - 462,065,400 MLR - 0.50
Long-term loans to related party - 100,000,000 - 100,000,000 MLR - 0.50
Restricted bank deposits - 191,890 - 191,890 0.25t00.75
Other financial assets 2 & 1,198,005 1,198,005 -

- 571,613,683 31,912,339 603,526,022

Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term

loans from financial

institutions - 14,725,197 - 14,725,197 MOR
Trade and other payables . - 8,173,360 8,173,360 -
Long-term loan 2,900,000 - . 2,900,000 2
Retention payable - - 14,023,745 14,023,745 -
2,900,000 14,725,197 22,197,105 39,822,302

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss before tax to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of Bank overdrafts and short-term
loans from financial institutions, overdrafts and long-term loans affected as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

2022 2021
Effect to profit before Effect to loss before
Increase tax increase Increase tax (increase)
Currency (decrease) (decrease) (decrease) decrease
(%) (Baht) (%) (Baht)
Baht 0.5 (5,382,535) 0.5 (6,888,123)
(0.5) 5,382,535 (0.5) 6,888,123

Liquidity risk

The Group need liquidity to meet its obligations and is responsible for its own cash
balances and the raising of internal and external credit lines to cover the liquidity needs.
The Group monitors the risk of a shortage of liquidity position by recurring liquidity planning
an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent, unused committed and uncommitted credit

lines with various banks to meet its liquidity requirements.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial

liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Non-derivatives

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Cumulative and redeemable preference
shares

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

Non-derivatives

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Cumulative and redeemable preference

shares

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2022
On demand Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

85,116,053 - 85,116,053
- 87,501,295 - 87,501,295

- 6,414,729 3,680,000 10,094,729

- 1,206,000 998,784,739 999,990,739

- 680,744,562 - 680,744,562

- 16,319,799 42,219,991 58,539,790
85,116,053 792,186,385 1,044,684,730 1,921,987,168
(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
31 December 2021
On demand Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

19,678,365 - - 19,678,365
- 673,889,814 - 673,889,814

- 6,214,520 3,343,727 9,558,247

- 162,318,454  1,309,627,708 1,461,946,162

- 645,000,000 - 645,000,000

- 25,918,359 19,113,129 45,031,488
19,678,365  1,603,341,147  1,332,084,564 2,855,104,076
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Non-derivatives

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Long-term loan

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

Non-derivatives

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
from financial institutions

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Long-term loan

Retention payable

Total non-derivatives

Separate financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

31 December 2022

Ondemand  Lessthaniyear 1 to5 years Total
71,323,566 = 71,323,566
- 46,962,213 46,962,213
- 512,100 512,100
- 1,206,000 1,206,000
- 13,933,921 13,933,921
71,323,566 62,614,234 133,937,800
(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
31 December 2021 N
On dgmgnd Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
14,725,197 - - 14,725,197
- 8,173,360 - 8,173,360
- 2,356,584 512,100 2,868,684
- 1,993,842 983,809 2,977,651
- 14,023,745 - 14,023,745
14,725,197 26,547,631 1,495,909 42,768,637

31.2 Fair values of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Group’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or carrying

interest at rates close to the market interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be

materially different from the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
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32. Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it has
appropriate capital structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder

value.

The Group manages its capital position with reference to its net debt-to-equity ratio in order
to comply with a condition in loan agreement, which requires the Group to maintain the net
debt to equity ratio not exceeding 3.25:1 (2021: 2:1).

The Group’s net debt used to calculate the above financial ratio is the net value of interest
bearing liabilities minus with cash and/or cash equivalent in the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group’s equity used to calculate the above financial ratio is the shareholders’ equity in

the consolidated financial statements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

33. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors
on 20 February 2023.
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/ ATTACHMENT 1 : THE INFORMATION OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVES, CONTROLLING PERSONS
WHO WAS APPOINTED AS THE TOP EXECUTIVE OF
THE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING FUNCTION,

VICE PRESIDENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Further details are as shown in page 16-26, 101

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 184



/ ATTACHMENT 2 : THE INFORMATION OF BOARD OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries
. el .
2 b )
= 3 S 5 S 5
H [] — = o R
Directors E : = S § s S
7} c - © 7] B
- s > ko @ 3G
5 < 0 @ 5 ! E
o £ £ c T = U
ge) T T g © g' e
= © © c 3 £ c
s S S o = o8
o T T () o a =
1. Mr.Anuwat Maytheewibulwut X
2. Mr.Verapong Chaiperm 1.1/
3. Mr. Pasu Liptapanlop 1,1/ / / / /
4. Ms.Proudputh Liptapanlop 11/ / / / /
5.  Mr. Anucha Sihanatkathakul /
6. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul /
7. Mr. Dan Zonmani /
8. Mr.Pumipat Sinacharoen /.11 / / / /
9. Mr. Chisarat Surakarn / / / /
10. Mr. Kitiwat Chinrangkhakun /
11. Ms. Natarin Paramawes /
12. Ms. Naruedee Koslathip /

Note 1./ = Director, x = Chairman of the Board of Director, // = Executive Director
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/ ATTACHMENT 3 : THE INFORMATION OF EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT, INTERNAL AUDIT OFFICE AND
HEAD OF COMPLIANCE

Further details are as shown in page 24-26, 101

/ ATTACHMENT 4 : BUSINESS ASSETS AND DETAILS
ON ASSET VALUATION

Business Assets

Further details are as shown in page 44

Details on Asset Valuation

- None -
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/ ATTACHMENT 5 : CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY
AND CODE OF CONDUCT
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WioRKuawisadvAnudsvkinuigousynldnoudu
Us:gudoRuanukaninauriiia:asn1sAUSUNING IWSWAU
d1doauladuovaarakannsweH na:Sulsduavusini
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1.1.2 SuUs:suRiioRu

1.

usyno:thAouwdiaaskiainalulagnnuadeulisiu
nsavn:DeuRBoRUAINSIUUS U IA:UUAIUUIZLOIWD
ADWE:02NSQISIIIA:AIIUNADVYDVTDLA
usynosvarhuasavasiuulRIARdakuIWaldansiu
N1savAIuUIFELNNINS:

. fouduTuNIsSUSIUINOWNSUNISoVAILY aus:Tou

ns:msUsyl RHoRUIASUAGIvLIREIAUKANINEUTIIa:
35n1sfunisooniduvavAziuulaNISTUAIUU
usuno:lUWuKEoaduduIUagucs:nIsUs:uUaNINA
fkual3lukuvdaisryUs:yutioRu la:o:luilagundav
JoyandAnylasluidvlRAoRUNSIUEIVKUN

. ANUINSSUNISIIAIWUSKISUDLUSEND:IUNSIUUS U HDRU

nnASL Iazo:idalonalkdoRusnniu IdavAUAQIRU
1a:IaSuANBIPVIINNSSUNSIA:USKISIUDS:AINEITOD
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6. USUNnaviasulia:auuauulkbynnandnouidudas:undu

vinanisadfunisasoouuA:ziuudew funisus:yu

W
WioRU na:UaineBouavyanadunadlkRiusunsiu
wsauuuRnBfusieviunisus:sudoy

assvUUAIUUIdEvIazITaINgWamMsavA:luuIdeviulca:
71s:IRAUS=yuRioRUNS IUD:NS:rddeAUTUSOfala:

asdvgould

1.1.3 Kavnisus:yuRhoRu
1. uSUno:IPvuARUS:yUWAaRUNa:wanisavA:iuulu
Iicdia:os:WugI200ulatvavaatakannswe lifunan
9.00 u. yoviurnmsaavnduus:yurRioRu
shevuMsUszsuRioRuD:UUANAGIRVIURDVANINNUTA
13:35MSavAIuU AONUYELRADRU WSDUFANBIDVUDD
NSSUNISKSDUSKIS llaznansavAziuulunicia:os:uov
WAIRUA28 AQATU lavaoanIdev SOUNLR:UUANS18%D
nssuMsIia:USKIsNaUs:yw
USENd:INgIwsS18vIUNTSUSsURHoRUUUISUlsduDY

USUNA www.proudrealestate.co.th nMefu 14 Suduoin

P

Suds:yuitioRulasndviRioRunsuKiudn0oulau
ygovaanakannswe

1.2 MsSnuAdwWUasaneiazAdIaUYDVIDYA
na:n1sUovrunisiddoyaniafuvovusen
usunDuleunga:ssEIUSSUIRNSSUNTS IWUSKS llas
unansyavusynsnuAUUaaanglia:AdIuauyovdola
na:RIulgdayaneluiians:aAtyuovusyndodvlilaila
IngdaansistusuiioUs-luslidoauiovkdodu sounv ns

FovngkannsweuovusinlagiuonouuadaLd

1.2.1 USUnmKualRnssuMsIia:usSKIsOKINAS1I8vU
mistiokannsweuavusdnidoogluuuauiow Aadusa na:yas
AgLIUussaian2:doduNIUATNSSUMSTAUKANNSWE
laraanakannswg (“‘drdnviu N.a.q.”) aWKIAasT 59 IIKO
ws:s1sUyegarannswelia:aanakannswe w.A. 2535 la:

Js:nARIAYITDY la:dvdiunsigomulRinusyn
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1.2.2 USUNMKUQIRNSSUNSIIA:NUSKISTKINAS18VU
nsidagundavnisiiokannswduovusunidoagluuiuy
Quiov Aausa na:yasigolijussadanio:dodiunviu
N.a.0. AWUIAsT 59 Kvws:s1sUnyrgakannsweas
aanakannswe w.A. 2535 la:us:mMARIREIToL la:dudiun
srevulRiAusYNn

1.2.3 USUNKIUNSSUNIS WUSKIS llaswinviuyoavusyn
AnstudayanmeluillaingdoyadoynnameuankSounnan
TudkunAIMgadov a:ikvamsdounakannsweuavusiniu
ovaTkividounauRUSENDINEIWSOUNSIDUKSDJDIA

- o

ATU8ENAtYIRgIAUADNSYDVUSENGDaNsISUsU

1.2.4 usynolaiwgnansdIduvUIadoyad1dash
1Juans:anAtyBvimadonsiuagunlansiam vovKkannswel
la:0nans:nudovunisiduyavusEnNelu 45 Suduondu

dulasunaiia: 60 SUTUMNIUFULIAUYT

Kudoaf 2 ulguleNa:PSSYIUSSUINYINU
unuinuaviddouldide

WodouldidenddouNeadoviuni1sddufoNISuoL
USUN Kuefiv YioRu gnA1 AAT 1I9IKT AITONILAISAN
yuBU doAuNadvInadoy winviu

usynduleutena:osserussaulunisufjudcoriidou
TdiIdgnnWiea1uansuavynnalkarduawiikualdlu
NNKUIgIa:doanav usygno:aviasuia:aduayunisiddou
SowwavRdsuldidunnireiiowasurusynikiaulaago
gugunasoidaimedoyadinaisidAnyRdaouldidunsiu
2gvIWyYWD dodu usEnJvdnuonvlfuagksuulauy
la:9sseUsstudvdalud

2.1 AWSUNQBDUGDRNDRU

2.1.1 usuna:UfuaktnRIdullanunngkuie Sanus:avd
JoUVAU lla:uanUsyurdoRunaius:yuAtuNSSUNS

2.1.2 USUno:dItUSsAvAIEAUTadadavsa TUsola
10usssu nisdaaulodudunisfa AxUAS:A8AI W
souADU s:as:3v lagAtiviivnads:lesigoaavoviioku

2.1.3 UsUnyoUuAD:aswANURSIAUTaagWEILEUIR
IAfPNISYOVUSENaEVTAUNIWIA:TUAVINDNAUSNDU
misAalus:e:e1d
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2.1.4 Us¥no:IAswansuovdoRuIWalRIGsSudoya
d1oasogvinifgunu na:iaimedayadiAty yovusun
ALToyan1vMISIBU la:doyanlulEdayanionisiduagv
Qndov Asudu rual TUsvla Wiugidoauladvovaaia
KanNSwe l1a:/kSa15ulsduovusyni www.proudrealestate.
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2.2 ADWSUNQYBDUCDANAN

2.2.1 uSUNyoUuRv:WauualkusMsATAtuNIWIiD
aauauavANUdavNISYaVaNA ddandulasanglia:idu
TUawunassuimkuaBRus IMAIKUNED lla:D:80UoUUAN
TRifgnANglus:g:nafrkuaiiondWWoWalouovanA

2.2.2 UsUho:UufUamudarkuana:Souluvovdnynn
laginsvasa kinluanuisnufuaaiudadeyayrfald Aacyeyr
2:USnuKISasaunuiioUoviunuiduriafionov:fadu

2.2.3 usuna:lyionsaiondssuanAn KSoArlsiauAds
sounve:fkuaiBauluntonisArag10IdusssY

2.2.4 Usgno:aadonugnAIaIgAILENIW A28NIS
riviunssaidana:ius:ansniw na:dunovlolduovanAn
laalRs:uusUISovSoLISeUINgNANWDIATUI ey K TR
anAa:UsuUsvAtuMwnsIRUSMsIkGaLIU

2.2.5 USENR:SUWLIDAQIRU K3oUDIaUDIIU:udvanAIdU
UssSiwauuidsudsoinlunisikusnis

2.2.6 USEN:fRN1sSUUS:AUNMSIRUSMsawidaulun
mkuald

2.2.7 USUN:sNdoaanIuauYavaNAMAaINdanikua
na:1Soulvyavdryrynazo:luiainedoyanduduyovgnAl
losUsiAonAowdugouiluaiednunionnanAinou

2.3 ADIWSUNQBDUCIDAM

2.3.1 Ufuaanudtyayrnaziudnvufualunissadoda
vvovusdnlagiAsvASa Kinlawisauuaaudadtynun
K$anusnwUaUaluaviald Aarynyro:Uusnukidasounu
WoUavAuANUIFuKIuRo1D:IAATU

2.3.2 mspsMdasaviunsdazovasnvo:dovidulUag
TUsvlana:asavasuldlosnisidssuiisuntuniwia:sinn

2.3.3 Tusen Tusu na:lushewads:lesdaauinulag Tag
Tuaosa KSouoniklioonmsAMauUna
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2.4 ANUSURQBDUGDISKT

2.4.1 usBno:UfUGUIBauluuavdryryRlar AU
KUogvinsvAsa Tusvlana:niReuiu Kinliausaufua
onudadeyryrfald Fjﬁfyfywo:U's"ﬂmm§as’3urTU|vTiaL‘Ja\)ﬁu
AMIduKgRoPD:IAQTU

2.4.2 USUNR:UQINgIU:NIVANSIDUAGNAoVASUAIUTR
IR KdwaLUSENAIuAIUTDdaTa050

2.5 ADIWSUNQBDUCIDANIIDNIVNISA

2.5.1 USUN :aduUauunIsIgvgunIvnIsAIIiona
Us:lgsluovanA na:ufuaaiunnkuig31densigodu
nwmsARiasia:dusssu

2.5.2 usuno:linasvkidoyanidunduduuavaiyv
NYNSANA2838NsAlUERs0 Ko luiku:au

2.5.3 UsUno:lurhangdoiduvuovaion1onMsAIdIINS
nivgun1vnsARILITusSSU

2.5.4 UsENo:lUnNduIndv K$orhiRAIGoNILANSATIFY
TonanivnisArogwluibusssuy

2.6 ADWSURQBDUdDYUBU dvAUIa:avIDadou

2.6.1 USUNV:ANITUSSADA2YAIIWSUNQUDUCDYUBU
doAula:avidadou

2.6.2 USUYND:dviasulazaduayunisousniia:nisls
NSWENNSSSSULANIA:WAVLIUIUNISNSIUIUNISHIVIUDED
SATUAN

2.6.3 USUNno:aviasuiazaduayufRwinoiunns:ausou
AUASIVESSA Nla:souRoNssUKSalASLNS IWaWaUUNUBU
doAula:avid0dou

2.6.4 USUN:URUONUNNKUIEINAYNSWEINSSSSUBA
la:dvinadaulia:NnKUIg3uY AiRgddov og1vIASLASA

2.7 A2 USUNQBDUCDOWUNYIU

2.7.1 usBno:lkwunvulasuAraauinuiku:auia: du
sssulagAbiviivAIUS A2WEIISA Us:aumsad A2IUSU
Hayaula:wanisuquaviugavwinuuidudAey

2.7.2 usygna:quasnuaniwinadoufunisrioulkio
A WUaoangdoBialia:NsSwgauyovwunviu
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2.7.3 UsUne:iduaviengie TRsvdardons:rinisias
dowunviudsaougasamlagAtivivAaus AUEILISH
Js=aunisad A USURQuoUlia:nan1sUfUuavIugavwunvIu
10uaAty

2.7.4 Usdno:aviasuna:aduayulRwinouAnuikiAoy
SIWuIAUagIauaIWoWaUUNANeNIWIRTAIUSADWEILISH
la:Us:aunisadfunisriviuuin@viuiionisUguavIunD
Us:ansnwiia:Us:answanagodu

2.7.5 UsUN:UAUAUNAKUNgIa:daULAUIRYIAUAU
ISLVLU lA:NNKUNESU AIRgIToVDEIASLASA

2.7.6 USUNR:SUWLIDAQIRU Joldudliuz:oinwunvuiunn
s:quBUagvIauaMAlazIMIRguAU

2.7.7 USuNR:URUacaWUNLIUAIYAIIWENIWIADIAISW
ANaASyoYAUITULYUY

2.7.8 USUND:9QIRDS:UUNSSUIBDVSOLISHUDINWUINLIU
Walkwunoiunniheldsuaouibussswy

Kudaf 3 uloulgIa=ISSYIUSSUINYIAU
misilaimgdoyana:Adwlusvia

uSUno:IJaIWedoyavuNsidula:doyand Aty IRedAu
msdidufivNsagvgndovASUADUNIA:NUIDAANULIASTU

msUnygRsusoavlaanaluniugndoaulativovaanakannswe
na:15ulsduovusyni www.proudrealestate.co.th Tagd

e e

nnusNIVURUAALU

3.1 Joyanilaimgdaunavnuo:dovindugndovia:liy
rifRifansaAtyRalia:wgvwadonisdadul> yovunavnu

3.2 usuna:srgviuuleuienmisiAuQianonIsid ns
usKIsADWIdevia:ussGuidAtyTunisdITURDNISUOY
usUnwsaunvnisuguaatuuleutgdonaidl3lusigviu
Us:9U (1uu 56-2) doo:imenwsiBuuiSulsduovuseni
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3.3 USUN:YMA1DEUNIIA:NNSIIAS1KUDVWIEYIANTS
(Management Discussion and Analysis KS9 MD&A) Wo
Usznaumsidaimgvunisivunnlasunawalkunavnunsiu
Joyala:igtonisivdgundavAinaduiugunisidulawa

=

nscdiduvuvavusUnfuldalasunaldagodu
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3.4 USUnv:IUQINg ANDUINUNSSUNISIIa:aouUty I3 Tu
lnuunaavsigNIsvayaus:9U (IluU 56-1) la:s1gviuus:snu
(IUU 56-2) BoingIwSWIUTDoUlatvaVaaaKANNSWE
na:5ulsduovusini www.proudrealestate.co.th

3.5 USUNo:UQINEUNUINKINAYOLATU:NSSUNTSIIA:ATU:
NSSUNISBATDY SIUDUASLYDVNNSUSIEU a:FIUIUASH
AnssunIsidamiudnsouusyuludARIULA 1azAWIRU
vavAtU:NssuNIsNMsiKtnABluNuulaavsienisioya
Us:$70 (1UU 56-1) l1a:s1ev1uds:9nU (IUU 56-2) BOINgIWS
nugdoauladvavaatakannswgH nasSulsduovusini
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Ku2aA 4 ulguBIa:PSSEIUSSTUINYIAU
unuN KUNNIla:AIUSUNQBDUUDYD
AU:NSSUNS UStSIUNSSUNIS NSSUNIS
pyanslkey la:AtuNSSUNSyagoy

AruznssumMsinuIdudas:lumsdoauloiioUs:Tosd
gogauovusunia:yioRu Tn1sivvignuNUINKINAAY
SUNQBDUS:KIVATUNSSUNISIaWIgIaNISATAIDU WK
UnsURUGIKITUlUaIUNAKUIEIADSYSSSU ATUENSSUNIS
Us:naudagynnanindiukainkatefudiuds:aunisad
AWSAWaNUsnRIduds:lesUiAuusen sounv N1sane
paaANUaaKluMsURUAKINAINDIaSUaS 10 IRUSUNT
ACUNSSUNSAITUNGY

nssunisnnAudIduag1vdivkUNNAIWSURQBDU
yovNSsUNISIia:dNuU:N1SAITUSSADUOVUSYN WSDUR
d:1davANUAQIRUYDVaUDgIvITUDaS:Ia:WaIUIADIDY
agaananan nssumso:UfUaKkINAdIuAIWTadadaosa
s:jas:dviia:sounau lagAtiviivus:lesigogavovusynia:
10usssudariioRuUNNse

unUINKUTAYVUS:SIUNSSUNTS

1. MAU daaw na:Qualkuufldsn nisufuakunhuaY
AtusnssuNsidulUognobus:ansnw IIa:ussacudan
Js:avAila:dnKkuigKkanyuovovAns

2. msqualRuulo3n nssunisnnAudadusoulunisaviasy
TRINaIUUSSSUDVANSATDSESSSY la:n1siAuQia
Aonishd
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3. MKuass:nIsUs:yUAuNSssUNIsiagkI$osIUAU
nssunisWansikey na:durasnisiqualkisov
dAryldasunisussailuoisnisus:yu Nl funstl
AUs:s1unssunIsddkuivIJuuSKISS:AugvL Ay
N1SAIKUQIIS:NNSUSIEUATUNSSUNISD:ADVKISDSOU
AUUS:8IUNSSUNNSASIDEDU 11a:/KSONSSUNISDEs:A08
OUANUIKUN:ED

4. vaassinaldogromgowonigdanIsozidualsovia:
mnwaﬁnssumso:aﬁdswUsuﬁua‘hﬁmﬁu 2810S0UAD
ulaunanu sounv doviasulknssunisinisidqaswaon
soundu fRAWIRUIGoEvITudas:

5. 1a5UasVANUFUWUSAUGS:K3WNSSUNISAITURUSKS
la:nssuMSAIUITURUSKIS llass:k30AtUNSSUNISIa:
Wgvans

unuInKiAvovnssuNIssan1sTkay

1. MAUQIanNISUSKISLIUYDVUSYNIA:uSINgoalR
doandovAuddenAld wusio ATGeu ulgutguov
ACUINSSUNIS WAUaLYWHDRU JoUvAUNa:danus:avA
yavUSENIWalkMsAITULILYOLUSTNIIA:USUNgouINQ
Js:ansniwgvdanasouadgnnkuig

2. USK1SYOMSIia:A2uALQIANISUSKISLIUNSIUYDLUSYN
na:usungoswalkiduluaiudanus:avAulouie s:08u
JoULAUYDLUSYN QaoadudaaIumMsaiduviuyovnig
SamsiiasIevIuANUADKINYEYNaUS:NoUNSAITU
VIUYOVHIETANISIHDSIEVIUAIIUAIIKUNUDONANTS
d1duvIu a:waus:NauNIsyaLUSYNIa:uUSYNgoedo
AfUENSSUMSagvalIau

3. mkuaulgurelunisuskisnswensyAAala:aduayu
nsdutuvaufunnkussoulRiduluauiusniofaous
nssumsrkuailolRanuisawauuNia:[drnenwiog
TaaghoiGunna:dus:ansmw

4. TRAnuzthiazdhenaaus:aumsaifumsdidussaofrin
RUSKisiia:winouwalkinaus:Tesd donisdiduviu
YDVUSUNIa:uUSUNgoy

5. USKIsvaMsAuNsIBuNia:3onevuUs:untuuavusynia:
usyngdoglRinaus:lesuna:ius:ansniwaoga

6. UfuaviudulanldsSuuaukuigatuuanus:yuntus
NSsSUNNS Nla/kSouduavius:sudoRuyovusynia:

usUngos Nvl Melddanus:avdA JoUvAUYDLUSYN lia:
NAKUIYAIRYITOY

\)d usunlarinkuaknAlla:AUSURQBDUYDVNSSUNS

Sre

T3dvd

4.1 KUNANa:AUSURQBOUUDLANIINSSUNIS

4.1.1 UskisiomstkiulUiiaus:TesuRdRaannydoru
4 U

(Fiduciary Duty) lag8afionusUfuaanAry 4 Ussmsho

1. n1sUUAaKUNAdIgAUSURQBaUS:Jas:IvNa:
sounoU (Duty of Care)

2. nM1sUUaKUIAGIEAUBadadarsa (Duty of
Loyalty)

3. MsUQUaMUNNKUIY J00US:avA JoUubAuYaLUSUN
UAAUNSSUNIS lasuAnRUS:sURHDRU (Duty of
Obedience)

4. msilaimgdoyadorfioRuag1vgndoav ASUNDU

1Usvla asovaould nazriunan (Duty of Disclosure)

4.1.2 MKkuana:nunoulAsLasvAUNSsSUNISTUZo
J1uduNssUNISs dadounssunisdas: SOUNVANAUUARN
KankangIWalkIKu:aunumMsdIiussivuavusyn

4.1.3 MKUQ3duNAU WUsAD la:nagnsfunisdidussio
vovusyn laginisnunouna:oydGogvaliiau

4.1.4WNSAUNIIWUKANTUMSANTULIU LUUSIUEU ITKUNEY
na:uleunefunisdidussinaaadUWAIUN JaAIUEIUISH
yoavUSEN

4.1.5 daanuqQualkidnsuinagnsuavusynluunua nas
aamunisiananisanduviugavusen lagrkua IROns
s1gvIuWaniIsdutiuviuagtvaiiaus sounvlkuloule
WonIswauuna:usudsvnisdiduvuuavssio lagAdv
fivAdwdanangia:guoully AIWSURQsDUCDdvALIA:
FvI20d0U AaAPUMSWAILNIYAAINSTDVUSYN

4.1.6 anApatlaglinasvkiwals:lusdnnnssuniskso
unpadulalidudunisiaq suldunisdangonuwaus:Tosu
yovusun
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4.1.7 uSKisdsamsusniRIduluaunnkue Janus:avA
JoULAUYDLUSUN UAANUNSSUNS lla:uauoviUssuRHioRU
A28AWSUAQBOU S:JQS:IVIASOUADU la:AdIUBadad
gosaioUslusiavaavavusinia:dusssudolRingddon

4.1.8 kuauleueusKisAWIdevIa:iAuQialkinis
USKISADWIFLADUS:aNSWa sounvinsnunoulia:us:iou
S:UUNSYOMSAWIdEVDEVELIaUD

4.1.9 fmAuqQuana:waulussyniiuiavoavusunii
do0aA3DVAUIUINLYDLEIUNVIUN.A.Q. 13:0aNAKANNSWEH
Woidunusnwfumsditiussno aaaulkRiNMsURUE a=idu
nuuagvlunIsuUaaIuKkanussyniiualanssgIussu

4.1.10 dviasulkwunviunns:auddadrinfussesssuy
llazAUSSSH lla:URUaOUKaNUSSUNAUNadssgIusseu llas
ulsurgdadiunassusuvovusin wsaunvmAuqQIalki
SsuUMSARUAUNEIU Ia:MsasIvdouNeluRikunauIRo
aoAxUIdgvdunIsnosala:Nsidsuslaglsou sounv
JovAunisns:inannKug

4.1.11 quawaus:lgstiuaviiioRunvsielknjia:siugos
a1wansog1vidusssu aaoavudviasulRiioRuaiuisald
ansfunisquasnuiwaus:lestvovaunazfdugialkusgn
iWaimedoyadAtyagugndov Asudou TUsvla asdoaou
1d nazriunan

4.1.12 as:KUNALUNUINKUIAADIUSURQEDUYDY
AtUENSSUANS IAMswanSia:ufuadortioRu na:ddould
idanniheagvidusssuna:lusola fnuqualkiins:uouns
1a:320N0IUNSSUIIA:INSAUTDSOVISYULDVRNUS:EVA
VIV IaKSaTdouldidennnigog1odus:ansna lia:
iUalomalRyidouldidunniheanuisadadio Sovigauluizon
Ao wibudeykinuacuznssunisidlasaso

4.1.13 WOISTUNIINUWQUUIWUSKISS:aUgvliaziinu
dunaanssunmisoanisikey nasrAuqQualkiinisus:iduna
MSURUaVIULOLRWUSKISS:AUaATUs:answaiduls:snnl
18:0S:UUNMSWNSTUNFNKUQANADUIINUIAUSKISS:AUGVA
sounau 1Usufa @oandoviuAduSUNQsDUIIA:NaNISANITU
viuanalRINQISLYVIoNYIUS:8:dU la:s 261D

4.1.14 Us:iiuwanisupuakuinfvavAnuznssunsidu
Us:5hnnt TogfRon1susaBuwanmsufuaviuidu 3 nuu Ao
Us:ioumsufuavugovatu:nssun1siagsou (Entire Board)
Jssiouauiovidusigunna (Self-Assessment) llazUs:iDuwa
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NsUAUALILYDLUS:SIUNSSUNTS SOUAVAQAIUWNANIS
Us:IDUYDVANIINSSUNTS lAatAUNSSUNISEAE08IWD
WOIStUISOUAUIUATUENSSUATS lasnuNdUluuUS:ITURa
nisUfUakUAvavnssunsia:nssunisyagasiduls:o
aavo

4.1.15 fmAuqualkins:usunisassKila:id@ondvynna
10unssuMsagnvlusola Ia:dn1sikuaAIaaUINUASSUNIS
13:NSSUNISEQGDYDEVIKUI:EN

4.1.16 1915ouUs:suAtUNSSUNISIIa:NISUSyUWHioRU
BundlunsaifbikaaaddelagnssunisAliaiuisnidnsou
Us=u0:AovidufRUs:sUNSSUNISKSaIauunIsusS¥nNnsIu
asvKkunnaunsus:yuidunaiduaunds
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Usaiduwdnoiunaasiosdugdunaadiikuo 319:auisa
DWaUUINS 11a:a$10WavIu awAAIaKILIADsY okl
10uluawAmakuneidsgvanusailasugdunaadinkuvla

uanvINUU USUNgLTIWUNISKYUISEUNISHIVIU (Job
Rotation) dksulRwunviufudhikuvdifeyuovusdnikla
dlomarssugouluriedu sounvano:TRIg1SIuUS:yuUALU:
NSSUNISKSOAMUNSSUNISYaEaY Iddndnsdiioldunis
1a3suAUwWSaulRIARAY:dunaadiikivaluAusyn
WDISEUNIRUENADS
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ATTACHMENT 5 : REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF
DUTIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR 2022

The Audit Committee of the Company consists
entirely of 3 independent directors who are independent,
knowledgeable, capable, and experienced in auditing
financial reports, internal control system, and inspection
as well as having knowledge and understanding of
corporate business and qualified according to the
announcement of the Capital Market Supervisory Board
and the announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
Regarding the qualifications and scope of work of the Audit
Committee, B.E. 2558. In 2022, the members of the Audit
Committee are as follows:

1. Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut Chairmanofthe

AuditCommittee
2. Ms. Anchalee Bunsongsikul AuditCommittee
3. Mr. Dan Zonmani AuditCommittee

In 2022 the Audit Committee held 4 meetings with

details of attendance. as follows

1. Mr. Anuwat Methivibulwut Attended4meetings
2. Ms. Anchalee Boonsongsikul  Attended4meetings
3. Mr. Dan Zonmani Attended 3 meetings

Summary of the performance of the audit committee

is as follows:

1. Review financial reports

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s
quarterly financial reports and annual financial reports
and consolidated financial statements by meeting with
the auditors, internal auditors, and listening to statements
from management. The Audit Committee agrees with the
auditor that the Company’s financial reports are accurate.

It is dependable as it should be in accordance with the

accepted accounting standards of Thailand and sufficient
and timely disclosure of information and made remarks on
issues that would be beneficial to the Company regarding

disclosure of information as necessary and appropriate.

2. Review the effectiveness of the internal control

system.

The Audit Committee attaches immense importance to
good corporate governance, risk management, and internal
control by promoting the creation of an organizational
culture concerning good internal control and has reviewed
the audit results of the efficiency and effectiveness of the
internal control system as audited by the audit department
according to international standards for various work
processes within the group of companies every quarter.
The Audit Committee provided additional suggestions
that were useful for improving the Company’s operations
to be more efficient and effective. The management has
been followed up to make improvements according to the
suggestions continuously and has continuously improved
its operations to be consistent and suitable for the current

business environment.

3. Review Compliance with the Law, and Related
Regulations

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, set
requirements or laws related to the Company’s business

operations and work system defined.

4. Oversee internal audit work
The Audit Committee has considered the annual
internal audit plan. This includes the extent of the audit

based on risk considerations and the existing controls of
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the company’s internal processes, past audit results, and
information from the Company’s risk assessment results,
executives’ interviews about their needs or concerns
by giving advice and following up on corrective action
on significant issues to achieve good governance and

adequate internal control.

5. Consider connected transactions or transactions that

may have a conflict of interest.

The Audit Committee has considered connected
transactions or transactions that may have conflicts
of interest of the Group to comply with the laws and
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand considering
reasonableness, it is in the best interests of the company,
and approved by the authorized person who is not a
stakeholder. The Company has a policy on conflicts of

interest and a policy on management of subsidiaries.

6. Review the auditor’s performance and selection and
nomination of auditors.

The Audit Committee has considered the terms of
employment of auditors for the selection and appointment
of the auditors, including the auditor’s remuneration for the
year 2022 and reviewing the qualifications of the auditors
found to be completely correct. Therefore resolved to
approve to propose to the Board of Directors for approval
and to later propose for approval at the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2022

The Audit Committee has considered the nature of other
services apart from the auditing work that departments in
the company or subsidiaries employ the audit firm and is of
the view that such services do not affect the independence

of the auditors in the practice of auditing the financial

PROUD REAL ESTATE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
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reports of the company.

7. Self-assessment and review of the Audit Committee’s

charter manual.

The Audit Committee has evaluated the annual
performance by using the self-assessment form according
to the principles of good corporate governance, which has
been reported to the Board of Directors for consideration.
In this regard, the results of the self-assessment are in
particularly good criteria. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed and revised the Charter of the Audit Committee.
to be in line with the changing situation to ensure that the
performance of the previous year was complete as assigned
and in line with the best practices of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and proposed to the Board of Directors for
approval.

In summary, the Audit Committee has fulfilled its
duties in its entirety as specified in the Audit Committee
Charter approved by the Board of Directors. This is in line
with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and
the opinion is consistent with the auditor’s opinion that
the Company’s financial reports are correct in all material
respects in accordance with the accepted accounting
standards of Thailand. In addition, the company has set up
an internal control system and effective internal auditing
and has complied with the law and relevant regulations
throughout the year 2022, no significant issues or defects
were found and has continuously improved its operations
to be consistent and suitable for the current business

environment.

.

(Mr. Anuwat Maytheewibulwut )

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Further details are as shown in page 12-13
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